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General Notice No. 520 of 2018

SPECIAL LEGAL SUPPLEMENT

The undermentioned Bills are published in the 
Special Legal Supplement to this number of the 
Government Gazette:

A Bill “To amend a number of enactments for 
the enhancement of the administration of justice in 
Mauritius and for matters related thereto”.

(Bill No. 1 of 2018)

A Bill “To amend the Pouce Stream (Authorised 
Construction) Act”.

(Bill No. II of 2018)

Prime Minister’s Office, 
Port Louis.

This 31st March, 2018.

General Notice No. 521 of 2018

LEGAL SUPPLEMENT

The undermentioned Government Notices are 
published in the Legal Supplement to this number 
of the Government Gazette:

The Value Added Tax (Amendment of 
Schedule) Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 33 of 2018)

The Public Procurement (Amendment) 
Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 34 of 2018)

The Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement 
(Republic of Cyprus) (Amendment) Regulations 
2018.

(Government Notice No. 35 of 2018)

The Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement 
(Barbados) (Amendment) Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 36 of 2018)

The Rodrigues Consumer Protection (Control 
of Price of Taxable and Non-taxable Goods) 
(Amendment No. 6) Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 37 of 2018)

The Rodrigues Consumer Protection (Control 
of Price of Taxable and Non-taxable Goods) 
(Amendment No. 7) Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 38 of 2018)

Prime Minister’s Office, 
Port Louis.

This 31s’ March, 2018.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 522 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Britannia in 
the district of Savanne for the public purpose of the 
construction of a Multipurpose Complex.

Description

The said portion of land [PIN 1612010231] of 
an extent of two thousand one hundred and ten 
square metres (2110m2) or fifty square perches 
(0A50P) is excised from a portion of land being 
all that remains of an extent of five thousand six 
hundred and ninety eight arpents and fourteen 
and seven hundredths square perches (5698A 14 
07/100 P) as per deed belonging to Omnicane 
Limited (formerly Mon Tresor & Mon Desert 
Limited) holder of a business registration number 
C07000386, as evidenced by deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 3830/25 (1st Portion) and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North East by Rue des 
Bougainvilliers on twenty nine metres and fifty 
centimetres (29.50m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
on sixty metres (60.00m).

Towards the South West again by the surplus 
of land on thirty five metres and eighty five 
centimetres (35.85m).

Towards the North West by a tarred road 
six metres (6.00m) wide on a line measuring 
fifty four metres (54.00m) and on a developed

Government HR.N— -
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length measuring eight metres and seventy two 
centimetres (8.72m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit as ACQ/75/000425 
and PCR 2193/2018, drawn up by Mr. Rakesh 
Venkata-swami, Government Land Surveyor on 
02/03/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Gazette a written declaration of the nature of his 
interest in the land and the amount and details of 
his claim for compensation.

The Honourable 
Purmanund Jhugroo 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower, Ebene

Date 09/03/2018

First Publication

General Notice No. 523 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 38c (Serial No. 38c) [PIN: 
1317100369] of an extent of three hundred and 
thirty hundredths square metres (300.30 m2) 
belonging to Mr Mohammad Yasin KURMOO 
born on 15/04/1975 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number K150475381229A civilly 
married to Mrs Soumaya SHAHABUN under the 
legal community of goods as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 6088/19 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by a common road four 
metres wide (4.00m) on thirteen metres and fifty 
five centimetres (13.55m).

Towards the South East by Portion No.38b 
(Serial No. 38b) of the plan mentioned below 
on twenty two metres and thirteen centimetres 
(22.13m).

Towards the South West by land belonging to 
Mr Kreshnacoomaden Soobrooyen MOOTYEN 
and other on thirteen metres and fifty five 
centimetres (13.55m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 38d 
(Serial No.38d) of the plan mentioned below 
on twenty two metres and twenty centimetres 
(22.20m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000423, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 28/02/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Date 22/03/2018

First Publication

General Notice No. 524 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
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for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 38d (Serial No. 38d) [PIN: 
1317100370] of an extent of three hundred and 
thirty hundredths square metres (300.30 m2) 
belonging to Miss Bibi Nooreza KURMOO bom 
on 22/01/1970 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number K220170380278A as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 6088/19 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by a common road four 
metres wide (4.00m) on thirteen metres and fifty 
centimetres (13.5 0m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 38c 
(Serial No.3 8c) of the plan mentioned below 
on twenty two metres and twenty centimetres 
(22.20m).

Towards the South West by land belonging to 
Mr Kreshnacoomaden Soobrooyen MOOTYEN 
and other on thirteen metres and fifty centimetres 
(13.50m).

Towards the North West partly by land 
belonging to Mr and Mrs Subiraj Kisoon and 
others and partly by Portion No. 43 (Serial No.43) 
of the plan mentioned below on twenty two metres 
and twenty eight centimetres (22.28m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000423, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 28/02/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene
Date 22/03/2018

First Publication

General Notice No. 525 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Saint 
Francois as per title deed but in reality situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 43 (Serial No. 43) [PIN: 
1317100371] of an extent of fifty four and 
fifty six hundredths square metres (54.56 m2) 
is excised from an extent of three hundred and 
thirty hundredths square metres (300.30 m2) 
belonging jointly to (i) Mr Subiraj KISOON 
born on 15/09/1970 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number K1509701104365 and 
Mrs Poonam KISOON (born DAYA) born 
on 10/10/1975 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number DI 010750803442 civilly married 
to Mr Subiraj KISOON under the legal community 
of goods and (ii) Mr Vinoba BHUNJUN bom on 
04/09/1976 holder of a national identity card bearing 
number B0409761201404 and Mrs Prabita 
BHUNJUN (born DAYA) born on 07/04/1981 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
D0704810800963 civilly married to Mr Vinoba 
BHUNJUN under the legal community of goods 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 8079/15 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by a common road four 
metres wide (4.00m) on thirteen metres and forty 
six centimetres (13.46m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 38d 
(Serial No.38d) of the plan mentioned below on 
eight metres and eleven centimetres (8.1 Im).

Towards the West by the surplus of land 
on fifteen metres and seventy six centimetres 
(15.76m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 28/02/2018.
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The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower

Ebene
Date 22/03/2018

First Publication

General Notice No. 526 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Saint 
Francois as per title deed but in reality situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 45 (Serial No. 45) [PIN: 
1317100367] of an extent of six metres and thirty 
hundredths square metres (6.30m2) is excised from 
a portion of land of an extent of three hundred and 
eighty nine square metres (389 m2) belonging 
to Ms Jottee JOKHOO born on 28/03/1966 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
J280366300511C divorced from Mr Francois 
Sylvio PALANIYANDI as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 7281/41 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by a common road three 
metres and sixty six centimetres wide (3.66m) on 
three metres and fifty eight centimetres (3.58m).

Towards the South East by land being acquired 
from Heirs Soomeetree BHEEKHARRY on three 
metres and fifty five centimetres (3.55m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on five 
metres and seven centimetres (5.07m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 28/02/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to the 
Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the second 
publication of this Notice in the Gazette a written 
declaration of the nature of his interest in the land and 
the amount and details of his claim for compensation.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene
Date 22/03/2018

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 527 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY,, AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 

DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 21 March 2018 under Section 18(1) of the Act 
for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Residential Development under the 
Property Development Scheme (Jacaranda 
Luxury Villas) over a portion of land of 
272,949.20m2 by JIMEI INTERNATIONAL 
INVESTMENT LTD.
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(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is 
at Balaclava, in the district of Pamplemousses.

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 to 12.00 hrs 
and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
District Council of Pamplemousses.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http://environment.eovmu.ore.

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 09 
April 2018 at latest. The envelope should be 
marked "EIA comments”, on the top left hand 
corner and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 
National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development 
(Environment and Sustainable 
Development Division) 
5,h Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets
Port Louis

Date: 21 March 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 528 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY,, AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 

DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 

Security, National solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 20 March 2018 under Section 18(1) of the Act 
for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Residential Development Project over a 
portion of land of 28,544m2 by Plaisance 
Estate Ltd.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is at 
Plaisance ,in the district of Grand Port.

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 to 12.00 hrs 
and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
District Council of Grand Port.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http://environment.eovmu.ore.

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 09 
April 2018 at latest. The envelope should be 
marked “EIA comments”, on the top left hand 
corner and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment
Ministry of Social Security,
National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development
(Environment and Sustainable Development 
Division)
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets
Port Louis

Date: 21 March 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

http://environment.eovmu.ore
http://environment.eovmu.ore
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First Publication

General Notice No. 529 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, 
NATIONAL SOLIDARITY, AND ENVIRONMENT 

AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 

DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 23 February 2018 under Section 18(1) of the 
Act for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA 
report shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the proposed C
Palmar Mauritius Hotel (Ex Le Grand 
Sable Hotel) to provide for construction 
among others of four new hotel blocks with 
64 additional rooms by Lagon de Reve Ltee.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is at 
Palmar in the district of Flacq.

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 to 12.00 hrs 
and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
Flacq District Council.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http://en vironment. sovmu, ors.

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 
13 Anril 2018 at latest. The envelope should 
be marked "EIA comments”, on the top left 
hand comer and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security,
National Solidarity, and Environment, 
and Sustainable Development

(Environment and Sustainable
Development Division)
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets
Port Louis

Date: 27 March 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

First Publication

General Notice No. 530 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY. NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given that the Department of 
Environment, Ministry of Social Security, National 
solidarity and Environment and Sustainable 
Development intends to proceed with the EIA 
undertaking hereunder:

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Coastal Protection, Landscaping and 
Infrastructural Works at Pointe aux Feuilles.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is at 
Grand Sable in the district of Grand Port.

(c) The EIA Report is open for public inspection 
and it may be inspected during normal office 
working hours (i.e. 08.45 to 12.00 hrs and 12.30 
hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource Centre of the 
Department of Environment, Ground Floor, 
Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges 
Streets, Port Louis and at the District Council 
of Grand Port.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
httD://environment. sovmu. ors.

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 
20 April 2018 at latest. The envelope should 

http://en_vironment._sovmu,_ors
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be marked “EIA Comments”, on the top left 
hand corner and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment
Ministry of Social Security,
National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development 
(Environment and Sustainable Development 
Division)
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets
Port Louis

Date: 28 March 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

First Publication

General Notice No. 531 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, 
NATIONAL SOLIDARITY, AND ENVIRONMENT 

AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 

DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Vetilang Ltd
Extension of Deadline for Public Comments

Notice is hereby given under Section 20(4) 
of the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that the 
deadline for submission of public comments in 
connection with the EIA for proposed Distillery of 
Essential Oils for Tourism Purposes at Chamarel 
by Vetilang Ltd is 9 April 2018.

Date: 26 March 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

General Notice No. 532 of 2018

POLICE NOTICE

RACE MEETING AT THE 
CHAMP DE MARS, PORT LOUIS

REGULATION OF TRAFFIC

In virtue of Section 25 (3) of the Police Act and 
Section 181 of the Road Traffic Act, the use of the 
under-mentioned roads by vehicles and pedestrians 
will, on the occasion of race meetings scheduled for 
the year 2018 at the Champ de Mars, Port Louis, be 
restricted as notified below:-

2. CLOSED STREETS (Except for MTC card 
holders and residents)

(a) Shakespeare Street from its junction with 
Corneille Street to that with Boulevard 
Victoria for both, vehicular traffic and 
pedestrians (from 08.00 to 18.00 hours); 
and

(b) Eugene Laurent Street from its junction 
with Corneille Street to that with Military 
Street. Parking will also be prohibited 
along the stretch of Eugene Laurent Street 
(from 10.00 to 18.00 hours).

3. ONE-WAY TRAFFIC

The following streets will carry vehicular 
traffic in one-way, i.e., in the direction 
mentioned below:-

(a) From 10.00 to 18.00 hours

(i) D’Estaing Street from its junction 
with Pope Hennessy Street towards 
Eugene Laurent Street;

(ii) D’Estaing Street from its junction 
with Pope Hennessy towards Frere 
Felix de Valois Street; and

(iii) Frere Felix de Valois Street from 
its junction with Labourdonnais 
Street to that with Mahatma Gandhi 
Street, no vehicle will turn left onto 
D’Estaing Street.

(b) From 11.00 to 15.30 hours

Pope Hennessy Street from its junction with 
Labourdonnais towards D’Estaing Street.
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(c) From 11.00 to 18.00 hours

(i) Herschell Street from its junction 
with Eugene Laurent Street towards 
Shakespeare Street;

(ii) Shakespeare Street from its junction 
with Herschell Street towards 
Corneille Street;

(iii) Corneille Street from its junction with 
Shakespeare Street towards Eugene 
Laurent Street, turning right; and

(iv) Eugene Laurent Street from its 
junction with Corneille Street towards 
Herschelle Street.

(d) From 15.30 to 18.00 hours

(i) Shakespeare Street from its junction 
with Corneille Street to Boulevard 
Victoria; and

(ii) Pope Hennessy and Jules Koenig 
Streets from the direction of Champ 
de Mars towards De Plevitz Street.

4. PARKING OF VEHICLES OUTSIDE 
CHAMP DE MARS

From 08.00 to 17.30 hours

(i) Vehicles will not be allowed to park along 
any road bordering the Champ de Mars 
except on the left side along Frere Felix 
de Valois Street and Boulevard Victoria 
parking space; and

(ii) Vehicles will however be allowed to 
park on the left side along Shakespeare 
Street from corner Herschell Street to 
Corneille Street.

5. NO PARKING ZONE FROM 08.00 TO 
18.00 HOURS

Boulevard Victoria from its junction 
with Eugene Laurent Street to that of 
Sebastepol Street.

6. ONE SIDE PARKING

(i) Mahatma Gandhi Street from its junction 
with Frere Felix de Valois to that of 
L’Anglois Street; and

(ii) Swami Sivananda Street between Vishnu 
Kchetra to that of Frere Felix de Valois.

7. TRAFFIC TOWARDS GRAND STAND

(i) Vehicles exhibiting a special ‘Car Park 
Card’ at the front windscreen will proceed 
to the Grand Stand via Sir S. Ramgoolam, 
Mgr. Gonin, D’Estaing, Eugene Laurent, 
Herschell and Shakespeare Streets; and

(ii) Vehicles leaving the Grand Stand via 
Eugene Laurent Street will not be allowed 
to turn left onto D’Estaing Street as from 
10.00 hours up to 18.00 hours.

8. TAXI

(i) Taxi cars operating in Port Louis will be 
diverted into a special drive provided along 
D’Estaing Street in between Mgr. Gonin 
and Church Streets to facilitate their return 
to their respective base of operation. 
D’Estaing Street will not be used as a 
taxi stand;

(ii) From 11.00 hours to 18.00 hours, taxi cars 
will not be allowed along Eugene Laurent 
Street from its junction with D’Estaing 
Street towards the Grand Stand except 
those engaged by the inhabitants of that 
region; and

(iii) From 11.00 hours to 18.00 hrs, vehicles will 
be allowed to use Sebastepol Street from 
Military Road towards Corneille Street 
except for taxi cars.

9. TRAFFIC TOWARDS THE CHAMP 
DE MARS

(i) From the South

Vehicles will proceed towards the Champ 
de Mars via Brabant, Souillac, Lord 
Kitchner, Jemmapes, Volcy Pougnet, 
Labourdonnais and Pope Hennessy 
Streets.

(ii) From the North

• Vehicles will proceed towards the Champ 
de Mars via Sir S. Ramgoolam, Pope 
Hennessy to the car park in Champ 
de Mars.
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(iii) From the New Trunk Road

Vehicles will proceed towards the 
Champ de Mars via Fergusson Avenue, 
Royal Street, Sir William Newton, 
Sir S. Ramgoolam and Pope Hennessy 
Streets or Chaussee, Poudriere, 
Labourdonnais and Pope Hennessy 
Streets.

10. BUSES

Buses and mini buses will not be allowed to 
enter Champ de Mars, except on production 
of an “Access Pass” issued by the Mauritius 
Turf Club.

11. PARKING

Cars provided with special “Car Park Cards” 
as mentioned in paragraph 7 (i) may be parked 
along Shakespeare Street.

12. CARS ENTERING THE CHAMP 
DE MARS MAY BE PARKED AS 
FOLLOWS:-

(a) In paid parking areas manned by MTC; 
and;

(b) MFA Football pitch and parking area on 
the left when entering Champ de Mars.

13. GENERAL

Just before each race, a bugle will be sounded 
three times at the Grand Stand. On the third 
sound of the bugle, no person shall cross or 
remain on the race or training tracks, jump 
over, pass under or sit on the railing until 
the race is over and the horses are back to 
the paddock.

14. DISPERSAL

(a) Vehicular traffic entering the Champ de 
Mars will leave through Malartic exit 
gate on Boulevard Victoria Street (one­
way traffic from 10.00 hours until the last 
race), along Duke of York Avenue unless 
otherwise directed by Police; and

(b) After the last race, vehicles parked in the 
special car park at Shakespeare Street will 
depart via Boulevard Victoria and those 

parked inside the Champ de Mars via Pope 
Hennessy Street.

15. JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS

Non-compliance with these traffic 
arrangements will entail judicial proceedings.

The cooperation and understanding of the 
public would be much appreciated.

26.03.2018

K. M. Nobin, PMSM 
Commissioner of Police

Office of the Commissioner of Police
Police Headquarters 

Line Barracks 
Port Louis.

General Notice No. 533 of 2018

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION AGAINST CORRUPTION 
(ICAC)

(established under s.l9(l) of PoCA 2002 
as subsequently amended)

NOTICE PUBLISHED UNDER
SECTION 56(3)(a) OF THE PREVENTION 
OF CORRUPTION ACT 2002 (PoCA 2002)

NOTICE is hereby given that, on an application 
made by the Independent Commission Against 
Corruption (ICAC), an Order has been made on 
22',d February 2018 by the Honourable Judge at 
Chambers, as follows:-

(A) attaching into the hands of (a) 
Jean Rudolph Laboudeuse, 
NICL1804783015571, the following 
motor vehicles, viz:-
(a) a motor car bearing registration no. 

No Fl 117 (original No. 3006ZW09) 
of the make “BMW”, model “X6”, 
type “jeep”;

(b) a double cab 4x4 registration No. 
2986JL06 of the make ‘Toyota” 
model “Hilux”;

(c) a double cab 4x4 registration No. 
137AP92 of the make “Chevrolet;

(d) an autocycle bearing registration No. 
5345R of the make “Kymco”; and
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(e) a 15-seater van bearing registration 
number 6697OC13 of the make 
“Nissan Urvan” purchased on lease 
by Mrs Goindamah Sawmy born 
Govindramen of 55, Labourdonnais 
Street, Rose Hill from Expert Leasing 
Ltd for Rs 698,000, and

(B) attaching into the hands of (i) 
Mrs Goindamah Sawmy, born 
Govindramen, NICG1210792907784, 
the lessee and (ii) Expert Leasing Ltd, the 
lessor, the following motor vehicle, viz:-
(i) a 15-seater van bearing registration 

number 6697OC13 of the make 
“Nissan Urvan”

(C) attaching into the hands of (b) Jean 
Hubert Celerine, NICC2005893024606, 
the following motor vehicle and quad bike, 
viz:-

(i) a double cab 4x4 of the make 
“Mazda” bearing registration number 
3255MY16 belonging to Dharamdeo 
Balkissur; and

(ii) a quad bike of yellow colour with its 
seat of blue colour bearing chassis No 
JSAAK47A572100;

(D) attaching into the hands of (b) Dharamdeo 
Balkissur, NICB2312652500111, the 
following motor vehicle, viz:-

(i) a double cab 4x4 of the make 
“Mazda” bearing registration number 
3255MY16 belonging to Dharamdeo 
Balkissur.

(E) requiring the said (a) Jean Rudolph 
Laboudeuse, (b) Jean Hubert Celerine,
(c) Mrs Goindamah Sawmy born 
Govindramen, (d) Expert Leasing Ltd, 
and (e) Dharamdeo Balkissur, within 48 
hours of service of the Order, to declare 
in writing to the Applicant the nature and 
source of all motor vehicles and quad bike 
so attached respectively; and

(F) prohibiting the said (a) Jean Rudolph 
Laboudeuse, (b) Jean Hubert Celerine,
(c) Mrs Goindamah Sawmy born 
Govindramen, (d) Expert Leasing 
Ltd, and (e) Dharamdeo Balkissur, 

from transferring, pledging or otherwise 
disposing of any motor vehicles and quad 
bike so attached respectively, except by an 
Order of the Honourable Judge upon good 
cause shown to his/her satisfaction.

THE said Order has been filed in the Registry of 
the Supreme Court of Mauritius.

THE attention of all banks, financial institutions, 
cash dealers and any other person who may hold 
or be vested with property belonging to or held on 
behalf of the abovenamed person, is hereby drawn 
to the above Order so that they may take note 
thereof and govern themselves accordingly.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Le Reduit, this 21st day of March, 2018.

Sultan SOHAWON 
of ICAC Headquarters, 
Reduit Triangle, Moka

Applicant’s Attorney

General Notice No. 534 of 2018

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION AGAINST CORRUPTION 
(ICAC)

(established under s.l9(l) of PoCA 2002 
as subsequently amended)

NOTICE PUBLISHED UNDER 
SECTION 56(3)(a) OF THE PREVENTION 
OF CORRUPTION ACT 2002 (PoCA 2002)

NOTICE is hereby given that, oh an application 
made by the Independent Commission Against 
Corruption (ICAC), an Order has been made on 
26th February 2018 by the Honourable Judge at 
Chambers, as follows:-

(a) attaching into the hands of Mrs Marie 
Nathalie Francoise Jugun, bom Mudhoo, 
NID M1604700501289, (i) the motor car 
of the make “Nissan” bearing registration 
No 4103ZW07 and (ii) motorcycle bearing

. registration No 7052Z held by her;

(b) requiring the said Mrs Marie Nathalie 
Francoise Jugun, born Mudhoo, within 
48 hours of service of the Order, to declare 
in writing to the Applicant the nature and 
source of the money used for the purchase
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of the motor car and the motorcycle so 
attached; and

(c) prohibiting the said Mrs Marie Nathalie 
Francoise Jugun, born Mudhoo from 
transferring, pledging or otherwise 
disposing of any of the motor car or 
motorcycle so attached, except by an Order 
of the Honourable Judge upon good cause 
shown to his/her satisfaction.

THE said Order has been filed in the Registry of 
the Supreme Court of Mauritius.

THE attention of all banks, financial institutions, 
cash dealers and any other person who may hold 
or be vested with property belonging to or held on 
behalf of the abovenamed person, is hereby drawn 
to the above Order so that they may take note 
thereof and govern themselves accordingly.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Le Reduit, this 21st day of March, 2018.

Sultan SOHAWON 
of ICAC Headquarters, 
Reduit Triangle, Moka

Applicant’s Attorney

General Notice No. 535 of 2018

THE MEDICAL COUNCIL ACT 1999

In pursuance of section 30(1) of the Medical 
Council Act 1999 as amended, hereunder is the 
list of medical practitioners who are authorised to 
practise as general practitioners during the year 
2018.

February 19, 2018

Medical Council of Mauritius

SN NAME

1 ABDOOL Ahad Hossen
2 ABDOOL GAFFOOR Assad - Ullah
3 ABDOOL KARRIM Yazid Tael
4 ABDOOLA Abdoolsatar Mohammad Djamshid
5 ABDUL RAMAN Sheik-Ally
6 AB1LACK Ashvalsingh
7 ABOOBAKAR A.R.Mohamed Hassam
8 ABOOBAKAR Shahina

SN NAME

9 ABOOLATIFF Khateeja
10 ACKBARKHAN Lila
11 ADJODAH Girjakumar
12 ADNATH Lomash
13 AH S1EN Kwet Seem
14 AH SING Marie Beatrice Jessica
15 AH SUE Gilbert Georges
16 AHMED Munir Wasim
17 AJOODHEA Harsha
18 AKUNG Hrishikesha
19 ALLARAKHA Mohammad Aaftaab
20 ALLOCK Anishta
21 ALLUSA1B Nadeem
22 ALLYBOCUS Abdool Cader
23 ALLYBOKUS Abdool Raouf
24 ALLYKHAN Muhammad Muhsin Khan
25 AMBOORALLEE Sheik Yusouf
26 AMEERUDDEN Riyaz Ahmad
27 AMEERUDDEN Rizwan Ahmad Issa
28 AMIN - BUSSAWON Ehshana Bibi
29 AMIR KHAN Mishall Ibrahim Sheriff
30 ANAMALAY Elvanee
31 ANCHARAZ Maydhavruttji
32 ANCHARAZ Vidyavrattjee
33 ANCHARAZ-RAGHOO Lalita
34 ANUNDROW Dawlutsaitrow
35 APPADOO Appalsamy
36 APPADOO Rajendra
37 APPADOO Sarojni
38 APPAPOULAY Sydney Laval
39 APPAVOO Khrisna
40 APP1AH Sunita
41 APPIAH Vishnu
42 ARASEN Juffray
43 ARASEN Vanisah
44 ARZOON Titrasen
45 ASHRAF Mackbool MirrNaazim
46 ASIRIAH Avinash
47 ASKOOLUM Kushluv Brihas
48 ATCHIA Ahmad Ibrahim
49 ATCHIA Ibrahim Ismael
50 ATCHIA Mohamed Ahmad
51 ATCHIA Nawfal Ahmad Hassam
52 ATCHIA Zahrah Bibi
53 AUBDOOL Bibi Ruzida
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SN NAME

54 AUBDOOLLAH Kefayat Hussain
55 AUBDOOLLAH Tajammool Hussein
56 AUBEELACK Kushroo Avinish Varma
57 AUBEELUCK Ishwanee
58 AUCHRAJE Daksheena
59 AUCKBURALLY Bibi Nabiilah
60 AUCKEL Leena
61 AUCKLOO Sheik Mamode Swaley
62 AUDIT Leckrajsing
63 AUDIT Parveshsingh
64 AUDIT RAMTOHUL Suraksha
65 AUJEET Dushala
66 AUKAULOO-SA1RALLY Bibi Asiana
67 AUKHOJEE Maneesha
68 AUKHOJEE Yasheel Kumar
69 AULEEAR Arjoon Kreshan
70 AULEEAR Sadick Hossen
71 AULLYBUX Mohamed
72 AUMEER Hurreeprem
73 AUMEER Muazzam Ally
74 AUMEER Ratna
75 AUMEER Roshan Kumar
76 AUMEERALLY Mohammad Rafiq
77 AURTARAM Yudish
78 AUTAR Denisha Devi
79 AWOOTAR Neetyanundsingh
80 AYASSAMY Govinden
81 AZMUTALLY Bibi Kawthur
82 BABOO Ibne Saoud
83 BABOOA Asutosh Khushal
84 BABOORAM Praban Ankesh
85 BACCUS Shaheen Banu
86 BACHONEE Rajeev Kumar
87 BADAL Hemeestha Devi
88 BADAL Indradeo
89 BADOORALLY Bibi Fehmeedah
90 BADRY Shri Krish Sinha
91 BADULLA Mohammad Ahmed Sakil Mean
92 BAGEERATHI Sneesha
93 BAGHANavraksha
94 BAHADOOR Mahmud Fareed
95 BAHADOOR Muhammad Ridwaan
96 BAICHOO Drivin
97 BAICHOO Manjeeta
98 BAIJNATH Parima Luxmi

SN NAME

99 BAKERALLY Nazia Begum
100 BALLAM Khaleem Ibn
101 BALLAM Uzmah Banoo
102 BALLAM Waseem Ibn
103 BALLGOBIN Ashiana
104 BALLOO Gessan Teewari
105 BALLOO Yanesha
106 BALLUCK Kashish Kumar
107 BALLYSING-DAVIDSEN Lakshee Devi
108 BALNAC Dhirendra
109 BANDHOOA Kavita
110 BANDHU Rajun
111 BANDHU Yashy
112 BANKUR Mustafa Nissar
113 BANNOO Neeraj Kumar
114 BANSY Varsha Devi
115 BAPTISTE Henry Bernard
116 BARAHIM Mohammad Shawkat-Ali
117 BARKATOOLAH Abdool Razack Shaik
118 BAROSEE Loknath
119 BAS ANT RAI Bhuvaneshlal
120 BASANT RAI Veenoo Devi
121 B AUHADOOR Shehaad
122 BAZ1RE Jean Luc P. E.
123 BECHOO Rishi Kumar
124 BEEBEEJAUN Beebee Mehjabeen
125 BEEDASSY Lekraj
126 BEEDASSY Balkrish Nath
127 BEEDASSY Kavita
128 BEEFNAH Rakesh Kumar
129 BEEGOO Sailesh Kumar
130 BEEGUN Mohamed Tasmin
131 BEEGUN Mohammad Naushad Soleman
132 BEEGUN Muhammad Ridwan Sultan
133 BEEGUN Razia Sultana
134 BEEHARRY Ashwin
135 BEEHARRY PANRAY Basoodeo
136 BEEHARRY PANRAY Urmila Devi
137 BEEHARRY Renuka
138 BEEHARRY-PANRAY Anwesha
139 BEEJADHUR Kurvind
140 BEEJADHURSING Kumari Doorguesh Nundunnee
141 BEEJAHAvneesh
142 BEEKARRY Kamaljeet
143 BEELTAH Satiajeet
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SN NAME

144 BEEMADOO Parakumaren
145 BEEMADOO Senthil Kumara
146 BEEMADOO Yovanen Yegadessen
147 BEESOON Jidda Vyas Shyam
148 BEESOONDOYAL Diksha
149 BEHAREE Kemley
150 BEKAROO Yashish
151 BERONY Jennah Veronique
152 BETCHOO Prabhavna Ayushi
153 BHADAIN Heena
154 BHADORIA Nandini
155 BHADYE Kamlesh Gupta
156 BHAGAILOO Farahnaz
157 BHAGEERUTTY Raksha
158 BHAGEERUTTY Trina Ityssa Kalawtee
159 BHAGWAN Narainsingh
160 BHAJOO Sirsingh Hurlesh
161 BHANTOOVimal
162 BHANTOOA Hansley
163 BHAUTOO Ritesh Kumar
164 BHAYROAvnish
165 BHAYRO Durga Deeya
166 BHEEKHARRY Dickshay
167 BHEENICK Divya
168 BHEENICK Mista
169 BHEENICK Muhammad Jibran
170 BHEENICK Preet
171 BHEENICK Ramchandra
172 BHEENICK Teerani
173 BHEUGEEROTHEE Devisha
174 BHINKAH Ashok
175 BHOGUN Meemansha
176 BHOJOO Pratima Devi
177 BHOJULNazia
178 BHOLAH Bibi Karina
179 BHOLAH Chandra Adisha
180 BHOLAH Chandra Reetisha
181 BHOLAH Deepti
182 BHOLAH Leckraj Amal
183 BHOLAH Mamode Kadil
184 BHOLAH Prema Devi
185 BHOLOA Swayam Kumar
186 BHOOJEDHUR Deepika
187 BHOOLAH Teekesh Sharma
188 BHOREE Benita

SN NAME

189 BHUDYE Rabindra Sharma
190 BHUGALOO Abdoollah Rashid
191 BH UGA LOO Bibi Shaguftah
192 BHUGALOO Mohamud Shah Nawaaz
193 BHUGELOO Ameeruddin Nooruddin
194 BHUGOO Abhinay Sharma
195 BHUGOO Arya Dev
196 BHUGOO Ravindradev
197 BHUGUN-AUMEERBOCUS Bibi Noor Afzah
198 BHUGUTH Bhavna
199 BHUGUTH Prakash
200 BHUJOHORY Vishwanee Singh
201 BHUJOO Rubina Ashika
202 BHUJOO Sutish Lutchmee Chandra
203 BHUJUN Roshan
204 BHUNJUN Danisha
205 BHUNJUN Hemlall
206 BHUNJUN Vanisha
207 BHUNNOO Akhtar Djameel
208 BHUNNOO Ammanoollah Goolam Mamode
209 BHUNNOO Ashfaaque Azhar
210 BHURTUN Haina Devi
211 BHURTUN Megprakash
212 BHUTOOAHYash
213 BICKHAN Nafissah
214 BINDAH Deepak Roy
215 BINDAH Laval Jean Pierre
216 BISNATHSING Luvnish
217 BISNATSINGH Hena
218 BISSESSUR Anousha
219 BISSESSUR Hansinee Lakshmi
220 BISSESSUR Pritiswary
221 BISSESSUR Toshan
222 BISSESSUR Vandana
223 BISSONAUTH Chandradev
224 BISSONAUTH Keshav
225 BISSONAUTH Priya
226 BISSOO Sandeep
227 BISSOON Vaneesa
228 B1SSOON-AS1R1AH Bhimla Devi
229 BOODHEEAAdam
230 BOODHNA Hooshan Dave
231 BOODHNA Javin
232 BOODHOO Asmita Priyashini
233 BOODHOO Bibi Najaah
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SN

234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278

NAME

BOODHOO Bibi Tassleemah
BOODHOO Ishwarduth
BOODHOO Kandhayalall Swaraz Sing
BOODHOO Rajeshwari
BOODHOO Ramraj
BOODHUN - HEEROO Smita
BOODHUN Rajesh
BOODHUN Abdullah Rashid
BOODHUN Amritlall
BOODHUN Geetanjali
BOODHUN Jayprakash
BOODOO Samirah
BOODRAM Gaitree
BOODRAM Prinal
BOOJHAWON Nina Vassilievna
BOOJHAWON Pushkar
BOOLAKY Mohammad Mirza Saahir
BOOPUTH Pritiviraj
BOSSOONDYAL Prittysingh
BOYKUNT Shyam Kumar
BR1ZMOHUN Parmanund
BROJMOHUN Ashin Hevendradass
BROJOLALL Hemlata
BROUSSE DE GERSIGNY Paul Gerard Ignace 
BUANTOA Dharmasingh
BUCHOO Yogesh
BUCKHORY Tejusvita
BUCKTOWAR Mili
BUCKTOWAR Nirvan
BUDDHOO Namrisha
BUDDHOO Nishal
BUDREE Kiran
BULDEWO Reema
BUNDHOO Anishta
BUNDHOO Kaashmee
BUNDHOO Renousha
BUNDHOO Yashmeeta
BUNDHUN - JAYPAUL Chundranee Devi
BUNDHUN Alina
BUNDHUN Chandini
BUNDHUN Diwakur
BUNDHUN Kamaakshi Divya
BUNDHUN Rishi
BUNHOJEE Premhans
BURAHEE Moostakim

SN NAME

279 BURAHEE Shabnam
280 BURAHEE Shabneez
281 BURJOOArvind
282 BURRUT Deepak
283 BURRUT Manraj
284 BUSAWON Avinash
285 BUSAWON Durgeswaree
286 BUSAWON Girish Vimalsing
287 BUSAWON Kavish Chandra Sharma
288 BUSAWON Mahjabeen
289 BUSAWON Nittyanand
290 BUSGEET Shazia Nausheen
291 BUSGEETH Asrafee Mohammad Jameel
292 BUSGEETH Prita Laksha
293 BUSGEETH Sardhanand
294 BUTONKEE Beebee Shabeenaz
295 BUTONKEE Mohammad Shehaad
296 BUTTOO Bhadra Sen
297 BUXOO Ahad
298 CADER Zhahireen Bibi Fataima
299 CALLICHARAN Nirma
300 CAMADOO Deeoti Vandana
301 CANAKIAH Mayvin
302 CAPIRON Marie Desiree Daneelah
303 CARRIMKHAN Muhammad Ziyaad
304 CASIMIR Louis Davidson
305 CASSE Serge Bertie Gaetan
306 CATHAN Parvesh
307 CATHAPERMAL Davin
308 CATHERINE Emma Lydwine
309 CAULACHANDYudishtir
310 CAUNHYE Ayesha
311 CAUNHYE Mohammad Ajmal
312 CHAKOUREE Kavirdeepsingh
313 CHAMAN Aleem
314 CHAN YUM WING Huai Sheng
315 CHANDRAMONEY Gulshan
316 CHANG SENG YUE Louis Renaud
317 CHATHAROO Rayhana R. Aziza
318 CHATHAROO-BALLAM Mehnaaz
319 CHAVRIMOOTOO Odile
320 CHEETAMUN Keshwuree
321 CHEETOO Hetal Diksha
322 CHEETOO Varun Tejusvee
323 CHETTY Thelma Chitra



1216 The Mauritius Government Gazette

SN

324
325
326
3^7
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368

NAME

CH1NAPIEL Rebecca
CHINIAH Manu
CHINIAH Shailesh
CHINIAH Yogeshswara
CH1NTARAM Ashweena
CHITAMUN Mohammad Saad Ahmad
CHOOAH Outesh
CHOONEE Wardah Nabiihah
CHOONEEA Bashistraj
CHOONY Akhil Kumar Doomara
CHOONY Raghinee
CHOORAMUN Mitesh
CHOWTEE Yuviraj
CHU SANG Wong San Yee
CHUI WAN CHEONG Audrey Patricia
CHUMMUN Anoushka Medhavee
CHUMMUN Dev
CHUMMUN Yatisha
CHUMROO Mohammad Reshad
CHUMUN Ritesh
CHUMUN Sanat Kumar Trivedi
CHUNG CHAI TSANG Jean Bertrand Tet Min
CHUNNOO Komalprasad
CHUNNOO Neena
CHUNNOO Preety Khatry
CHUNNOO Yanish
CHUT-KAI KHOODORUTH Widaad Nuzhah
CHUTOORGOON Anjali
CHUTTOO Indrima
CHUTTOO Mohammud Ackhmez
CHUTTUR Satya Prakash
CONHYEA Vishal Hitesh
CONHYEDASS Pravesh
CONTAVADOO Manuraj
COODRATTY Rafiq
COOLEN Luvishendra
COOLEN Sirouven
COONJAN Manjusha Devi
COONJUL Satianand
COO WAR Muhammad Ashraf Ayoob 
COUACAUD Marie Joseph Michel Robert 
CUNDASAMY-NUNKOO Lovena
CUNDEN Shivanee Modely
CUNDEN Soopramanien Modeliar 
CUNTHEN UJOODHA Salonee

SN NAME

369 CURPEN NAICK Khoosboo
370 DABEE Bhumika Devi
371 DABEE Rana Kumar
372 DABEE Satiss Kumar
373 DABYPenushka
374 DABY Samarjit Singh
375 DAMADARSING Lutchmee Canti Sheila
376 DAMREE Chandradeep
377 DAMRYKeshwar
378 DARGAYE Zareen
379 DAS Lovelina
380 DASH Deepam Jyoti
381 DASSYNE Khemraj Kanee
382 DAURAT Marie Dominique
383 DAUREEAWO Razia Banu
384 DAUSOA Ravi Gulshan
385 DAWONATH Ashweena Sharma
386 DAWONAUTH Lalita
387 DAWOODHARRY Jay a Priyadarshinee
388 DAWOODKHAN Mohammad Riyad
389 DAWOOLUT Avinash Raj
390 DAYAL Jayprakash
391 DAYAL Vidya Luxmee
3 92 DEELAWAR B ib i Ameena
393 DEELAWAR Bibi Waardanaaz
394 DEELAWAR Mohamed Parvez
395 DEELCHAND Anil
396 DEELCHAND Jayeshree Asha
397 DEENOO Parveshsingh Lutchmee
398 DEENOO Yashraj
399 DEEPCHAND Ashwinee Devi
400 DEEPCHAND Bhavesh Kumar
401 DEEPCHAND Geerish Vikram Nitish
402 DEEPCHAND Keshaw
403 DEERPAUL Dinesh
404 DEWKURUN Manisha Kumari
405 DHONDEA Ashwini Bye
406 DHOOPUN Asish Roopchand
407 DHOOPUN Kaushall Guru Chandra
408 DHOORUNDHUR Sandeep
409 DHOORUNDHUR Yuvrajsingh
410 DHOTAH Amreesh Sharma
411 DHOTAH Pooja Devi
412 DHUNNOO Bhojrazsingh
413 DHUNY Mohammad Iqbal
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SN

414
415
416
417
418
419
420

421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457

NAME

DHUNY Mohammad Siddiq
DHUNY Mohammad Adeeb
DHURN Lomus Rishi
DIGUMBER Rootradev
DILMAHAMOOD Mumtazallee
D1LMAHAMOOD Shabana
DILMAHOMED O.S.K. Mohammad Houssein
Ismael
DINAH Saleem
D1NAN Marie Desiree Pascale
DINASS1NG Aksha Valjee
DOBEE Jay Surunder
DODLA BHEMAH Cheetal
DOHEEANadjia Bibi Shabeena
DOMAH Chandra Rita
DOMAINGUE Paul Maurice Jacques
DOMUN Davina
DOMUN Dharmesh
DOMUN Ravind Kumar
DOMUN-MUNGLA Anisha
DOOBAREE Rishikesh
DOOKHEE Seedick
DOOKHEE Sucheeta Devi
DOOKHITH Azhaar Bibi Faatimah
DOOKHONY Mervin
DOOKHOO Mahmud Farouk
DOOKHYAdarsh
DOOKUN Chandveensingh Rambans
DOOKUN Irwin Kumar
DOOKUN Lina Kirtisha
DOOKUN Ravesh Kumar
DOOKUN Ravesh Kumar
DOOMAN Neermal Kumar
DOORGA Divya
DOORGA Mithilesh Shakti Verma
DORKHY Geeta Devi
DOSTALLY-EMRITH Ghedy
DOVE Patrick Jerry
DOWLUT Bibi Mashuma
DOWLUT Mohammad Ismet
DOWLUT Mohammad Javed
DOWLUT Poorun
DOWLUT Sooren
DUDHEE Vrishun
DULLOO Arshad

SN NAME

458 DUMUR Manish
459 DUMUR Shunjay
460 DUPONT DE RIVALZ DE ST ANTOINE Eloise

Martine
461 DURGAHEE Mamade Saleem
462 DUSSOYE Kareshmawattee
463 DWARKANilma
464 DWARKA Pharvesh Sharma
465 DYALL Linda
466 EARALLY Mahmad Yousouf
467 EATHALLY Mohammad Azhar
468 EATHALLY Rizvi
469 EATHALLY Yana Viktorovna
470 EDDOONooria
471 EDOO Mohammad Naasir-Ud-Diin
472 EDOUARD Brice Pierre Jean
473 EDUMALAYEM Parameshwaree
474 ELISA Jean Albin Thierry
475 ELLAHEBOKUS Ali Ashraf
476 ELLAHEEBUKSH Muhammud Fardeen
477 EMAMALLY Mohummud Ismail
478 EMAMBOCCUS Faatimah
479 EM1LIEN Joseph Ramiel
480 EMMAMBUX Beebee Shahinshad
481 EMRITH Roshni
482 ERADHUN Haroon
483 ESSOOF Amanullah Ahmad
484 ETWAR Preeyamvadah Durga Devi
485 ETWAROOAH Abdoullah Ibrahim
486 FAGOONEE Yogeshwaree
487 FAKIM Abid
488 FAKIM Ahmed
489 FAKIM Lailah Bibi
490 FAKIM Sheilah Bibi
491 FAUZEE Abdool Raffick
492 FAZALL Fayyaz-Ud-Din
493 FEDALLY Aboo Swalay
494 FEDALLY Yusuf Ali
495 FINETTE Joseph Regis Lino
496 FOKEENA Nahid Begum
497 FOKEERCHAND Ashvin
498 FOOKEERAH Sharuna
499 FOONDUN Abdool Haye
500 FOONDUN Bibi Atika
501 FOONDUN Mohamed Yasser
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SN NAME SN NAME

502 FOONDUN Mohammad Khalid 547 GOOLJAR Vira Bohdanivna
503 FOONDUN Uzma Aneeza 548 GOOLJAR-BEELTAH Hemlata Sreshta
504 FOWDAR Mohammad Yousaah 549 GOOLZAR Pratimah
505 FOWDUR Leshmee 550 GOOMANY Vikash
506 FOWDUR Manesha 551 GOONJUR Amresh Kumar
507 FRANCOIS Joseph Bruno 552 GOORAH Rakeshwar
508 FRANCOIS Sebastien 553- GOORAH Sanjay
509 FULENA Chandrgupta Jugmohansingh 554 GOORDEE Phumavesh Patil
510 FUTLOO Yildiz Bibi Ayesha 555 GOORIAH Ronny Dewa
511 GAJADHUR Ritesh 556 GOOR1AH Tej Chandra
512 GAJEELEE Amit 557 GOPAL Rajiv
513 GANESHAN Mogana 558 GOPAL Rohini
514 GAONEADRY Amar 559 GOPALL Fieldsun
515 GAR1BDASS Pawan Kumar 560 GOPALL Satyaprakash
516 GAUZEE Noushrine 561 GOPAUL Komaldev
517 GAYA Saraswatee 562 GOPAUL Naseema

518 GEDDEDU BIJLOLL Shardhanjali Rao 563 GOPAUL Rajesswari
519 GEELANI Sajad Hussain 564 GOPAUL Roodrajeetsing

520 GEERDHARRY Billkiss 565 GOPAUL TAUCOORY Ansheeka Devi

521 GENAVE Marie Antoinette Julienne 566 GOPAUL Yuktisha Haarshee Khusboo
522 GHALLU Priyadarshini 567 GOPEE Bhumika Bhavna
523 GHAMY Bibi Adeela 568 GOPEE Olesya Evgenyevna
524 GHANTY Mohamed Iqbal Ebrahim 569 GOPEE Vanesha Arma Devi
525 GHOORAH Roshan Kumar 570 GOPEE Vickas
526 GHOORAH Tejas 571 GOUNOWREE Chitra

527 GHUNOWA Mithun 572 GOUREAH Abhisek
528 GILL Dhir Inder Singh 573 GOVIND Hans Dave Goonajee
529 GOBARDHUN Rishi 574 GOVINDEN Diowensen Naidu
530 GOBIN Bhurdeo 575 GOV1NDEN Doreesha Mevina
531 GOBIN Devishka 576 GOVINDRAMEN Rouvani
532 GOBIN Navita 577 GOWREESUNKER Baboo Hemandranath Singh

533 GO BIN Seewooshankar 578 GOWREESUNKUR Purvarshi Devi
534 GOBURDHONE Sheetal Luxmi 579 GOWRYDOSS Koshal
535 GOBURDHONE Vishaal Dass 580 GROODOYAL Shakuntala Devi
536 GOKHUL Minakshee 581 GUJADHUR Doorgesh
537 GOKOOL Teelucksingh 582 GUJADHUR Priscilla
538 GOLAMAULLY Mohamad Farrdeen 583 GUJADHUR Roovish
539 GOLAMHOSEN Mohammad Ziad 584 GUJADHUR Vasantrao
540 GONES Avinash 585 GUJADHUR Vaydehee Amrawtee
541 GOOD AR Kreetsing Varma 586 GUKHO'OL Geeanduth
542 GOOLAMALLY Irshad 587 GUNDOLAH Niteen Raj

543 GOOLAMNOBEE Rafic 588 GUNESS Adeel
544 GOOLJAR CHOONEEA Madhuri Devi 589 GUNESS Naresh Kumar
545 GOOLJAR Rishi Kumar 590 GUNESS Pravesh Kumar

546 GOOLJAR Usha Devi 591 GUNGAH Pradeepmanee
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592 GUNGAH Prithivraj Dwarkanath
593 GUNNESS Anjuli Pooja
594 GUNNESS Tavisha
595 GUNNOO Urvashi Neha
596 GUNPUTH Sweta Bimla
597 GURBAH Ahlock Sharma
598 GURRIB Muazzama Baano
599 GUTTOO Parishma Devi Singh
600 GUTTY Bhamini
601 G YA Leckraj
602 GYARAM Hemraj
603 HAJEE ABDOULA Khadijah Abdul Cader
604 HAJEE ABDOULA Abdul Latiff Adam Alli Mamode
605 HAMJA Wasiim Ayman
606 HANMUNTA Michel Darel Stephano
607 HANSROD Shireen Claire
608 HARBEC-ATCHIA Aline
609 HASOWA Vidurduth
610 HAULKORY Kevin Kumarsing
611 HAULKORY Komal
612 HAUROO Abdullah Yasaar Anwar
613 HAUZAREE Chandanbindya
614 HEERAH Anushka
615 HEERAH Bibi Faeeza
616 HEERAH Vidhi
617 HEERBANNALLY Maxime Raoufovich
618 HEESAMBEE-PEEROO Yasmina Banoo
619 HEMRAGE Bassoudev
620 HEMRAGE -MUSSAFEER Aweeshna Sharma
621 HEMRAJ Vishant Sarvajeet Kumar
622 HEMUTALLY Saira Banu
623 HINGUN Shahbaaz Hussein
624 HOOKOOM Balkissoon
625 HOOLOOMAN Kumari Nalini
626 HORILL-SOOKUR Smita
627 HOSANY Mohammed Shaheed Noorany
628 HOSANY Muhammad Irshaad
629 HOSANY Muhammad Nadeem
630 HOSANY Nausheen Aminah
631 HOSENIE Adeela Saira
632 HOSSENBACCUS Ahmad
633 HOSSENBACCUS Ehsan
634 HOSSENBOCUS Mohammad Faizal
635 HOSSENY-GOOLAMALLY Ameedah Beebee

Adilah Noorinah

SN NAME

636 HOW SAW KENG Patrick
637 HUJJAREE Hoomesh
638 HUJJAREE Khamlesh
639 HULKOREE Shaadaab
640 HULKURY Insheerah Bibi
641 HULLOOWAN Leessit Sharma
642 HURDAYYuvraj
643 HURRY Dhyaneswar
644 HURRY Dixshi
645 HUSNOO Mohamad Tamraize
646 IBRAHIM Mohammud Saleem
647 IBRAHIM SAIB Nasser
648 IBRAHIM Shabneez Bibi
649 IBRAHIM Tasneem
650 IMRIT Bibi Zuleka
651 INDERJEET Adarshsingh
652 INDERJEET Goolabsingh
653 INDUR Toolashna
654 ISSACK Aadila Issop
655 ISSANY-KHODABUX Muniirah Banon
656 ISSARSING Hemkushalsing
657 ISSARSING Teenushka
658 ISSIMDAR Abdool Nasser
659 ISSIMDAR Beebee Sultana
660 ISSUREE Kiran Kumar Jimmy
661 ISSUREE Vidya
662 JACKARIA Abdool Carrim Abdool Satar
663 JAGARNATH Kevin
664 JAGESSUR Yashwini
665 JAHADJEE Amamathsingh
666 JAHAN Irreesha Bibi
667 JAHANGEER Rashid
668 JAHMEERBACCUS Nabeelah Banon
669 JALIM Mohammad Javed
670 JANABADI Kamlesh
671 JANGI Jayesh Kumar
672 JANKEE Divyanand
673 JANKEE Nasheen Oopuddhye
674 JANNOO - BHEWA Farzanah
675 JANNOO - KURRIMBUKUS Bibi Amirah
676 JAUFEERALLY Sheereen
677 JAULIM Azeemah Ben Nasseem
678 JAULIM Bibi Sheereen Banu
679 JAUNBOCUS Kabed
680 JAUNBOCUS Shayma
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681 JAUNKY Kumul Chandr 725 JOORAWON Anassooroulla
682 J AWAHEER Abdool Rahman 726 JOORAWON Zarine
683 JAYPAUL Nardawoo 727 JOOSUB SAHEBALLY Noorina Bhaye
684 JEEANA Sundeep 728 JOOTUN Yeshvant
685 JEEBUN Bijaye Kumar 729 JOOTY Nitin
686 JEELALL Yogendra Koomar 730 JOTEEAshvin
687 JEENAH Mahmadhussein 731 JOWAHEER Bibi Masoodah
688 JEENATHALLY Shuaib Bin Abdool Majeed 732 JOWAHEER Dhaneshwar
689 JEENATHALLY Surayah Bibi 733 JOWAHEER Muhammad Tahzeem
690 JEERAKUN Namrata 734 JOWAHEER Munir Ahmad
691 JEETAH Joshi 735 JOWAHIR Mohammad Ishaq
692 JEETUN Nirusha Devi 736 JOYEKURUN Levin Anklesh
693 JEETUN Amritraj Mohith Kumar 737 JOYPAUL Kamlesh
694 JEETUN Hemeshwaraj 738 JOYPAUL RAMSAHA Poonam Devi
695 JEEWOOT Oveen 739 JUGESSUR Deeneswaree
696 JHAGDAMBI Pushtida Devi 740 JUGESSUR Deepa Devi
697 JHAWRYKavish 741 JUGESSUR Raj
698 JHAWRY Kavisha 742 JUGESSUR Reena
699 JHINGOOREE Dooshida 743 JUGESSUR Shavrina
700 JHOOLLUN Bhavish 744 JUGGOO Bhurutt Kumar
701 JHOREE Parmanand 745 JUGGOO Chaya
702 JHUGROO Poojdev 746 JUGGOO Ghanshyam
703 JHUMMON - GILL Ouchita 747 JUGHALOA Sachindev
704 JHUMMUN Vineet 748 JUGNAH BOODHOO Yogeeta
705 JHURKUT Vashista Sharma 749 JUGON Feruddin
706 JHURRY Doorgesh 750 JUGON Noor Zaynah
707 JHURRY Muhummad Anas 751 JUGOO Hemlata
708 JHURRY Wassimah Bibi 752 JUGOO Vinesh Khanna
709 J1NGREE Tejasvee 753 JUGROO Hamish
710 JODHEEA-JUTTON Abha 754 JUGURNAUTH Jessen
711 JODHUN Lutchmee 755 JUGURNAUTH Roshanlata Devi
712 JOGOO Veermatee Devi 756 JUNGLEEA Devishwaree
713 JOOMAYE Dildan Hussein 757 JUNGLEEA Nitin Sharma
714 JOOMRATEE Moubarak Jamiil Mouhammad 

Moubiin
758
759

JUTTUN Dristy
KADEER Luqmaan Farsheed

715 JOOMUN Fawaz Cassim 760 KADEER Muhammad Zayd
716 JOOMUN Kausar Banon 761 KADEER Shazia
717 JOOMUN Mohammad Faraz 762 KADEER Shehzana Malleck
718 JOOMUN Mohammad Hyder Ali 763 KADERBACCUS Mohammad Alfaz
719 JOOMUN Mohammad Rizwan 764 KALISETTY - APPADU Neerusha
720 JOOMUN PEERALLY Bibi Zeinab 765 KALISETTY APPADU Kavitree Fowdar
721 JOOMUN RaydaAaishah 766 KALISETTY APPADU Veemen
722 JOOMUN Shaheena 767 KALLEE Simla Devi
723 JOOMUN Suraiya Banon 768 KALLYCHURN Yashpal Singh
724 JOOMYE Aboo Bakar 769 KANDHAI-CHUMUN Anusha Devi
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770
771
772

773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813

NAME

KANEERAM Sapna
KANHYE Ranveersingh
KARREEMAN-DAWREEAWO Zareen Banu
Niloufer
KASAMUN Bibi Najiyah
KASENALLY Habibullah
KASSIM Mohammad Nazim
KATHRADA Mohammad Ishraque Shaukat
KATTAN Vishnoo
KAUROOArshad
KAUROO Gulzareen
KEDOO Bibi Hoozaifa
KEENOO Aboo Sidick
KEENOO Hashim
KEENOO Mahmad Saleem
KEENOO Muhammad Suhail
KEENOO Yousouf
KEERPAUL Veshak Kumar
KEETARUT Shrishchandr Brizen
KESSEWNATH Kevin Raj
KHADAROO Devi
KHADAROO Naaziabee
KHADAROO Samsuddin
KHAMAJEET Kavita Devi
KHAN Bibi Shaheen
KHAN Muneer Hussain
KHAYRATTEE Bibi Sourayyah
KHEDUN Diana
KHEDUN Mohammud Acksanne
KHODABACCUS Mohammad Adeel
KHODABACUS - GUJADHUR Bibi Alimah
KHODABOCUS Fazil Mahmad
KHODABOCUS Mohammad Azhar
KHODABOCUS Mohammad Reza
KHODABOCUS Sajidkhan
KHODABUX Sameenah Banon
KHOODORUTH Bibi Razia Shabnam
KHOODORUTH Yousouf Abdoul Azize
KHOYRATTEE Roubinah
KHUDNY Sandeep
KHURWOLAH Mohammad Reeaze
KINNOO Tina
K1SSOON - DEENOO Sarveshwaree
KISTNAREDDY Koomaraisen
KOOBER Ghata

SN NAME

814 KOOBLALL Leena
815 KOODRUTH Bibi Zafiirah
816 KOOLWANT Varsha
817 KOON SUN PAT Marvin Kee Choy
818 KOONJAH Goorooduth
819 KOONJOOBEEHARRY Yashwiny
820 KOONJUL Sheekha
821 KOREEMUN Vashista Laxmi
822 KORIMBOCUS Nabilah Batul
823 KOWLESSUR Dhanilall
824 KOWLESSUR Uma Devi
825 KUNDOMAL Amrita
826 KUPPUSWAMI Kumar
827 KUREEMUN Abdool Mahaboob
828 KUREEMUN Bibi Rahiba
829 KUREEMUN Bibi Rawzia
830 KURREEMAN Enayat Hussein
831 KURREEMAN Muhammad Ehteshaam Hussein
832 KURRUMCHAND Nathasha
833 KURRUMCHAND Vidoushanand Puthee
834 KUT MOY CHEUNG Khoy Chong
835 LALLJEE Hemant Kumar
836 LALLJEE Shalini
837 LALLJEE Tekraz
838 LALLMAHOMED Shaheena
839 LALLMAHOMED Mohammad Waseem
840 LALLMAHOMED Ridwan
841 LALLOO Sheik Mohammad Iqbal
842 LAM CHAM KEE Christopher Kune Fee
843 LAN CHEONG WAH Claude Bernard
844 LAN CHEONG WAH Fabienne Nancy
845 LAN CHEONG WAH Kenny Foh Shin
846 LAN CHEONG WAH Lan Man Hiew
847 LEGRIS Marie Jenny Christabelle
848 LEONG SIT Marie Laura Siat Chin
849 LESTE Cynthia Paola
850 LEUNG PAK WING Krystel Kim Moy
851 LEUNG TANG Therese Andre
852 LEVEQUE Hilbert
853 LI SUI FONG Li Kwong Yoong
854 LI YUET CHEONG Lee Kwe Tong
855 LIMALIA Aboobakar Mahmad
856 LIMBAJEE Magane
857 LIMBEEA Vishal
858 LLANES RAVENEAU Jose Luis
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859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888
889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903

NAME

LOCHUNAH Prashaant
LOCK SON Keong Chao Ah Yee
LOKHUN Natasha Devi
LOKHUN Sailesh Kumar 
LOLLBEEHARRY Keshan Singh
L’OMELETTE Arnaud Dominique 
LOTUN Bhavna
LOUIS Cinthya Sara
LOWTUN Mohammad Irshad 
LUCHMAH Roomah
LUCHMAN Chettundranath 
LUCHOOMUN Rahul Dev 
LUCHOOMUN Smriti 
LUCKEENARA1N Sheetal Leena 
LUCKHOO Muhammad Altaaf 
LUCKHUN Bibi Mehnaz 
LUCKNAUTH Gundraj Pandit 
LUTCHMANEN Varusha 
LUTCHMIAH Yuvraj
LUTCHMUN Deojendra Sen Ritish
LUTCHMUN Ravi
LUTTOO Mohammad Adhil
MADELEINE Louis Pierre Jean-Francois 
MADHOO Yash Dan
MADHOU Ashish
MADHOU Dharmraj
MAGHOO Samsoodeen
MAGHOO Shamima
MAHABIR JEEHA Diyalakshmi 
MAHABOOB Sheriff
MAHADAWO Vijeta
MAHA DEA Santaram
MAHADEO Varun Kumar
MAHADEO Vinay Kumar
MAHADOO Arvin Rao
MAHAMED HUSSAIN Ootbah 
MAHAMODHOSSEN Zaynah Shabneez 
MAHAMOODALLY Mahmud Shamin 
MAHDER Rishi Rao
MAHOMED Yasser Ally
MAHOMED Muhamad Zaid
MAKOON Munawwara Begum
MAMODE SAIB Oomey Rooman 
MAMODEBACCUS Sheik Shafi
MAMOOJEE Salma Said Ahmad

SN NAME

904 MANDARUN Mohammad Ridwan Ally
905 MANEE Hans
906 MANEE Ithisha
907 MANGOU Mamode Nasser
908 MANGROO Akshay Anand
909 MANGROO Anu Medha
910 MANGROO Devendre
911 MANGROO Kishal
912 MANGROO Sandeep
913 MANNA Virmala
914 MARDAMOOTOO Ravi
915 MAREACHEALEE Shobha
916 MARIE-JEANNE Jacques Michael
917 MAROAM Taruna
918 MARTIN Francoise
919 MARTIN Marie Anne Valerie
920 MARUDAI Rivishen
921 MATADEEN Deerren
922 MATADEEN Divij
923 MATADEEN Olga
924 MATADEEN Praveen Kumar
925 MATHOORAH Disha Devi
926 MATHOORAH Manisha Devi
927 MATHURE Muhammad Tawfiik
928 MATOO Reshvin
929 MAUDARBACCUS Anifa Bibi
930 MAUDARBOCUS FayezAlly
931 MAUDARBOCUS Mohammad Mohay-Ud-Deen 

Jeelani
932 MAUDARBOCUS Sahid
933 MAUDARBOCUS Siddick
934 MAUDHOO Capooravally
935 MAUDHOO Vydhiadhur-Vijay Kumarsingh
936 MAUNGOO Ibrahim
937 MAUNKEEAsha
938 MAUTADIN Vivekanand
939 MAWLAH Shu’aib '•
940 MEENOWA Prashant
941 MEETHOO-BADULLA Bibi Kursheed Tazeem
942 MEWAH Yalinee
943 MEWA-MOTI Smita
944 MIRBABAI Homa
945 MITTOO Mohammad Yaseen
946 MOHABEER Meneesha Devi
947 MOHABEER Prameshwarsingh
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948 MOHABEER Sanjana 993 MOTTEEA Hemkesh
949 MOHABUTH Yasaar Ali 994 MOTTEEA Roochita
950 MOHADEO Siddhraj 995 MOTYE Nooresh
951 MOHAMUDALLY Sheik Ahmad Fawzi 996 MOUSSA Asraf Careem
952 MOHAMUDBUCUS Bibi Shamnaaz 997 MOVSISYAN Atrur
953 MOHANGOO Bipin Kumar 998 MOWN AH Aboo Bakar Adil
954 MOHEE Narsing 999 MOWNAH Zainab
955 MOHEE Sureka Devi 1000 MUDDAPAH Creeshen Pillay
956 MOHEEPUT Dheegvinash 1001 MUDHOO Robindranath
957 MOH1T Abdul Raazick 1002 MUDHOO Shahe-Jaham-Ibne Selim
958 MOHIT Fareeaa 1003 MUDHOO Vedanand
959 MOHIT Janita 1004 MUDUN Girish
960 MOHIT Muhammad Adil 1005 MUKAN Shroutee Kamala Devi
961 MOHUN Komal Asha 1006 MUNBODH Prabodh
962 MOHUNGOO Bibi Faatimah Shaaista 1007 MUND1L Romila
963 MOHUNGOO Sheik Mohammad Irfaan 1008 MUNGAR Khushyant
964 MOHUNGOO Widaad Banu 1009 MUNGLA Bhimansingh
965 MOIDEEN Mohammad Zaid 1010 MUNGLOO Noorshad Zulekha
966 MOLABACCUS Ackmez Ali 1011 MUNGLY Khaalid Bin Reza
967 MOLOO Yogesh 1012 MUNGLY Shazia Farah Kader
968 MOONEGAN Balakisnen 1013 MUNGROO Mohammad Nizam
969 MOONSAMY Vedhiyen 1014 MUNGROOSING Mila Devi
970 MOORADHUN Nabiil 1015 MUNGUN Hansha
971 MOORGHEN Keven 1016 MUNGUR Abhay Shrikanth
972 MOORUTH Maharishi 1017 MUNGUR Drushilla Luxmee
973 MOOSDEEN Sheik Abdool Kader 1018 MUNGUR Ishanee Devi
974 MOOSSAJEE Shafeenaz Bibi 1019 MUNGUR Ounisha
975 MOOSUN Shareefah Bibi 1020 MUNGUR Rajendra Kumar
976 MOOTEALOO Mervyn Sai-Krishen 1021 MUNGUR Vageesh
977 MOOTHIEN PILLAY Rama Krishna 1022 MUNOHUR Deepika
978 MOOTIEN Teeroomalay 1023 MUNUSAM1 Dhanarajen
979 MOOTOOSAMY Luximibye 1024 MURDEN Steeven Govinda
980 MOOTOOSAMY Sivananda Yogarajen 1025 MURUGAN Ajagen
981 MOOTOOSAMY Thiruniana Pajani Andee 1026 MUTHOORA Kamleshwar
982 MORABY Bibi Waseela 1027 MUTTAROOA Omeshwar
983 MORABY Muhammad Bilaal 1028 NABAB Rajnish
984 MORABY Nawsheen 1029 NABEEBUX Mariambee
985 MOSAHEB Abdool Carrim 1030 NABYBACCUS Mohammad
986 MOSAHEB Abdool Rasheed 1031 NAGA NASEEBUN Anisha
987 MOSAHEB Farouk 1032 NAGALINGUM Siva Soondari Ammal
988 MOSSODEEA Nooree Nibaal 1033 NAGA-MAGHOO Seema Bindiya
989 MOTALEB-MUNUSAMI Sabrina 1034 NAHABOO Reschad
990 MOTEE Anusha Devi 1035 NAHOOR Muhammad Muniir Djameel
991 MOTHOORA Veenesha 1036 NAIKEN Gopali Sama
992 MOTI Shaywin 1037 NAIKEN GOPALLA Youven
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1038 NAJEER Yusuff Ali 1083 NUZOOA Liaquat Hoossen
1039 NAKEY Vidousha 1084 NUZOOA Rizwaan Hoossen
1040 NALAYA Vashist Rao 1085 OAR1S Akbar
1041 NAOJEE Ambedhkar Shantaram 1086 OJEERALLY Yusra Bibi Shamsoon Nissaa
1042 NARAIDOO Allen Chandra Rao 1087 OODALLY Farida Bibi
1043 NARAIDOO Ana Del Carmen 1088 OOGORAH Anshley
1044 NARAYANA PILLAY Magessen 1089 OOZEERKHAN Abdool Raoufkhan
1045 NARRAINEN Nadia 1090 OOZEERKHAN Rayhan Khan
1046 NARRAINEN-MAUTADIN Davishny 1091 OREE Gaitree Devi
1047 NARRA1NSAWMY Shivapragassen 1092 OREE Prishila Devi
1048 NARSIMULU Balakrishna 1093 ORI Bhooshun
1049 NAWOOR Mohammad Ally Asgar 1094 OSMAN - ABOOBAKER Fahmida
1050 NAYENN Asleena Devi 1095 OSMAN Abdul Hassan Azad Mahomed
1051 NAZIR Sayed Nisar Sayed Abdull Rashid 1096 OSMAN I Wardah
1052 NEEAHMUTH Asif Ali 1097 OUT1M Bibi Marziyah
1053 NEERMUL Janita 1098 PAC SOO Shia Kim Nien
1054 NEKITS1NG Bhaveeshsing 1099 PADARUTH Darshan
1055 NEK1TSING Indima 1100 PADIACHY Diana
1056 NEPTUNE-MADELEINE Marie Joyce Christina 1101 PAKEEREE Shanmoogum Sam
1057 NG HOW TSEUNG Yan Thiam 1102 PALARAM Breetisha Navrana Waneesha
1058 NIAMUT Mohammad Ali 1103 PANCHCOORY Shashi Kumar
1059 NILAMBER Kooshal 1104 PANDEN Govilen
1060 NILPLATANA Kavina Devi 1105 PARAOUTY Nashreen Bano
1061 NOBEEBUX Shikha 1106 PARRICK Valentina Alfredovna
1062 NOBEEN Ashneul Prithivirajsing 1107 PARRYANEN Tamordaren
1063 NOJIB Bibi Naailah 1108 PARSURAMEN Kovila
1064 NOORD  ALLY Pamela 1109 PATHACK Amita Mohabeer
1065 NOORDALLY Santa 1110 PATH A K Nirvana
1066 NOORMAHOMED Hashim 1111 PATHER Vijayalutcheemee
1067 NOWBUTH Henna 1112 PATPUR Kritish Dixit
1068 NOWBUTH Rageenni 1113 PATPUR Nitindra
1069 NUBHEEBUCUS Muhammad Ishraq Asil 1114 PATPUR Shailendra
1070 NUCKCHADY Mohammud Aadil 1115 PATTOO-DAJEE Resha
1071 NUCKCHED Amrish 1116 PAUPAMAH Vumah Devi
1072 NUGESSUR Chetan Rai 1117 PAYANDI PILLAY Linganaden
1073 NUGGESSUR Ravi 1118 PEELONAH Pumadarshini Devi
1074 NUJURALLY Fareshma 1119 PEERALLY Abdoolah
1075 NUNDLALL Kamlesh 1120 PEERALLY Ahmad Noorani Chamrah
1076 NUN DLALL Philippe Rabindranath 1121 PEERALLY Bibi Sakina
1077 NUNDLALL Tilochun Ram 1122 PEERALLY Faryal
1078 NUNDOO Pravind Kumar 1123 PEERALLY Hawah Bi
1079 NUNDOO Surendrasingh 1124 PEERALLY Mahmad Farhad
1080 NUNDOO Vikhi 1125 PEERAULLY Suleiman Rachid
1081 NUNKOO Vikram Kumar 1126 PEERBACCUS Mohammad Yanez Ibne Idris .
1082 NUNKOO Brijendrr Rai Singh 1127 PEERBUX Bibi Shaaista
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1128 PEERBUX Mohamud Raffick 1173 PURRYAG Paawan
1129 PEEROO Abd-El Rahman 1174 PURSUN Kailash Sharma
1130 PEEROO Abdullah Youssouf 1175 PURSUN Ravish
1131 PEERUN Waseem Cassam Mahamoodally 1176 PURSUN-RAMKISSEN Soochita
1132 PEM Avinash 1177 PURYAG Ashveen Kumar
1133 PEM Deepak Kumar 1178 PUTCHAY Marie Melanee Cecile
1134 PEM Khusboo Manisha 1179 PYNDIAH Shagoonawatee
1135 PEM Shamira 1180 PYNEEANDEE Linganaden
1136 PERIACARPEN Madeven 1181 PYNEEANDEE- SABAPATHY Poovanum
1137 PERRINE Marie Anne Dorothy 1182 QUEDOU Poomima Goupta
1138 PERRINE Jean Kurt 1183 RADHAY Raksha Devi
1139 PERSAND Kevisha 1184 RAGAVOODOO Chinien
1140 PERSAND Sant Pratab Kumar 1185 RAGHOOBUR Tchma
1141 PERUMAL Shanmouga Prissen 1186 RAGHU Dheevesh
1142 PHUL Beebee Adeelah 1187 RAGHUBUR Ashok Kumar
1143 PIAT Bernard Joseph Evenor 1188 RAGNUTH Kishen Ragoonath
1144 PIAT Marie Christine 1189 RAGOBUR Mrinal
1145 PILLAY SAMOO Kumaren 1190 RAGOONATHS1NG Sohini
1146 PILLAY VINAYAGAM Shankaran 1191 RAGOONUNDUN Dina
1147 PITTEA Dreeti 1192 RAJAH Bibi Rubeina Nouzaleen
1148 POINEN Vanida 1193 RAJARAI Jogendranath Arvinsing
1149 POKHUN Parinita 1194 RAJARAM-MAUNKEE Dineshwaree
1150 POLYANICHKO Elena Ivanovna 1195 RAJCOOMAR Girish
1151 PONNOOSAMY Renganaden 1196 RAJCOOMAR Ravi Chandra Khushal
1152 POONMANY Hejilen Seeneevassen 1197 RAJCOOMAR-CHUMMUN Yeshwaree
1153 POONYTH Lochun 1198 RAJNATH Vashish
1154 POORUN Devesh 1199 RAM Gianduth
1155 POORUN Sandeep 1200 RAMA Shirish Rao Lutchman
1156 PORAN Shree Luxmi 1201 RAMAH Joshina Navrita
1157 POTEERAM Aruna 1202 RAMAN Ghalib Abdool
1158 PRAYAG Kamakshi Sneha 1203 RAMANNA Lukshana
1159 PRAYAG Karuna Sonalee 1204 RAMASAWMY Inben Ragen
1160 PRAYAG Sandeep 1205 RAMASHIRE Darvinsing
1161 PUCHOOA Doorvin Dev 1206 RAMBARUN Maha Prakash
1162 PUDDOO Rawshideve 1207 RAMBARUTH Kavishta
1163 PULLUCK Darshinee 1208 RAMBHOJOO Varuna
1164 PURAHOO Hemchandralall 1209 RAMBHOJUN Maythilisharan
1165 PURAHOO Muhammad Fawwaaz 1210 RAMBHUJUN Dhun Kumari
1166 PURANG Manseej 1211 RAMBOJAN Hemanshu
1167 PURDHUN Oumme Bibi Shabeenaz 1212 RAMBURN-SAMJHU Himadevi
1168 PURGUS Snehta 1213 RAMCHARITUR Lomharshinee
1169 PURMESSUR Nilesh 1214 RAMCHARITUR Vedishsingh
1170 PURMESSUR Pravish Kumar 1215 RAMCHURN Shree Satya Bappi
1171 PURMESSUR Rantideo 1216 RAMCHURRUN Anoushka Devi
1172 PURMESSUR Shyam Nundun Singh 1217 RAMDANI Leeraj
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1219
1220
1221
1222
1223
1224
1225
1226
1227
1228
1229
1230
1231
1232
1233
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1235
1236
1237
1238
1239
1240
1241
1242
1243
1244
1245
1246
1247
1248
1249
1250
1251
1252
1253
1254
1255
1256
1257
1258
1259
1260
1261
1262

NAME

RAMDANY Sonam
RAMDAWA Asha Kiran
RAMDEEN Nemraj
RAMDENEE Atish Roy
RAMDEWAR Krishi Joy
RAMDHAN Saraswati Devi
RAMDHANY Anjiv
RAMDHARRY Preerdarshanee
RAMDHONY Pratima Devi
RAMDIN Dhirendra Kumar
RAMDIN Doorgadharshanee
RAMDIN Oodesh Kumar
RAMDIN Parvin Kumar
RAMDOUR Ashwina Bhavna
RAMDOYAL Akash Deep
RAMDOYAL Prabha Devi
RAMDUN Mosina Devi
RAMEN Sivalingum
RAMEN Tammana
RAMESSUR Aswan
RAMFUL Ashita Lakshmi Devi
RAMGOOLAM Bharat Kumar
RAMGOOLAM Yogeshwaree
RAMGUTTEE Dushan Kumar Sharma 
RAMHARAI Yovan Omkar
RAMHITH Harsha
RAMHITH Ruton Prakash
RAMJAUN Bibi Zaina
RAMJAUN Mohamed Muntasir
RAMJEE PENTIAH Sanjeevnee
RAMJUTUN Baboo Geereendrasingh 
RAMJUTUN-JEETUN Dushala 
RAMKALAWAN Hemkar
RAMKALAWON RAGHU Roobina
RAMKAUN Yeswant
RAMKHALAWON Pravin Kumar
RAMKHALAWON Sudha Vidishta
RAMKISSEN Rakesh
RAMKISSEN Ritesh
RAMKISSOON Varsha
RAMKISSOON Kushal Sharma
RAMKOOLEEA Jhotisha Devi
RAMKOOSALS1NG - DOMAH Sheena Madhvi 
RAMLACKHAN-MANRAJ Meera Devi 
RAMLOCHUN Gosheela Devi

SN NAME

1263 RAMLUCHUMUN Bhartee
1264 RAMLUGUN Luchooman Sing
1265 RAMNARAIN Samanta
1266 RAMNAUTH Shivanee
1267 RAMOO Kamala
1268 RAMOOGUR - JEELALL Outra
1269 RAMOOGUR Ganesh Rajcur
1270 RAMPADARATH Mitradeo Sharma
1271 RAMPADARUTH Posheeda Peyshee
1272 RAMPARSAD Kirtee
1273 RAMPERSAD Sharvan
1274 RAMPHUL Ashvin
1275 RAMPHUL Jayprakash
1276 RAMPHUL Kavilass
1277 RAMPHUL Navinduth
1278 RAMPHUL Seekha
1279 RAMPHUL Shailendra
1280 RAMPHUL Yogeshwaree
1281 RAMPUTTY Narvada
1282 RAMRACHUYA-RAMMUNDUN Tina
1283 RAMREKHA Yogesh Asheei
1284 RAMRICHIA Shesta
1285 RAMROOP Jyotee
1286 RAMRUTTUN Dananjai
1287 RAMS AH AYE Visham kumar
1288 RAMSAHYE Prateebha
1289 RAMSEOOK Gulshan Hans
1290 RAMSEOOK Meenakshi
1291 RAMSEWAK Ravi Krishna
1292 RAMSEWAK Sunita
1293 RAMSOHOKTina
1294 RAMSURUN Varna Devi
1295 RAMTOHUL-GOREEBA Kavita Hemma
1296 RAMLTN Ruthnakar
1297 RAMYEAD Ajay Vishwanath
1298 RAMYEAD HEMANT VIKASH
1299 RANDHARSHAN Chevanee
1300 RANNOO Noor Mohammad Issah
1301 RANTA - LABAT Brigitte Karen
1302 RASHPASSING Varshadevi
1303 RASSOOL Muhammad Yusuf Ali
1304 RATNAN Leela Devi
1305 RAWOO Griha Luxrni
1306 RAWOTEEA Akash Madhav
1307 RAWOTEEA Shiv Koushal
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1308
1309
1310
1311
1312
1313
1314
1315
1316
1317
1318
1319
1320
1321
1322
1323
1324
1325
1326
1327
1328
1329
1330
1331
1332
1333
1334
1335
1336
1337
1338
1339
1340
1341
1342
1343
1344
1345
1346
1347
1348
1349
1350
1351
1352

NAME SN NAME

RAYMODE Sheik Mohammad Jaabir 1353 SAHYE Namrata Devi
RAYMODE Waheeza Bibi 1354 SAINT PIERRE DRACK Arlette
REEBYE Aartee 1355 SAKEES1NGH-BUNWAREE Poonam
REEDOYE Nishal 1356 SAKURDEEP Bavna
REEDOYE Sachindeo 1357 SALARROO Muyassar Lufti
REEJHAW Vanusha 1358 SAMNATH Krishma
REEJHUNSING Koolesma 1359 SAMOO Dandathvanee
REEKOYE Deevya Darshani 1360 SANASY Kevinraj
REESAUL Lekhram 1361 SANDAPA Alain Karl
REETOO Navna 1362 SARUP-DURSUN Darshana
REETOO Neeshti 1363 SAUBA Jaycarran
REETOO Yaniksha 1364 SAULICK-RAMBHUJUN Parvaty Veedhoushi
RITTOO Prithiviputh 1365 SAUMTALLY Ahmed
RIVALLAND Lesley Janine 1366 SAUMTALLY Hind
ROHOMON Tazil 1367 SAUMTALLY Mamode Raffick
ROJOA Bibi Nazira 1368 SAURTY Dewandra
ROJOA-MUNGLY Jameela Bibi 1369 SAWMY Loganaden Ajagen
ROMOOAH Yuvrajsingh 1370 SEBSURN Saraswatee Devi
ROOJEE Mohammad Sameer Mohseen 1371 SEBURRUN HEMA
ROOJEE Muhammad Yaasir 1372 SEEBAH Aarti Ragini
ROOPUN Adarsh Anand Ratnasingh 1373 SEEBAH Hetish
ROSETTE Jacques Pascal Yannick 1374 SEEBAH Mukesh Nowbutsingh
ROSSAN Mohammad Irshad 1375 SEEBALLUCK Ritesh
ROSTOM Bibi Sahida 1376 SEEBALUCK Leena Devi
ROSUN Mohummud Zeid 1377 S EEBUN Doorgesh Mehta
ROSUNEE Satyavrat 1378 SEEBUN Vineta Shani
ROSUNEE Shreya Luxmi 1379 SEEBUNDHUN Pravesh Kumar
ROWJEE Omdeo 1380 SEEBUNDHUN Roomesh Kumar
RUGGOO Vandana 1381 SEEBURRUN Jayish
RUGHOO Satish 1382 SEEBURRUN Rajdeo
RUGHOOA DOOKHONY Madhu 1383 SEEBURRUN Umang
RUGHOOBEER Prashant 1384 SEECHARAM RAMEETA
RUGHOOBUR Deodas 1385 SEECHARAN Hemant Kumar
RUGHOOBUR GOKOOL Chitra 1386 SEECHARAN Teren Kumar Singh
RUGHOOBUR-SOYJAUDAH Mungala Devi 1387 SEECHURN Netaji Subhash Chandrasing
RUJUBALI - CADERSA Nasseem Banu 1388 SEEGOB1N Varsha
RUJUBALI Mohammad Fariis Al Zayd 1389 SEEGOLAM Atmaram
RUMZAN Ahmad Reza 1390 SEEGOOLAM Mohammad Zaid
RUNGASAWMI Manusha Devi 1391 SEEGOOLAM Mukhshada Devi
RUNGASAWMI-BEEMADOO Loma 1392 SEELARBOKUS Danayal
RUNJEET Abhijay 1393 SEENAUTH Tarachan
RUSSEEAWON Vanisha Devi 1394 SEERUNGEN-VENCATASAMY Vanesha
SADIEN Lorenzo Ulrique Andy 1395 SEERUTHEN Ahtish
SAHEBALLY Mohammad Shaheel 1396 SEERUTUN Rahish Kant
SAHODREE Akshay 1397 SEESAHA Elena
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SN

1398
1399
1400
1401
1402
1403
1404
1405
1406
1407
1408
1409
1410
1411
1412
1413
1414
1415
1416
1417
1418
1419
1420
1421
1422
1423
1424
1425
1426
1427
1428
1429
1430
1431
1432
1433
1434
1435
1436
1437
1438
1439
1440
1441
1442

NAME

SEESAHA Rishi
SEETAHUL Nitish Pareskar
SEETAMONEE Oomahkant
SEETOHUL Jaydata
SEETOHUL Sheevani
SEETOHUL Yanish
SEETOHUL Yanouj
SEETUL Bhooneswar
SEEVARAMEN Daveena Tannishtha
SEEVRAJSINGH Kaviraj
SEEWOO Varun
SEEWOOPAUL Pramod
SEEWOORUTTUN Mitradev Singh
SEEWOORUTTUN Pawan Kumar
SEEWOOSUNGKUR Adarsh
SEEWOOSUNGKUR Nirishka
SENEVRAYAR Kervin
SEOMORE Reshma
SERVANSINGH Hreedesha Chandranee
SETOHUL - RAGPOT Saloni
SEWCHURN Arunkumar
SEWCHURN Karamjeet Kumar
SEWLALL Lakesh
SEWSURN Krishi Kuinar
SEWSURN Nirmal
SEWSURN Vinesh Kumar
SHAM Muhammad Ryad
SHAMACHURN Prerma
SHAMLOLL Keshinee
SHANMUGHAM Balaji
SHAYAMALIA Chitra
SHEIK - YOUSOUF Essam
SHEIK - YOUSOUF Mounirah Asma
SHEIK FAREED Yushreen
SHEIK HASSAN Omar Aftakhar
SHEIK HASSAN Valentina Kirilloma
SHEWRAJ Dutta Ram
SHEWRAJ Kush Ram
SH1BCHURN Mithilesh
SIBARTIE Lakshmi
S1BARTIE Ravinandan
SICHARAM Kripa Shankarsing
SINGH Vikramjit
SIVAPRAGASAM-S1VASUBRAMANIA Sheela
SOBARUN Arvind

SN NAME

1443 SOBRATEE Muhammad Shamseer
1444 SOBUN Jayvin
1445 SOHATEE Akshay
1446 SOHATEE Sailendra
1447 SOHATEE Vishalini Rachna
1448 SOHAWON Sheik Fadil Mohammad Zaid
1449 SOHAWON Mohammad Riaz
1450 SOHAWON Mohammad Sahiboullah
1451 SOHODEB Rikesh kumar
1452 SOHUN Mitra
1453 SOHUN Moonindranath
1454 SOK APPADU Soobaraj Nayroo (Jr)
1455 SOKEECHAND Bibi Khadiijah Firdaus
1456 SOMARU Sandima
1457 SONATUN Karuna
1458 SONOO Indrakant
1459 SOOBADUR Kawthur Banon
1460 SOOBHUG Bhaveesh Shanna
1461 SOOBHUG Nesha
1462 SOOBHUG Nisha
1463 SOOBHUG Yogeshwar Singh
1464 SOOBHUJUN Vaysha Devi
1465 SOOBRATY Aboo Ilium
1466 SOOBRATY Noora Lailah
1467 SOOBRAYEN Davina
1468 SOOBRAYEN Vinessen Sivrapragassen
1469 SOOBROYEN Pouniyam
1470 SOOBYE Nahdiyyah
1471 SOOCANDRAM Nitish Raj
1472 SOODEEN Shah Mohammad Adil
1473 SOODUN-BOODHUN Pooja
1474 SOOJHAWON Ashveena Rye
1475 SOOJHAWON Avishek Rye
1476 SOOKDEWO Kaveen
1477 SOOKHOO Poonam
1478 SOOKHOO Smita Diya
1479 SOOKNUNDUN - MEHTA Mithi
1480 SOOKNUNDUN Mithu
1481 SOOKOOL Nitish Raj
1482 SOOKRAM Jay veer
1483 SOOKUN Divyamsing
1484 SOOKUN Nadya Moksha
1485 SOOKUN Parvind Grish Dev
1486 SOOKUN Rajeev Kumar
1487 SOOKUN Yousouf Sulliman
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1488
1489
1490
1491
1492
1493
1494
1495
1496
1497
1498
1499
1500
1501
1502
1503
1504
1505
1506
1507
1508
1509
1510
1511
1512
1513
1514
1515
1516
1517
1518
1519
1520
1521
1522
1523
1524
1525
1526
1527
1528
1529
1530
1531
1532

NAME

SOOKUR Dooshiunt Shiv
SOONDRON Paramasiven
SOOPAL-LUTCHMUN Yaarthi Devi 
SOOPAUL Saktidev
SOOPRAYEN Khomadee
SOORJEE Joshan 
SOOWAMBERNilesh
SOREEFAN Bibi Aisha
SOREEFAN Bibi Fatimah
SOUKHEE DHOORUNDHUR Hoolsee
SOUKMOULLA Goyesh
SOWARUTH Sundipsingh
SOYFOO Muhammad Shafick
SOYFOO Shakeel Hossen 
SREEBHAHUN Satish Chandra
SUB RON Ishuraj
SUBRON Vijay Anand
SUBRUTY Haroon Rashid
SUDDUL Siddhartha
SUFFEE Beebee Shaheen Mehetab
SUFFEE Moossa Bye
SUFFEE- MUNGROO Zareen
SUFFEE Nowsheen Hibaah
SUJEEBUN Devanayegee
SUJEEWON Baboo Praneshsingh
SUJEEWON Laxshada
SUK.HOO Yogesh
SUKURDEEP Archana Lavina
SUMMAH Dhenu Priya
SUMODHEE Rishad Mohamed 
SUMSER Mohammad Irshad 
SUNASSEE Krsnamoortee 
SUNASSEE Ramamoortee
SUNASSY Sivasoopramanien 
SUNNASSEE Yoshvin
SUNNOOMAN Amanullah 
SUNTNitish
SUNTOO Janusha
SURNAM Amrith Latha Kumari
TACOURI Kaviraj
TADEBOIS Joseph
TAKOORDYAL Leelanee
TAKUN Sadia Katoon
TA-MIN Wee Foh
TANAKOOR Laxmi Devi

SN NAME

1533 TANCE Yannick Hugo
1534 TASHO Perna Uden
1535 TAUCKOOR Rajkiran
1536 TAUCOOR Mandavi
1537 TAUJOO Khadija Bushra
1538 TAUKOOR Teeruth Raj
1539 TEELUCK Aruna Chandra
1540 TEELUCK Mohammad Jibrane
1541 TEELUCK Surina Gireesha
1542 TEELUCK Vineshmanee
1543 TEELUCKDHARRY Rakhee
1544 TEJOO Bibi Rukhsana
1545 TENNANT Joseph Roger Maurice
1546 THIELAMAY Ranganardha
1547 THOM Ricardo
1548 THOMAS-FLORENT Jane Simone
1549 THUMIAH Deena Devi
1550 THYARTAN Trisina Devi
1551 TIMMIAH-RAGUDU Sirisha
1552 TIN WING YUEN Mary Jane Yin Man
1553 TIRVASSEN Goinsamy
1554 TIRVASSEN Vijayantee Devi
1555 TO-CHOI WAN Pit Cheong
1556 TOOCARAM Swetabye
1557 TOOFANNY Priya Devi
1558 TOOLAH Hans Emmanuel
1559 TOOLSY Ajay Sharma
1560 TOORYTreesha
1561 TORAUB Bibi Aaminah Nilufah
1562 TORUL-SOOKUN Ashwinee Sweta
1563 TOURABALY Bibi Shabneez
1564 TREEBHOOBUN Rajen Vivek Neehyeduth
1565 UBDHOOT Kreshansingh
1566 UBDHOOT Poonam
1567 UJOODHA Bhaminee
1568 UJOODHA Lata Lonishka
1569 UNUTH BHOLAH Savitree
1570 UNUTH Romy Yuvraj
1571 UNUTH-DOMUN Mahesswaree Nina
1572 UPADHYAYA Smita
1573 UPADHYAYA Vandita
1574 UPPEEGADOO Vanesha
1575 UPPIAH Selvina Naidoo
1576 USEREESwati
1577 VAITILINGON Morgana Krishnen



1230 The Mauritius Government Gazette

SN NAME

1578 VALAYDON Iswarren Sivapragassen
1579 VALAYDON Lunja
1580 VALAYDON Sharmila
1581 VAMBEN-REMY Anju
1582 VARSALLY Mohammad Naushad
1583 VEERAMALAY Roobavanee
1584 VEERAMOOTOO Andy Veeren
1585 VEERAMUNDEN Lodisen
1586 VEERAPA-MANGROO Lovena Preeyadarshini
1587 VEERAPEN Seergeeva Marina
1588 VEERARAGOO Vinayagum
1589 VEERASSAMY Devarajen
1590 VEERASSAMY Rajagopal
1591 VEERATTERAP1LLAY Jayshree
1592 VEERATTERAP1LLAY Kuldeepa
1593 VEERATTERAPILLAY Satyam
1594 VENCATACHELLUM Kavinee
1595 VENCATASAMY Arulen
1596 VENCATASAMY Ashvin
1597 VIAL Irshaad Ahamadally
1598 VINEY Frederic Guy Louis Percy
1599 WILLIAM Jean-Emmanuel
1600 WONG CHING HWAI Chun-Vi Dennis
1601 WONG KEE YAN Thierry
1602 WONG YAN MAN Kim Fat
1603 WOOCHEET Akilesh
1604 WOODHOO Parikshat
1605 WOODUN Jennita
1606 WOODUN Shivanee Devi
1607 WOOMEDLohita
1608 WOOZEER Mushiirah Nowsheen
1609 WUN SEK LAW Clemn
1610 YADUN Nawsheen Banu
1611 YAP SAN MIN Nicolas
1612 YARROO Mohammad Shameem Mirza Khan
1613 YARROO Mohammad Yusuf Khan
1614 YEUNG WAI PING Yeung Yan Hoi
1615 HEESAMBEE Ashfaaq Mohammad

General Notice No. 536 of 2018

THE MEDICAL COUNCIL ACT 1999

In pursuance of section 30(1) of the Medical 
Council Act 1999 as amended, hereunder is the 
list of registered medical practitioners who are 

authorised to practise as specialists during the year 
2018.

February 19, 2018

Medical Council of Mauritius

SN NAME

1 ABBAS MAMODE Abdel Yusuf
2 ABBASAKOOR Faisal
3 ABBASAKOOR Noormuhammad Oosman
4 ABDOOL Fouad
5 ABDOOLATIFF Feizal
6 ABEELUCK Meetheelesh Kumar
7 ABELAKRanjit
8 ABOOBAKAR Mohamed Raza
9 ABOOBAKER Fawzia Hassam

10 ACKBARKHAN Azarkhan
11 ADAM Marie Marc Guy
12 AH KEE Sun Min
13 ALLEEMUDDER Abdool Hamid
14 ALLEESAIB Mubareka
15 ALLEESAIB Shahed Bin Mohammad
16 ALLGOO Vinod Kumar Dwarkasingh
17 AMEERUDDEN Shakil
18 AMIDE Mahmade Rechad
19 ANCHARAZ Ameer Kumar
20 ANCHARAZ Preeatum
21 ANCHARAZ Shasheekant Sharma
22 ANCHARAZ Vedavruttji
23 ANNAUTH Meeta
24 APPAVOO Dorina
25 APP1AH Deoraz
26 ATCHIA Ismael Ibrahim
27 AUBDOOL Shaheen Bibi
28 AUBEELUCK Ashwin
29 AUCHARAZ Kaviraj Sharma
30 AUKLE Ranjit
31 AUMEER Rajnath
32 AUMEERALLY Zeennat Banu
33 AUNGRAHEETA Mohammad Sajjid
34 AVRILLON Philippe Jean Michel
35 AWOTAR Kanika
36 AWOTAR Mahendra Kumar.
37 BABAJEE Naviraj
38 BABAJEE-DEENOO Karishmabye
39 BACHONEE Bhagwath
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40 BACHOO Tarkeswamath 85 BISSESSUR Poonam
41 BADRY Kalianee 86 BISSESSUR Radha Kreesoonsing
42 BADRY Vadim kush 87 B1SSOONAUTH Soorendra
43 BAGRI - BUCKTOWAR Vandana 88 BOLAKY Farah BiBi
44 BAHEMIA Abdoollah Mamode Amode 89 BONOMALLY Kishore Kumar
45 BAKHOREE Rakesh 90 BONOMALLY Rajendra Kumar
46 BALLOO Kaminee 91 BOODHOO Kamini Devi
47 BALNATH Mohunparsad 92 BOODHOO Hemraz
48 BANYMANDHUB - RAMDHANY Sushila 93 BOODHUN Sudhakur Kumar
49 BANYMANDHUB Anil 94 BOODOO Abdool Yusuff
50 BEEBEEJAUN Ahmed Rashid 95 BOODOO Kumari Sandhya Devi Reshmee
51 BEEBEEJAUN Haroon Rashid 96 BOOLELL Satish O.S.K.
52 BEEBEEJAUN Mahmad Seedick 97 BOOLELL Vijay
53 BEEDASSY Bassoodeo 98 BUCHA Takeswar Nath
54 BEEDASSY Indradeo 99 BUCKOREELALL Payal

55 BEEDASSY Sandya 100 BUCKTOWAR Pravin
56 BEEDASY Turyanand 101 BUCKTOWAR Sangeeta
57 BEEGOO Poomimasing 102 BUCKTOWAR Sanjay
58 BEEGOO Sanjai 103 BUJHAWON Khevin Kumar
59 BEEHARRY Anil Kumar Singh 104 BUKHORY Dinesh Kumar

60 BEEHARRY Ismael Nabeebux 105 BUMMA Sirisha Devi

61 BEEHARRY PANRAY Basoodeo 106 BUNDHOO Kaviraj
62 BEEHARRY Shanjugsingh Dey 107 BUNDHOO Savita
63 BEEHUSPOTEEA Bassoodeo 108 BUNDHUN Chandr Dutt
64 BEEHUSPOTEEA Radhika 109 BUNDHUN Soobasschan
65 BEEZADHURAvinash 110 BUNJHOO Hansvin

66 BEHARY PARAY Beejaye Kumar 111 BUNJUN Tejasvi

67 BHEECARRY Kunal Varma 112 BUN JUN Vishal
68 BHEEKHARRY Ougrashan Bhagyadev 113 BUNWAREE Sholan Kumar

69 BHEEKHEE Rajiv 114 BUNWAREE Vasant Kumar

70 BHOLA Heman Kumar 115 BUNWAREE Vattan

71 BHOLAH Farouk Mohammad 116 BURTON Nareshlall

72 BHOLAH Mohamed Gaffoor 117 BURUMDAYAL Rohit Chutturdharry

73 BHOMA Anand Prakash 118 CADERSA Muhammad Ali

74 BHOWON Ridhi Devi 119 CANAKIAH Lena Letchumi Kandham

75 BHOWON Vijay Coomar 120 CANDASAMY Moonsamy

76 BHOYROO Abdool Satar 121 CANTIAH Kaliraj

77 BHOYROO Helene Emilie Veronique 122 CARRIM Zia Iqbal

78 BHUDOYE Ravindrasing 123 CAULLOO-PERMALA Sillani

79 BHUGALOO Ali Ahmed 124 CAUSSY Beerdarshan Singh

80 BHUGWANDASS Ashwant Sharma 125 CHAKOURY Jeetendre Singh

81 BHUJAN Vedpal 126 CHAMANE Premraj

82 BHUJUN Bhagwanduth 127 CHARITAR SOOKHA Hemlata

83 BHUJUN Kissnowtee 128 CHAUDHRY Arvind Kumar
84 BISNAUTHSING Geerjanun 129 CHAVRIMOOTOO O.B.E. Rayapen
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130 CHEETOO Satyajit Kumar 175 DFNASSING Vijayesing
131 CHELLEN Devadassen 176 DOARIKA Abdool Aslham
132 CHEONG Chiung Miow Bruno 177 DOM AH Chandra Bhan Gupt
133 CH1NEAH Ashley 178 DOMAH Mohammud Nizam
134 CHIN1EN Ganessen 179 DONAT Louis Pierre Roland
135 CHINN1AH Ashvin 180 DOOBAREE Rishi Ram
136 CHITSON Pang Ngah Shin 181 DOOKHARAM Rajendra Kumar
137 CHITTOO Ashlay Ranvir 182 DOOLUB Khoolseeduth
138 CHOJOO Khalid 183 DOWLUT - KHEERDALI Bibi Nazeerah
139 CHONG AH YAN Eric Kong Tai 184 DOWLUT Devendra Nath
140 CHOONEE Dhanesswur 185 DOWLUT Mohamad Shafik
141 CHOONEEA Ramdev 186 DOWLUT Sharoona
142 CHOOROMONEY Rajnishlall 187 D’SOUZA Alwyn Ray
143 CHUDOORY Dev Kumar 188 DURGADU Hans Roy
144 CHUI WAN CHEONG Joseph Patrick C.A.F. 189 DURGAHEE Fathi Kamil
145 CHUI WAN CHEONG Patrick Alain 190 DUSORUTH - TAUKOOR Vanessa
146 CHUKOWRY Santosh Kumar 191 DUSOWOTH Jaynandra Kumar Singh

147 CHUMMUN Dweejendra 192 DUSTAGHEER Hahmad Swalay Goolam
148 CHUMMUN Girish 193 EDOO Abdool Wahid Ibrahim

149 CHUNG PIN YONG Chung Fat Chong 194 EDOO Bibi Shamimah
150 CHUNNOO Indraduth 195 EMRITTE Abdel Nasser

151 CONHYEA Anuradha 196 FAGOONEE Ashish
152 CONHYEA Dyanane 197 FAGOONEE kevin
153 CREPET Dominique Marie Amelie 198 FAKIM Khalil
154 CREPET Gerard Marie Gabriel 199 FAKIM Shafick
155 CURIMBACUS Mohamed Afzal 200 FANCHETTE Nataliya
156 DASSARATH Meera 201 FAUZEE Nilufer Jasmine Selimah

157 DASSAYE Salickram 202 FELIC1ANE Pierre Alain

158 DAUREEAWO Issac 203 FHOOBLALL Mokshanand

159 DAWONATH Rajivsing 204 FOKEER Reena Shanna

160 DAWOODKHAN Mamode Imran 205 FOKEERAH Nitish
161 DAWREEAWO Javed 206 FOKEERBUX - DAUHOO Aminah Bibi

162 DAWREEAWOO Hassenjee 207 FOONDUN Aboo Swalleh

163 DAYAL Rikesh 208 FOONDUN Aziz-Ul-Haq

164 DEENOO Mirish SharmaTarachand 209 FOONDUN Fazul Huck

165 DEENOO Satish Kumar 210 FOONDUN Muhammad Sajeed

166 DEEPCHAND Mandheeta 211 GAJADHARSINGH O.S.K. Krishndutt
167 DELARUE Pierre Louis 212 GANESHAN Bhuvanarani

168 DEONARAIN Sattianundsing 213 GANESHAN Yagasoondaren

169 DEWAN Sheilesh Kumar 214 GAYA Indurdeo

170 DHUNNOO Leckrajsingh 215 GAYA Shri Baboo Megduthjee

171 DHUNY Mohammad Raffick 216 GAYA Subha Shita Devi

172 D1DARALLY-KHODABOCUS Bibi Kaushur 217 GENDOO Mohamed Zaher Abdus Salam Haniff

173 D1NASSING Daleepsingh Atmanandsingh 218 GHANTY Shabbir Ahmed Ebrahim

174 D1NASSING Pradipsing 219 GHOORAH Devina
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220 G1GABHOY Ritesh 265 GUNPUTH Elena Petrovna
221 GIGABHOY Surendra 266 HAMUTH Mohammad Yassin
222 GNANY Guy Gerard Jacques 267 HATTEEA Mahmad Saleem Ajam
223 GOBIN Premchun 268 HEERAH Mohammud Shah Nawaz
224 GOB IN Pritty 269 HEERAMUN-AUBEELUCK Anisha
225 GOBIN Veekash 270 HEETUN Zaid Shah
226 GOLAMAULLY Mohammed Ibney Reza 271 HEMOO Satanand
227 GOLAMNOBEE- FOONDUN Nazeerah Bibi 272 HIMMO Marwan Khalid
228 GOLAP Chanseet 273 HINGUN Cassam Haroon
229 GOODOORY Vasant Chand 274 HOLLEE Mohammad Salim
230 GOOLAB Trilok 275 HOSANY Mohamed Nasser
231 GOOLJAR Brijanan 276 HOSANY Mohammade Nazeer
232 GOORAH - DEENOO Bharathi 277 HOSENIE Mohammad Abdullah Irshad
233 GOORDOYAL Rajendranath 278 HOW CHEONG WEN How Chan
234 GOORDYAL Baboo Rameswarsingh 279 HULLOOWAN Vijayewantee
235 GOORIAH Vinobha 280 HURBUNGS Ameet
236 GOPAL Dhanraz 281 HUSNOO Mohammad Anwar
237 GOPAL Hurry Parsad 282 INDUR Avinash
238 GOPAL Woodalsingh 283 INDUR Khooshhal
239 GOPALL Jayprakash 284 IP, O.S.K. Francois Saw Lan
240 GOPALL Roshnee 285 ISABELLE Jean Jose
241 GOPAUL Balmik 286 ISSACK Mohammad Iqbal
242 GOPEE Ahmad Abdullah 287 ISSURSING Radha Mohunsing
243 GOPEE Neerunjun 288 JAGARNATH Parmanun
244 GOSWAMY Rajat Krishan 289 JAGESSUR Arye Kumar
245 GOULVADEN Narina 290 JAGGESHAR Roupesh Teewaree
246 GOURISUNKUR Sunil Gopendr 291 JAGUTPAL Kailesh Kumar Singh
247 GOVINDAN Soobramanienn Angamootoo 292 JAHANGEER Muhammad Saleem
248 GOWREA Bhuveshwamath 293 JAUFEERALLY Bhaye Dawood
249 GOWREESUNKER Moorleedharsingh 294 JAUFEERALLY Khalid
250 GOWREESUNKER Shyamleela 295 JEEHA Rajeev
251 GOWREESUNKUR Harini 296 JEETUN Poonam
252 GOWRY Satiss 297 JEETUN Rajend
253 GOWRYDOSS NANGU Krisma 298 JEVALLEE Harish
254 GUJADHUR Bhaskar Fulena 299 JHUGROO Anil
255 GUNESH Sadhanand 300 JHUGROO Vishan
256 GUNESSEE Rajenparsad 301 JHUMMON Govindranath Ajeetjee
257 GUNG ADIN Anand 302 JHUMMON Muktanand Vikash
258 GUNGADIN Poonam 303 JHUMMON Navina Priya
259 GUNGADIN Sudesh Kumar 304 JHUNDOO Bechun
260 GUNGAH O.S.K. Kooshalanund 305 JOGANAH Appalswamy
261 GUNGAPERSAND Ushadevi 306 JOOMAYE Zouberr Houssein Issa
262 GUNNESS Mokshda 307 JOOMUN Ashraff Mohammad Dilshaad
263 GUNNOO-KOWLESSUR Sanita Devi 308 JOOMUN Rachid Ally
264 GUNNY Ahad 309 JOOMYE Hassenjee
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310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354

NAME

JOOMYE Mohammad Ryad
JOOMYE Shehzaad 
JOORAWON Aslam 
J ORY Dushanraj
JUGDUTH Ravindranath 
JUGESSUR Devendranath 
JUGESSUR Rabindranath Kowlessur 
JUGESSUR Sutej Bhan Sharma 
JUGGESSUR-MUNGUR Keeran Sandya 
JUGOO-BHEEKEE Asha Anishta Devi 
JUGUN Kheeldass
JUHOOR Safarally Khan 
JUTTON Vickramsingh 
KALACHAND Santosh Shanker Kumar Kama) 
KALACHAND Sham Kischinchand 
KALLYCHURUN Nemraj 
KANDHAI-BURTON Shibani Aditi 
KAROOA Aswinee Kumar
KARTICK RAMCHURN Prema Devi 
KEENOO Abdool Motalib
KHADAROO Mohammed Hanza Yousouf 
KHADUN Rajnee
KHAIDOO Amna Mehleen 
KIM CURRAN Vikramsingh 
KIM TIAM FOOK CHONG Dhin Kien 
KISSOON Mavindranath
KISSOON Nitish 
KODABACCUS Mahmud Aslam 
KOLAROV Emil Nicolaev 
KOOLWANT Bindoomatee 
KOUSSOUGBO Koku Sossou 
KOUSSOUGBO Ouma Devi 
KRUMTALLY Nadeem Akhtar 
KULLOO Jehangir Mohd 
KUMAR Awadhesh 
KUMAR Rajiv
KUREEMUN - MOWLAH Reshma 
KURRIMBUKUS Reshad 
KUSRUTSING Munhurry 
LAKHANI Nitinkumar Nanji 
LAM THUON MINE Lim Liat Kwong L. H. 
LAM THUON MINE Lim Ting Kwong 
LAN CHEONG WAH Lan Sem Hing 
LAN CHEONG WAH Lan Thiam Shin 
LANG PING NAM Tchye Youn

SN NAME

355 LAU HING KWONG Lan Nee Foong
356 LEE SHEE WE Shung Shing
357 LEUNG KUNE CHONG Francois Tat Yuen
358 LEUNG SHING Edouard
359 LI KAM WA Denis Li Ting Fon
360 LI LOONG That Chong
361 LI PAK TONG Brenda Lisa
362 LI SUNG SANG Lee Kiang Tek
363 LI YIM Chen On
364 LI YIM James Fen Taye
365 LIM AH KEN Sow Yan
366 LIM FAT Charles Patrick Lim Kwet Tat
367 LOTUN-AUMEER Nasseema Begum
368 LUCHMUN Dharamraj
369 LUCHOO Jairajsing
370 LUCHOO Svetlana Anatolevna Lyskina
371 LUCKHEERAM Rishi Vishal
372 LUCKRAZ Heyman
373 LUTCHMUN Dweejendra
374 MAHADEB Yovan Parikshat Rai
375 MAHAMODHOSSEN Abdool Yashin
376 MAHARAHAJE Rikesh Panday Woogra
377 MAHARAHAJE Shri Bindoomuttee Silajee
378 MAHARAHAJE Somnath Panday Woogra
379 MAHOMEDALY Hassam
380 MANDARRY Muhammad Tasleem
381 MANGAR Taj Ignace
382 MANGOO Muhammad Diyaa’Ullah
383 MANGROO Ateelesh
384 MANNA Rameshchandra
385 MANRAJ Ashok Anand
386 MANRAJ Shyam Shunker
387 MARDEMOOTOO Vijayen
388 MAREEACHALEE Soobodsing
389 MATABUDUL Hoopmanun
390 MATABUDUL Yogendra Kumar
391 MAUDHOO Madan Mohan Kamavir
392 MAUNKEE Omprakash
393 MAUTADIN Tarun Kumar
394 MAUTHOOR-HOSANEE Mohmeena
395 MAY Christiane Helga
396 MODELY Ambigei Alvina
397 MODUN Krishnaduth
398 MODUN Rabindranath Ji
399 MOGUN Deolall
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400 MOHABEER Nilesh 445 NARAIN-SOOKOOL Urvashi
401 MOHABEER Vishwas Teelucksingh 446 NARAYANEN Nandagopen
402 MOHABIR Brinda 447 NARRAINEN POULLE Thiyagaraj
403 MOHAMADHOSEN Imteaz 448 NATH VARMA Jnyanandra Nath
404 MOHEEPUTH Nishan 449 NAWOOR Ismat Dawood Ismael
405 MOHEEPUTH Sakunath Maria 450 NEETOO Maura
406 MOHITH Anil Bhushan 451 NEETOO Yaseen
407 MOHUNGOO Abdool Khalick 452 NEWAJ Rakesh
408 MOHUNGOO Abdool Rashid 453 NG CHENG HIN Kevin Ambrose
409 MOHUNGOO Muhammad Javed 454 NG CHIENG HIN Steve Miow Cheong
410 MOKOONLALL Anand 455 NG FAT CHEUNG Jean Claude
411 ' MONEBHURRUN Nundhun 456 NG KEE KWONG Kwet Kian
412 MONVOISIN Paul Maxwell 457 NG KUET LEONG Ah Piang Mario
413 MOOLLAN Oomar Cassam 458 NG KUET LEONG Brigitte Margarethe Ursula
414 MOONEYAN-RAMCHURN Soranambal 459 NG LUNG KIT Ham Koung
415 MOORABY Dalila 460 NG MIAO KWONG Kwet Sui
416 MOORGAWA Bhagirath Singh 461 NG YING KIN Ng Fat Kwong Luc
417 MOOROOTEEA Mehta Raaka Rai 462 NILAMBER Akilesh Kumar
418 MOOSSUN Hassam 463 NOBEEBUX-KRUMTALLY Karimah Bibi
419 MOOTOOSAMY Sharmila Rose Mahamood

420 MORABY Mohamed Din 464 NOORMAHOMED Muhammad Tahir

421 MOTAY Paramasiven 465 NUCKCHADY Dooshanveer Chowbay

422 MOTI Premdutt 466 NUCKCHADY Taariq Hussein

423 MOUSSA Mohammad Fazil 467 NUNDLALL Lutchmeeparsad

424 MOWLAH Inayat Sameer 468 NUNDLOLL Dewanund

425 MUDHOO Sheila 469 NUNDLOLL Subodhananda Vyas

426 MUDOO Aroona Devi 470 OLLITE Mahmad Ehshan

427 MUDOO Subhraj 471 OODIT Ramesh Jugmohun

428 MUGON Parassar 472 OODUN Ritwij Niketan

429 MUND IL Rohan Nitten 473 OOGARAH Pravin Kumar

430 MUNGUR Luckshmanraj 474 OOGORAH Krishnaduth

431 MUNGUR-THAKOOR Jaya Prishni Devi 475 OOZEERALLY Imran

432 MUNNEE Krishna 476 OREE Prithviraj

433 MUNROOPNed 477 OWADALLY Waheeda Sultana

434 MURDAY Meiyanum Shummogum A.P. 478 OZEER Mohammad Yaasir

435 MURUGAN Nigum 479 PACKIRY POULLE Nelvina

436 NAGA Manish Suresh 480 PALARAM Hansini Irvena

437 NAGA Mridula Suresh 481 PATHAK Harsha

438 NAGA Suresh 482 PAUROBALLY Dilshad Begum

439 NAGALINGUM Soorianunden 483 PAUVADAY Keyvoobalan

440 NAIK Rabindranath Thumba Oudesh 484 PEERALLY Amunoollah Mamode Areff

441 NA1KEN Bedeenaidoo Perumal 485 PEERBACCUS Yashirally Zulfekhar Ibne Idris

442 NAKHUDA Shabbir Ahmed 486 PEERBUX Muhammad Arshad

443 NANGU Janeshwar Karamdass 487 PEEROO Mohammad Khalil]

444 NANHUCK Mohammud Hussein 488 PEEROO Ahamud Hussein
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489 PEEROO Hassam
490 PEEROO Rubeena Bibi
491 PERBHOO - PEEDOLY Kiran
492 PERMALA Harvind
493 PETKAR Gitanjali Shailendra
494 PILLAI Devaraj Keser-I-Hind
495 PILLAY CARPANEN Devarajen
496 PILLAY Diogenes Renganaden
497 PISTON Jacques Desire Donald
498 POINEN-RUGHOOPUTH Satiavani
499 POOLEE COOTEE Nessen
500 POONOOSAMY PADIACHY Paramasiven
501 POORUN Swaran Bala
502 POORUN Vinita Devi
503 PRASAD Bugudanahalli Narasappa
504 PRASAD JANKEE Yasmin Kiran Kaur Shaila 

Seewoo
505 PRASAD Prakash Seewoo
506 PRASAD-CHOOROMONEY Laila Shaleena 

Chhaya Lilawatee Seewoo
507 PUDDOO Dayaram Jayaram
508 PULTON Aravind Kumar
509 PURMANAN Dushyant Dissipal
510 PURMESSUR Jagjivan Ram Takoorparsad
511 PURMESSUR Mahesh Nundun Singh
512 PURRYAGOlga
513 PURRYAG Rishi Raj
514 PURUSRAM Gunsham
515 PYNEEANDEE Veyasen
516 RAGAVOODOO Seetana
517 RAJABALLY Mahomed Reshad
518 RAJAH Fatmah Bibi
519 RAJAN Ekanatha
520 RAJARAI Veena Rye Dehvi
521 RAJCOOMAR - SEETAL Geetanjalee Devi
522 RAJCOOMAR Dev Anand
523 RAJCOOMAR Manpreet Sharma
524 RAJKOMAR Bhawan Amrit
525 RAJKOMAR Tapeswar
526 RAM RACHEYA Iswaraj
527 RAM Sunil Kumar
528 RAMBARUN Soorya Prakash
529 RAMBHUJUN Alvin
530 RAMBURN Nitee Sagar
531 RAMBURN Seewoosagur Mahatikesvar

SN NAME

532 RAMCHARITUR Reetlallsingh
533 RAMCHURN Arvindsing
534 RAMCHURN Tetraj Panray
535 RAMDASS Surendra
536 RAMDAWON Pretidev
537 RAMDENEE Evin Rye
538 RAMDENEE Geerdhar Rye
539 RAMDENEE Pitumbur Rye
540 RAMDHANY Sachin Koomar
541 RAMDHUN Nandkishoredass
542 RAMDINNY-PURRYAG Netranee Anju
543 RAMDOYAL Seekumar
544 RAMGOOLAM Premanand
545 RAMGULAM Arvind
546 RAMGULAM Shyam
547 RAMGULAM Veeraj
548 RAMJANE Khalill Rassoolbye
549 RAMJUTTUN Sunjaye
550 RAMJUTUN - KAROOA Anupa Roshni
551 RAMKALAWAN Kushal
552 RAMKALAWAN-HURBUNGS Hhoonisha
553 RAMKOOSALSING Taroonsingh
554 RAMLOCHUN Sanjivsing
555 RAMLOLL Parmessur
556 RAMNARA1N Pooja Meghna
557 RAMNATH Akheelesh
558 RAMPHUL Chandraduth
559 RAMPHUL Manisha
560 RAMPUTTY Poonam
561 RAMROOP Kreeti Devi
562 RAMROOP RAMKALAWAN Divya
563 RAMSAHA Jugjiwan Ram Yesudas
564 RAMSAHYE Haleena
565 RAMSOHOK Lajeswar
566 RAMSURN Lohmus
567 RAMTOHUL Bhooshun
568 RAMTOHUL-HEMOO Devi Tanooja
569 RAMYEAD Chandra Prakash
570 RAMYEAD Rajendra
571 RASSOULAmeen
572 RAWAT Ibrahim Moussa Hossen
573 REEBYE Deshmukh
574 REEBYE Oomesh
575 REESAUL Harrish
576 REESAUL Ramprakash
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577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621

NAME SN NAME

R.EY Alfred Joseph Gerard Robert 622 SIBARTIE Smita
RITTOO Dylmitr 623 SIBARTIE Vikrant
RITTOO Dynesh 624 SOHAWON Mohammud Fazal Abdul Latiff
RITTOO Leckwantee 625 SOHODEB Rajeev Kumar
ROJOA Abdool Wahid 626 SOKAPPADU Reena
RUCHCHAN Sachin 627 SOLIMAN Ghulam Mohammad
RUGBURSING Toolseeram 628 SONDAGUR Abdool Russeed Ziyad
RUGHOO Madhvi 629 SONOO Janaki
RUGHOOBUR Ritesh 630 SONOO Jaswantraw
RUGHOOBUR-BHEEKHEE Taruna Artee 631 SOOBADAR Bibi Faeza
RUGHOOPUTH Mahesh Shumsher 632 SOOBRAH Ramawad
RUHOMUTALLY Abdool Raouf 633 SOOBRATTY Mohammad Ali
RUHOMUTALLY Mahammed Mashood 634 SOOBRON-SEETARAM Nirveda
RUJEEDAWA Mohammed Fezul 635 SOOHUN Ibnne Towfick
RUMJEET Bhagwansingh 636 SOOHUN-DREEPAUL Bibi Nazima
RUMZAN Reshiana 637 SOOKHA Manish Rai
SAIB Mohammad Salim 638 SOOKHA Pravish Rai
SAM SOON Joseph Alfred Lee Shou Hsin 639 SOOKMANEE Bipin
SAMJHU Rajeev 640 SOOKMANEE Dhurmah Devi
SAMONA1KHO Vinesh 641 SOOKMANEE Sailush
SANDOORAM Doshiantsingh 642 SOOKNUNDUN Mukhesh
SANTCHURN Manooraj 643 SOOKUN Sanutha
SEEBURRUN Avinash 644 SOOKUN Yashley
SEEGOBIN Shiv Anand Hemun 645 SOOKUR Dharmendra
SEEGOLAM Gulshan 646 SOONDRON Rajagopal
SEENEEVASSEN Munisamy 647 SOREEFAN Abdool Hack Meean
SEERAM-INDUR Videshwary 648 SOREEFAN Ahmud Meeah
SEETAPAH Appanah 649 SOREFAN Mohamed Moustoufa
SEETOHUL Deelipraj 650 SOYJAUDAH Ranjiv
SEETOHUL Ravi Megnath 651 SREEKEESSOON Dharkanth Rao
SEETUL-OODUN Kayutashna 652 SUFFEE Nusrat Jahan
SEEWOOBUDUL Vasish 653 SUHOTOO Noormahmud Hassam
SEEWOOGOOLAM Komalduth 654 SUJEEBUN Sanjiv
SEEWOONARAIN Kishore Santa Kumarsingh 655 SUJEEBUN-GOPAUL Maya
SEEWOOSUNKUR Shersingh 656 SUMMAH Baswin Seel
SENEVRAYAR Chidambran Selvapazhany 657 SUMMAH Hanssa Dwarka
SERVANSINGH Baboo Teknarain 658 SUNASSEE Renganaden
SEWPAUL - SUNGKUR Rina 659 SUNGKUR Monesh Kumar
SEWRAJ Seema 660 SUNGKUR Radhay Shyam
SEWSURN Shashi 661 SUNGKUR Sewin
SHAMLOLL Oomesh 662 SUNGUM Sobharani
SH1MJEE Suleiman Mahomed 663 SUNNASSEE Ananda
SIBARTIE Ajit 664 SURNAM Narayensingh
SIBARTIE Devbruth 665 SURRUN Soondal Koomar
SIBARTIE Sateeanand 666 TAKUN Munsur Ahmud
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667 TARSOO Mohamud Fazil
668 TAUCOORY Premraj Dhundev
669 TAUKOOR Bhoodeo
670 TECKKAM Paul Ng Soon
671 TENGUR Vashish Shanna
672 THACOOR Iteeswaree
673 THACOOR Satish
674 THACOOR-SITHANEN Deepti Itasha
675 THAKOOR Bhismadev
676 THAKOOR Meetranand
677 THANCANAMOOTOO Jayaram
678 THUG-MOHABEER Sandhya Devi
679 THUNGAVELU Yogun
680 T1MOL Maryam Bibi Mahmad
681 T1MOL Osman Goolam Hossen

682 TING WING YUEN Tin Yi
683 TOHOOLOO Bhavna
684 TOOFANNY Oomesh Kumar
685 TOOFANNY Rameshwar
686 TOOFANNY Videsh Kumar
687 TOORY-RUGHOOBUR Vharuna
688 TOTOO Digeshwar
689 UMANEE Virjanand
690 UMARKHAN Sheriff
691 UNMAR Yogendranathsing
692 UPADHYAYA Rajiv
693 UTEENE Farad
694 VAULBERT DE CHANTILLY Jacques R.H.B.C.J.P.

695 VEERAMOOTOO Vedanaygum
696 VEERAPEN Reuben
697 VEERARAGOO Pouranan
698 VEERASAMY Himla Devi
699 VEERATTERAPILLAY Aditi
700 VENCATASAMY - APPADOO Vina Shakuntala

701 V1RASWAMI Kevin
702 WADHWA Pankaj
703 WAN MAN CHUNG Piang Kwong
704 WONG KWEE YOUNG Wong Sing Neook

705 WONG TEN YEUN Ah Fat
706 WOODUN Raveendra

707 WOODUN Ritish
708 YACOOB Arshad Ibrahim

SN NAME

709 YAP SAN MIN Yuk Chiang
710 YARROO Kaleem Ahmad Sehzadkhan
711 YEAROO Mamode Aniff Khan
712 YEE KIN TET Hoy Youn

General Notice No. 537 of 2018

THE MEDICAL COUNCIL ACT 1999

In pursuance of section 30(1) of the medical 
council act 1999 as amended, hereunder is the list of 
temporarily registered medical practitioners who 
are authorised to practise as general practitioners 
during the year 2018.

February 19, 2018

Medical Council of Mauritius

SN NAME

1 BALAKRISHNAN Vinod Kumar

2 BARON Jean-Francois
3 BRAUER Marcus

4 BUNJUN Tejasvi

5 CANAK1AH Lena Letchumi Kandham

6 CHAUDHRY Arvind Kumar

7 FANCHETTE Nataliya
8 GOWDAGERE Rajasekharappa

9 HALLIKERI Vinay

10 KAUSER AUMEER Asra

11 LAKHAN1 Nitinkumar Nanji

12 LEUTER1TZ Antoine Jean Marie

13 LEWIS Meagan Elisabeth

14 MASKERI Dinesh

15 MOHITH-DE MUINCK KEIZER Eleanor Elisabeth

16 MOOTOOSAMY Sharmila Rose

17 OGANESYAN Anna

18 PURRUG Olga

19 REDDY CHANNA

20 SABANE Harshal

21 SHARMA Ashish

22 SHARMA Satish Ganshyam

23 STEC1UK Damien

24 SUDARSHAN NASANI
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25 SWAMI Shiv Shankar

26 THOURANI Mahesh Kumar

27 THOURAN1 Shraddha

28 UTHAMALINGAM Murali

29 VADIVELU Kathirasan

30 ZOHRA Syeda Naseem

General Notice No. 538 of 2018

THE MEDICAL COUNCIL ACT 1999

In pursuance of section 30(1) of the Medical 
Council Act 1999 as amended, hereunder is the list 
of temporarily registered medical practitioners 
who are authorised to practise as specialists during 
the year 2018.

February 19, 2018

Medical Council of Mauritius

SN NAME

1 AKBAR Saleem

2 AKK1 Veereshappa

3 ALET1 Sowmya Reddy

4 BARTHAKUR Rimli

5 BATRA Rajiv Bhushan

6 BATRA Gini

7 BENIWAL Rajesh

8 BHAIRAPPA Shrimanth

9 BHAYA Maneesha

10 BHOLAVaibhav

11 BHUVNESH KUMAR -

12 DAS SUBIR CHANDRA

13 DAV1DSEN Christine Nelly Denise

14 DAVYNolwenn Anne Marie

15 DAWKA Sushil

16 DURAISAMY Rajmohun

17 GAIKWAD Jayant

18 GUPTA Himanshu
19 HAVALDAR VADIRAJ Seshgiri Rao

20 HEDGE Sajan
21 HOODA Baljit Singh

22 HUSSAIN Rameez Najamul

SN NAME

23 J ASWAL Aparna
24 KARUNAGARAN

25 KENGUNTE NINGAPPA Nagaraj
26 KOST1C Jelena

27 KRISHNAKUMAR Mahesh

28 LEDESMA Laura Silvina

29 MAIYALAGAN Sundaresan

30 MISHRA Jai Kant

31 M1TAL Nandish

32 MUNJAL Suraj

33 MURMU Dinesh

34 PATHAK Kamal Ashokkumar
35 PATI Durga Charan

36 PETKAR Shailendra Ramesh

37 RANGASWAMY Rupnarayan

38 RAVANI KEMPAIAH Kumaraswamy

39 SELVAN Vasudevan Thirumal

40 SHAH Aashish Ramendra

41 SHIVRAM Prashanth

42 SINGH Anju Bala

43 SINGH Ashok Pratap

44 SINGH Niraj Dharmpal

45 SINHA Shilpa

46 SOUBRANE Philippe

47 SOWDHI Sudershan

48 SOWDI Vasantha Prema

49 SRIVASTAVAAnuj Kumar

50 SUBRAMANI Anuradha

51 SUNKUM Jagdish Kumar Athmaram Gupta

52 TREGUER Yves Marie -Charles

53 TUDHOPE Lynne Esther

54 VAN DER MERWE Conrad Hendrik

55 VEERASAMY Damodaran

56 VERMA Balbir Singh

57 VERMA Lalima

58 WALTON Rusell John
59 WASAN Rammappa Nagappa

* Authorised to practice medicine by virtue of a Supreme 
Court Order

1  Dr SAHA Tapash Kumar*
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General Notice No. 539 of 2038

THE DENTAL COUNCIL ACT 1999

In pursuance of section 29(1) of the Dental 
Council Act 1999, hereunder is the list of registered 
dental surgeons who are authorised to practise 
dentistry during the year 2018.

February 19, 2018

Dental Council of Mauritius

SN NAME

1 ABBASAKOOR Abdul Rafik Ismael
2 ABDOOL Yusra Fouad
3 ABDOOLA Mohammad Ziyad
4 ABDOOLATIFF Irfan
5 ABDUL Muhammad Ismael Modassir
6 ABELAK Deeksha Devi
7 ABELAK Surendra Kumar
8 ACKBARKHAN Mohamad Shafy
9 ADAMJEE Mustafa Adamali Hassanali

10 AHOTAR Pokeshwar
11 ALLYJAN Mohamade Al-Ajmal
12 ALLYMAMOD Aakil Al Azhar
13 ALLYMAMOD Atef-Al-Ashhar
14 ALLYMAN Rafaa
15 ANCHARAZ Shrutikant Shanna
16 ANUTH-SEEGOBIN Naila
17 ATCH1A Munira Bibi
18 AUKHOJEE Yashveer Kumar
19 AULEEAR Asgar Ally
20 BAGWAN Mitravidaa
21 BAICHOO Sweety Nisha Devi
22 BASANT RAI Leenakshi
23 BAZIRE Danielle Luce Marie
24 BEEBEEJAUN Mohammad Shehaad
25 BEEBEEJAUN Shameem
26 BEEDASSY Sundeep
27 BEEHARRY Ashley
28 BEEHARRY Dhaneshwar
29 BEEHARRY Nandeeta
30 BEEJADHURS1NG Nirmal Kumar
31 BEHAREE Arunesh
32 BEHAREE Dovendranath
33 BETCHOO Manoj Kumar
34 BHAGEERUTTY Yuvraj Himang K. R.

SN NAME

35 BHEECARRY Poonum
36 BHOWON Kantilall
37 BHUNJUN Sanjay Jerome
38 BHUNJUN Vishalanand
39 B1SSUMBHUR Sailesh Kumar
40 BOODHOO Leena Devi
41 BOODHOO Ramesh Khemraj
42 BOODHUN Amresh Nemraj
43 BOODHUN Neelesh
44 BOODOO NIAMUT Asha Loobna Nabeella
45 BOOJHAWON Denis
46 BOOLAKEE Stooty
47 BOYJOONAUTH Roopa Devi
48 BUSAWON Mohammad Raffiq
49 CARPEN-BAULJEEWON Nadana Navadi
50 CASSIM-DILMAHAMOOD Hafsa S.K.
51 CAULLOO Chandi Devi
52 CHAN SEEM Chow Yan
53 CHATTAROO Mohammud Iqbal
54 CHAUHAN Dayesh
55 CHAUHAN Mahendrakumar Vallabh Nath
56 CHEEKHOOREE Kumarsingh Santosh
57 CHINIAH Pierre Marcel
58 CHUNG FAT Alain
59 CHUMMUN Gayanan Parsad
60 CLARENC Joseph Noel Alain
61 CUNNUSAMY Jacques Antoine
62 DA J EE Vikash
63 DANDOOL Muhammad Yousouf
64 DEEPCHAND-DAYAL Dhanisha
65 DHOOBOREEA Vinaysingh
66 DHORAH-ROOPCHAND Genista Koosoom
67 d’HOTMAN DE VILLIERS Raymond Jean-Loup
68 DHUNPUTH Ratna Devi
69 DHUNPUTH S1CHARAM Raksha Devi
70 DHUNY Mohammad Shaffick Hussein
71 DHUNY Sulleeman
72 DJNASS1NG Narvada
73 DOMAH Trivina Kumari
74 DOMUN Ahmad Khan
75 DOMUN Vikash Ashwin
76 DOOLUB Rookmanee
77 DOWLUT Rosida Bibi
78 DUFFAYDAR Imrane
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79 DUSORUTH Varuna 124 JUGOO NAGA Ganeshwari
80 DUSOWOTH Dharmendra Kumar Singh 125 KADEER Mamode Saheed
81 DUSSOYE Mirendra 126 KARREEMAN Nuzhat Muhammad Zubair
82 DYALL Benny 127 KARREEMAN Noorie Nazia Banu
83 EDOO Nushra Banon 128 KEENOO Azhar Muhammad
84 ELAHEE Suhaylah 129 KEENOO Muhammad Nadeem
85 ELYHEE Dawood 130 KEENOO Shakina Tahseen
86 EMERY Jean Louis 131 KEERODHUR Shantabai Sheila Koomaree
87 FAK1M - FOONDUN Sooraya 132 KHA DUN Amardeep
88 FAK1M Ameerah Azeeza 133 KHADUN Nadeem Ali
89 FATA DIN Ambreen Neelam 134 KHEDAH Sachin Rajiv
90 FUGURALLY Mohamade Mehsouf 135 KHODABUX Ehsan Abdool Hamid
91 FUTLOO Muhammad Arshad Hussein 136 KHOYRUTTY Irshad Ahmad
92 GAJADHUR-MADHOU Bhavna Devi 137 KONG KAM WA Alan Clive
93 GOOLJAR Ashvin Yogesh 138 KONG KAM WANick Fong Pierre
94 GOOROOCHURN Chandra Shekar 139 KOOLASH Geetanjani
95 GOPAUL Yousuf Mahmood 140 KUREEMUN Bibi Rahima
96 GURBAH Himanshu Shanna 141 LAM THUON MINE Lim Louck Kwong
97 HAREL Jean Bertrand Yannick 142 LANG PING NAM Thoy Foong Jim
98 HOOZEER Mohamad Ally 143 LEE YUNG PING Khune Kee Andre
99 HOSSEINALLY Abdullah Razi 144 LEELODHARRY Pragati

100 HURHANGEE Deoraj 145 LIM AH TOCK Jacques Kwet Shin
101 HURHANGEE Suvaranalata 146 LOUISE Pierre Herold
102 HURRY Madhuree 147 MADERBOKUS Ahmad Nasser
103 INDER Bibi Adilah 148 MAGHOO Jayprakashsingh
104 JADOO-KALYCHURN Sandhya 149 MAHADOOA Pavish
105 JAGATSINGH Krittika Khittoo 150 MANDHUB Joy
106 JAHAJEEAH Ajay Kumar 151 MANDHUB Tatiana
107 JANKEE Mokshada 152 MANGOU Amode
108 JANKEE Prithvirajsingh 153 MARTIN Michel
109 JAUHANDY Bibi Shaheen 154 MASLAMOUNY Ponsamy
110 JAUMEER Mahomed Ally 155 MATADEEN Kapil Anoop
111 JAWAHEER Abdool Kader 156 MATHURE Zakiyyah
112 JAYEPROKASH Meghraj Teewaree 157 MAUNKEE Adish
113 JAYSEERY Mitranand 158 MAUNKEE Antish
114 JEETUN Rishta Darsinee 159 MEEAJAN Yusuf Ali
115 JHUG Isht Dev 160 MEWA Manish
116 JHUMMUN Pakeezah 161 MOHABEER Tunesha
117 JHUMUN Vishwanand 162 MOOLOO Devbunsduth
118 JHURRY Abdool Rahman 163 MUNGLOO Mohammud Shamshad
119 JI VAN JI Hemant Kumar 164 MUNGLOO Mohammud Shezaad
120 JOOMUN Fayyad Azam 165 MUNGRAH Natasha
121 JOOTLTN Muhammad Riyaad 166 MUNGUR Jyotee
122 JOWAHEER Bashir Ahmad 167 MUNGUR Pradeep Kumar Mohabeer
123 JOWAHEER Twaher Ahmad 168 MUNGUTROY Noomesh Sharma
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169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

NAME

NABEE Mohammad Wasim

NAECK Kapildeo

NAGA Shalini

NAGA Yash Dev

NAIKEN Hari Krishna

NAMAH Roodradutt

NANGAN Andrew Benito

NASAPEN Daniel Martin Rajoo

NASAPEN Dev Kumar 

NAZURALLY Mohammud Reezwan 

NG FOONG NIOVE Vee Niame

NG SING KWONG M. C. Nyam Foon

NUNDLALL Sharoona

OOZEERKHAN Bibi Ameerah

PAC SOO Khon Knien

PAUROBALLY Mohammad Rechade

PEERALLY Sheik Mohammad Fouad

PEERAULLY Nabiila

PEERBOCUS Adel Fazoolovich

PEERBUX Mohammad Irfhan

PEERBUX Tayeb

POINOOSAWMY Roocmanee

POKUN Shazia

PUCHOOA Vidoushi Sumedha

PUDDOO Yanesh

PYND1AH Nita

RAGOO Gary Neel

RAJAH Rahima Bibi Ahmed

RAJCOOMAR Ewa Maria

RAMASAWMY Soundressen

RAMBHUDOYE Duljeet

RAMCHURN Deeksha

RAMCHURN Khevsing Yashil

RAMDEWOR Krista Jaya

RAMDHANY Kiran Koomar

RAMDHONY Nitincoomar

RAMDIN Dhirendranath

RAMDIN Gauri

SN NAME

207 RAMDIN Sahil Singh

208 RAMJEE Harvansh

209 RAMKORUN Dooshant

210 RAMLALL Pawan Kumar

211 RAMLUGON Gowtee

212 RAMLUGUN Chandrakiran

213 RAMPUTTY Ishwaamath

214 RAMRACHUYA Jeyshun

215 RAMSAHA Homeshwumath

216 RAMSAMY-VAYAPOOREE Rorgeenee

217 RAMSING Muhammad Bilaal Jannoo

218 RAWOO Muhammad Ismael

219 ROOMALLAH Poonam Doorgah

220 ROSE Jean Donny

221 ROSTOM Abeedeen Ibney Jaynool

222 RUCHCHAN Kevin

223 RUGHOOBEER Akshaye Prashant

224 RUGHOOBUR Jaywantee

225 RUGHOOBUR Nandita Urvashi

226 RUGHOOBUR Vidya

227 RUHOMUTALLY Muhammad Samiir

228 SAH ADUT Amode Nazir

229 SALEHMOHAMED Abdullah Haroon

230 SAMPATKavin

231 SANTUCK Nivesha

232 SAVOO Calaymani

233 SAWMYNADEN Pouvalen Pillay

234 SEEBUNDHUN Deesha

235 SEEBURRUN Rashmee Samhita

236 SEEGOBIN Kailash

237 SEEGOBIN Veeraj

238 SEEROO Muhammad Ali

239 SEETHA Sanjna Devi

240 SEEWOOGOOLAM Maitreyi

241 SEEWOOLALL Vishwaprakash

242 SENGUPTA Sandeep Kumar

243 SHAWOOTAULLY Mohamad Yasheen Beelall

244 SHEWHORAK Vinod Kumar
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SN NAME

245 SOBHA Prinsha

246 SOBLTN Sharmaduth

247 SOHODEB Vikesh Kumar

248 SONAH JARIA Ragini Mohabeer

249 SONAH Sunil

250 SOOBRATTY Mohamad Javedkhan

251 SOOBRATY Goolam Ahmad

252 SOODHUN Ajmal Wasim Ahmud Khan

253 SOOKEE Poomima

254 SOOKOOWAREEA Raj Kamal

255 SOOLTANGOS Mahmud Ahmad

256 SOONDRON Ranjan

257 SOONDRON Yadavi

258 SOREFAN Mohammad Yusuf Mia Ayoob

259 SOREFAN Mohamud Raffick

260 SOWARUTH Brambhudutt

261 SREEKEESSOON Komal

262 SUFFEE Muhammad Yusuf

263 SUHOOTOORAH Bibi Noorjahan Khatija

264 SUHOTOO Rahmatullah

265 SUNG KER Tilak Raj

266 SURNAM Krishen-Singh

267 TAJOO Pooja Darshini

268 TEELUCKDHARRY Hitasha

269 THAKURDAS Parasmanee

270 TIOU FAT Cheong Ren Hee Pin

271 TO TOK SHAU Cheng Yung

272 TORUL Vijay Kumar

273 VIAL Mohammar Ilamshah

274 VITRY AUD1BERT Marie Louis Patrick

275 WONG CHING Olivier Wong Kwai

276 WONG TEN YUEN Ah Min

General Notice No. 540 of 2018

THE DENTAL COUNCIL ACT 1999

In pursuance of section 29(1) of the Dental 
Council Act 1999, hereunder is the list of registered 
dental practitioners who are authorised to practise 

as dental specialists in their respective fields 
during the year 2018.

February 19, 2018

Dental Council of Mauritius

SN NAME

1 ABELAK Ewa Maria

2 BAICHOO Shaubhanand Aveen

3 BOOJHAWON Cheetrdeo

4 CAULLOO Geenish

5 CH1CKOOREE Daminee

6 CHUTTUR Dheerandra Kumar

7 CONHYEDOSS Chandrekant

8 DAUHOO Mohammad Aadil

9 FALLEE Priyanka

10 FULEN A Yashwant Jugmohunsing

11 HEERAMUN Bhavisha

12 INDUR Bhushita

13 JAGARNATH Premchand

14 JANHANGEER Liinaa

15 JAUFEERALLY Abdel Salim

16 JHUGROO Ashroy

17 KALLEE Jinesha Ranee

18 KINNOO Basti Risi

19 MANGROO Kiran Devi

20 MOHADEB Jhassu Varsha Naveena

21 MUNGLOO Mohammud Iqbal

22 NAG A Dhunveer Raj Kumar

23 OSMAN Mohammad Rezah Mahomed

24 POORUN Ved Vyash

25 RAM Vahsish

26 RAMDIN lan

27 RUCHPAUL Tasveer Sharma

28 SOMAR Mirinal

29 SONAH Rajend

30 SURDHA Deolall

31 TOHOOLOO Sharvana

32 TOOFANNY Ashvin Kumar

33 YAN LUK Patrice Youn Sen
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General Notice No. 541 of 2018
SN NAME

THE DENTAL COUNCIL ACT 1999 8 SOODHUN Nudrat

In pursuance of section 29(1) of the Dental 9 VASHISHT Deepak

Council Act 1999, hereunder is the list of dental
surgeons given temporary registration.

February 19, 2018

Dental Council of Mauritius

General Notice No. 542 of 2018

THE DENTAL COUNCIL ACT 1999

In pursuance of section 29(1) of the Dental
Council Act 1999, hereunder is the list of dental

SN NAME
specialists given temporary registration.

February 19, 2018
1 ANCHARAZ Deval Nikhil

2 BESSAN-BERNARD Helene Marjorie Dental Council of Mauritius

3 DA PENA Damian Nazareno
SN NAME

4 DUPONT Olivier
1 GR1GORJEVA Diana

5 MARTIN Eric Pierre Roger 2 JAYAKODI Arvind Narayan
6 PARMAR Mayursinh Bharatsinh 3 RAJU Hema

7 RAHEJA Ajay 4 ROONGTA-MORARJEE Bakul Murlidhar

General Notice No. 543 of 2018

The Mauritius Standards Bureau Act 1993

DECLARATION OF DRAFT MAURITIAN STANDARDS

Notice is hereby given by the Standards Council in accordance with Section 18 of the Mauritius
Standards Bureau Act 1993 that the following Draft Mauritian Standards are declared:

No Reference Title

1 DMS ISO 7165:2017 Fire fighting — Portable fire extinguishers — Performance and 
construction

2 DMS ISCVTS 11999-2:2016 PPE for firefighters — Test methods and requirements for PPE 
used by firefighters who are at risk of exposure to high levels of 
heat and/or flame while fighting fires occurring in structures — 
Part 2: Compatibility

3 DMS ISO 11999-4:2015 PPE for firefighters — Test methods and requirements for PPE 
used by firefighters who are at risk of exposure to high levels of 
heat and/or flame while fighting fires occurring in structures — 
Part 4: Gloves

4 DMS ISO 16975-3:2017 Respiratory protective devices - Selection, use and maintenance - 
Part 3: Fit-testing procedures
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No Reference Title

5 DMS ISO/FDIS 45001 Occupational health and safety management systems - 
Requirements with guidance for use

6 DMS ISO DIS 22326 Security and resilience — Emergency management — Guidelines 
for monitoring facilities with identified hazards

7 DMS ISO 13943:2017 Fire safety - Vocabulary

8 DMS ISO/IEC 17025:2017 General requirements for the competence of testing and calibration 
laboratories

9 DMS ISO/IEC 17011:2017 Conformity assessment - Requirements for accreditation bodies 
accrediting conformity assessment bodies

10 DMS ISO/TS 20658:2017 Medical laboratories — Requirements for collection, transport, 
receipt and handling of samples

11 DMS ISO 1144:2016 Textiles — Universal system for designating linear density 
(Tex System)

12 DMS ISO/FDIS 18890 Clothing - Standard method of garment measurement

13 DMS ISO DIS 20739 Martial arts - Wushu Taiji Clothing — Requirements and test 
method

14 DMS ISO DIS 20740 Martial arts - Wushu Taiji sword ~ Requirements and test method

15 DMS ISO 11609:2017 Dentistry - Dentifrices - Requirements, test methods, and marking

16 DMS 177 Basmati rice - Specifications and test methods
- Part 1: Indian basmati rice - Part 2: Pakistan basmati rice

Any person may inspect the particulars of the draft standards at the Mauritius Standards Bureau.

Any person may within 60 days from the publication of the notice, lodge with the Acting Director, 
Mauritius Standards Bureau a written objection or representation concerning the draft standards.

Date: 30 March 2018.

Ministry of Industry, Commerce and 
Consumer Protection
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General Notice No. 544 of 2018

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS TRIBUNAL

ERT/RN 143/2017

RULING
Before:-

Shameer Janhangeer Vice-President

Marie Desiree Lily Lactive (Ms) Member

Eddy Appasamy Member

Kevin C. Lukeeram Member

In the matter of: -

Mr Mahadeo ROOPSING

and
Disputant

THE STATE OF MAURITIUS
as represented by the

Ministry of Civil Service and Administrative Reforms
Respondent

The present matter has been referred to the Tribunal by the Commission for 
Conciliation and Mediation (the "CCM") pursuant to section 69 (7) of the Employment Relations 
Act (the "Act"). The Terms of Reference of the dispute reads as follows:

Whether I should be granted Incremental Credit as per paragraph 18.9.19 of 
the Pay Research Bureau (PRB) Report 2013 for the Bachelor in science degree 
in Management awarded to me in December 2015 or be paid the relevant non- 
pensionable lump sum for same as per para. 18.9.16 (v) of the PRB Report 
2016.

The Disputant was assisted by his trade union representative Mr N. Gopee. Whereas, 
the Respondent was assisted by Miss B. H. Maherally, State Counsel instructed by Ms A.

1
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Mohun, State Attorney. The Respondent has, in its Statement of Reply, raised a threefold 
Preliminary Objection in Law to the dispute in the present matter. This states as follows:

Respondent avers that the Tribunal has no jurisdiction to deal with the present 
matter inasmuch as-

(a) it does not constitute a labour dispute as defined in Section 2 of the 
Employment Relations Act, in particular paragraph (b) of the said 
definition, since the Disputant has exercised an option to be governed 
by the recommendations made in the Pay Research Bureau Report 
2016;

(b) the terms of reference read together with the prayer at paragraph 17 of 
the Disputant's statement of case would require a fundamental change 
or departure from the relevant recommendations of the Pay Research 
Bureau Report 2016; and

(c) the Disputant is seeking to challenge an administrative decision.

Respondent therefore moves that the present matter be set aside.

The matter was therefore fixed for arguments on the Preliminary Objection in Law 
raised by the Respondent.

The Respondent called its representative, Mrs Sattamah Millien, Ag. Manager Human 
Resource at the Ministry of Civil Service and Administrative Reforms, to adduce evidence in 
support of the Preliminary Objections. The representative notably produced a copy of the 
original of the Option Form signed by the Disputant (Document A) on 15 April 2016. She also 
produced Circular Note No. 6 of 2016 dated 7 April 2016 (Document B) issued by the Ministry of 
Civil Service and Administrative Reforms ("MCSAR") for implementation of the Pay Research 
Bureau ("PRB") Report 2016; Circular Note No. 16 of 2016 dated 17 October 2016 (Document C) 
from MCSAR pertaining to the Addendum Report; Circular Note No.l of 2017 dated 3 February 
2017 (Document D) from MCSAR pertaining to implementations of the PRB recommendations 
regarding Higher Qualification Incentives ("HQI"). On being questioned by the Disputant's 
representative on whether there is a smooth transitional mechanism as recommended by the 
PRB at paragraph 18.9.18A in its report, Mrs Millien referred to the Standing Committee set up 
under aforesaid paragraph of the Addendum Report, where regulations should be devised to 
deal with the award of HQI; the Standing Committee did make recommendations wherever 
necessary.

2
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State Counsel for the Respondent has, in relation to the first limb of the Preliminary 
Objection, notably submitted that the present matter does not constitute a labour dispute 
referring to the definition of same in the Act - in particular paragraph (b), as the Disputant has 
opted to be governed by the recommendations made in the PRB Report 2016 as witnessed by 
the Option Form produced. According to Circular Note No. 6 of 2016, the effective date for the 
implementation of the PRB Report 2016 is 1 January 2016. The Disputant has averred that he 
qualifies for an increment under the relevant recommendations at paragraph 3 of his 
Statement of Case. The issue is not about eligibility, but relates to remuneration or allowance. 
The Disputant is asking for the increment as per the PRB Report 2013 when he is being 
governed by the PRB Report 2016. State Counsel referred to the ruling of the Tribunal in S. 
Dawon and Mauritius Institute of Training and Development (ERT/RN 163/15 to ERT/RN 
170/15). She submitted that the matter is purely and simply related to remuneration. An 
extract from Hansard relating to Debate No. 15 of 13.06.03 was produced in relation to an 
amendment brought to the Industrial Relations Act in 2003.

State Counsel has further submitted from the definition of remuneration in the 
Employment Rights Act and produced the definition of the term 'emoluments' from Stroud's 
Judicial Dictionary of Words and Phrases, submitting that ‘emoluments' has a wide definition. It 
is her humble submission that the HQI, which is also a lump sum payment, is part of 
emoluments. The dispute concerns whether HQI will apply or increments; the increment, 
according to the ruling, is part of remuneration or allowance of any kind. The Disputant is 
therefore debarred from reporting a dispute having exercised his option to be governed by the 
recommendations of the PRB Report.

State Counsel chose to argue the second and third limbs of the Preliminary objection 
together. Reference was made to paragraph 17 of the Disputant's Statement of Case, whereby 
the Disputant is praying to be awarded an incremental credit for his higher qualification in line 
with paragraph 18.9.19 of the PRB Report 2013. A copy of paragraph 21.27 of the PRB Report 
2016 was produced referring to the recommendation that the matter should be referred to the 
High Powered Committee ("HPC") where there would be a fundamental change or departure 
from the main recommendation of the 2016 Report. According to paragraph 2 of the 
Disputant's Statement of Case, the matter has already been referred to the HPC and a decision 
was taken. This administrative decision is now being contested before the Tribunal. In relation 
to the third limb, State Counsel submitted that it appears that a decision was taken by the 
Standing Committee (set up under paragraph 18.9.18 of the PRB Report 2016) referring to a 
letter dated 8 August 2016 annexed as Document 3 to the Disputant's Statement of Case; this

3
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decision is being presently contested before the Tribunal, which is not the proper forum to do 
so.

Mr N. Gopee has made a statement on behalf of the Disputant in reply to the arguments 
of the Respondent. Under the first limb of the Preliminary Objection, Mr Gopee stated that it is 
not disputed that the Disputant signed an Option Form and offered his consent to be governed 
by the recommendations of the PRB in its 2016 report. However, this does not debar the 
Disputant from disputing the interpretation of any of the recommendations of the report so 
long as the dispute does not relate to the substance of the report. The present dispute was not 
rejected by the President of the CCM nor did the Respondent submit any Preliminary Objection 
at that instant. Due process requires that the Respondent raises the objections in limine litis at 
that stage.

Mr Gopee has stated that the present case concerns the erroneous application of the 
PRB recommendation regarding HQI in light of paragraph 18.9.18A of the Addendum Report 
(copy of which was produced). Owing to the confusion that HQI might create, the PRB has 
entrusted the Standing Committee to look into the smooth transition mechanism so that there 
is no dispute over either incremental credit or HQI. The Act restricts disputes over the 
substance of the recommendation as far as remuneration and allowance is concerned, but this 
cannot be construed as a bar to the right of the Disputant to report a dispute over the 
applicability and implementation of the recommendation. The Disputant contends that the 
recommendation is wrongly being implemented. A public officer is not debarred from reporting 
a dispute over the applicability, interpretation and implementation of the recommendation of 
the PRB. The jurisdiction of the Tribunal can only be disputed on grounds as set out in section 
71 of the Act, which does not apply to the present dispute. Under section 97 of the Act, the 
Tribunal has to maintain good employment relations.

Under the second limb of the Preliminary Objection, Mr Gopee stated that the prayer of 
the Disputant at paragraph 17 of his Statement of Case does not motivate a fundamental 
change in the substance of the relevant recommendation of the PRB Report 2016 nor does it 
motivate any departure from same as claimed by the Respondent. He produced a copy of 
paragraph 21.7 of the PRB Report 2016 relating to the effective date of the 2016 report. He 
referred to the definition of the word 'prospectively' in the case of Government Services 
Employees Association and The State of Mauritius as represented by the Mauritius Fire and 
Rescue Services (ERT/RN 65/17). He also submitted a copy of paragraph 18.9.16 (v) of the PRB 
Report 2016 dealing with HQI. Under the third limb of the Preliminary Objections, the Disputant 
has contended that he is not challenging the administrative decision of the HPC but just simply 
disputing the implementation, applicability and interpretation. Mr Gopee also stated that 

4
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definition of remuneration under the Employment Rights Act does not apply to public officers 
and applies to the private sector.

The Respondent, under the first limb of the Preliminary Objection in Law, contends that 
the dispute does not constitute a labour dispute as defined at paragraph (b) of the meaning of 
labour dispute under section 2 of the Act. In fact, the Respondent is referring to the following 
provision of the law:

"labour dispute" -

(b) does not, notwithstanding any other enactment, include a dispute by a 
worker made as a result of the exercise by him of an option to be 
governed by the recommendations made in a report of the Pay 
Research Bureau or a salary commission, by whatever name called, in 
relation to remuneration or allowances of any kind;

As per the Terms of Reference of the present matter, the Tribunal is being asked to 
enquire into whether the Disputant should be granted incremental credit as per paragraph 
18.9.19 of the PRB Report 2013 for the BSc in Management awarded to him in December 2015 
or be paid a non-pensionable lump sum for same in accordance with paragraph 18.9.16 (v) of 
the PRB Report 2016.

It should also be noted that the Disputant, in his Statement of Case, is praying for 'the 
Tribunal to reinstate him in his right to be awarded an incremental credit for his higher 
qualification in line with paragraph 18.9.19 under Recommendation 7 of PRB Report 2013'.

It is useful to set out the aforesaid paragraphs of the aforementioned PRB Reports. 
Paragraph 18.9.19 of the PRB Report 2013 Volume 1 provides as follows:

Recommendation 7

18.9.19 We recommend the grant of one incremental credit for each level of 
additional qualification obtained, whether partly relevant or not, 
subject to a maximum of three, as follows:

(a) Bachelor Degree - One increment
(b) Master's Degree - Two increments [inclusive of

the increment at (a)]

5
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(c) Doctorate and above - Three increments [inclusive 
of the two increments at (b)J

Moreover, paragraph 18.9.16 (v) of the PRB Report 2016 Volume 1 has to be considered 
in the whole of paragraph 18.9.16 and this provides as follows:

Recommendation 4

18.9.16 We recommend the payment of lump sum rates of Higher 
Qualification Incentives (HQI) as per table at (v) for qualifications 
which are directly relevant to the performance of the duties of the 
grade and are higher than the qualifications specified in the scheme 
of service for the grade and subject to the following conditions:

(i) the additional qualifications are obtained following 
an examination and are duly recognised by the 
Mauritius Qualifications Authority or the Tertiary 
Education Commission;

(ii) where different qualifications are laid down in a 
particular scheme of service, the highest one would 
be taken as the basic qualification for the purpose of 
determining eligibility for payment of HQI;

(iii) only officers holding a substantive appointment 
would be considered for the grant of HQI for 
additional qualifications;

(iv) officers who have already benefited from the 
payment of HQI for additional qualifications in one 
capacity would not be granted HQI anew for the 
same qualifications in another capacity;

(v) the payment of a lump sum rate of HQI for 
additional

qualifications should be as follows:

Qualification Amount (Rs)

Doctorate and above 
specialist qualifications for 
profession. v

i

including 
medical

30000

Master's Decree 20000

Bachelor Degree 16000

6
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an officer should not be eligible more than twice in 
his or her career.

As is apparent from the above mentioned provisions of the PRB Reports, the Disputant is 
claiming incremental credit depending on the qualification as per the 2013 report; or the 
payment of a lump sum for HQI pursuant to the conditions set out being fulfilled in accordance 
with the 2016 report.

Would the recommendation of the payment of the increment pursuant to paragraph 
18.9.19 of the PRB Report 2013 relate to 'remuneration or allowances of any kind'? It should be 
noted that this recommendation directly relates to the issue of the grant of incremental credit. 
From paragraph 18.9.1 of the PRB Report 2013, increment has been described as follows:

Increment

18.9.1 Most of the grades in the Public Sector have the salaries which are in
scales. A salary scale has an initial and a top salary point. Movement 
from the initial to the top salary point is incremental. A few grades 
have aflat salary (one point salary). When the salary of an officer is on 
an incremental scale, the holder is not entitled to draw any increment 
as of right. An officer, on appointment, is granted the initial salary of 
the salary scale of the grade. The guaranteed salary for an incumbent 
in the grade is the initial salary and any movement in the scale has to 
be earned. Increment is a method for rewarding those who have 
demonstrated adequate yearly progress and whose work and conduct 
have been satisfactory.

A similar description of increment has also been offered by the PRB at paragraph 18.9.1 
of its 2016 report. As may be gleaned from this description, increment is directly related to 
salary. Would it therefore fall under the ambit of the term 'remuneration'? Although the term 
'remuneration' has not been defined in the Act, the following may be noted from what the 
Supreme Court stated in A.J. Maurel Construction Ltee v Froget [2008 MR 6]:

Remuneration includes salary and the benefits that may be said to go with the salary 
or "the solarium" which includes the "accessories:" see Jean-Emmanuel Ray Droit du 
Travail, Droit Vivant p. 173, para 123.

Moreover, it would be appropriate to note what the Supreme Court stated in relation to 
the term 'remuneration' in the case of Stella Insurance Co Ltd v Ramphul [1987 MR 151]-.

7
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It should, in our view, mean, to quote from the editor of Stroud's Judicial Dictionary 
who thus paraphrases the ratio decidendi of the English case just referred to: 
"everything which is quantifiable and paid to the worker."

The following may also be noted from J. Pelissier, G. Auzero and E. Dockes in Droit du 
travail, Precis Dalloz, 26e edition, p.875, 876, note 851 on the issue of remuneration in relation 
to salary;

Une distinction est ainsi introduce entre une notion large de remuneration de I'emploi, 
et une notion plus etroite de salaire, qui serait essentiellement le prix de base du 
travail fourni. Mais les expressions de « salaire » et de « remuneration (du travail) » 
sont souvent employees, dans le Code du travail, comme synonymes. II faut done 
admettre que « salaire » possede, dans la langue du droit du travail, un sens etroit 
(salaire de base) et un sens large (ensemble du salaire de base augmente des « 
complements du salaire », qui en sont des « elements constitutifs »), dans lequel il a 
pour synonyme « remuneration ».

It is thus clear that as increment is directly linked to salary, it would amply fall within the 
ambit of the term 'remuneration’ and thus a dispute concerning the grant of same would not be 
deemed to be a labour dispute pursuant to paragraph (b) of the meaning of labour dispute 
under section 2 of the Act.

It is also pertinent to note that it has not been disputed that the Disputant has signed 
the Option Form opting to be governed by the recommendations of the PRB Report as is 
evidenced by Document A produced. It has not also been disputed that the Disputant applied 
for the award of incremental credits under the PRB Report 2013 in or around June 2016, which 
is after the effective date implementation of the PRB Report 2016 and after he signed the 
Option Form to be governed by same on 15 April 2016.

It now remains to be seen if the payment of a lump sum for HQI pursuant to paragraph 
18.9.16 (v) of the PRB Report 2016 would fall within the ambit of the term ‘remuneration’ as 
has been contemplated at paragraph (b) of the meaning of labour dispute under section 2 of 
the Act. A scrutiny of the whole of paragraph 18.9.16 of the PRB Report 2016 reveals that the 
payment of the lump sum is not automatic and is subject to certain conditions as set out 
therein.

8
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The payment of the lump sum comprises the payment of an amount of money 
depending on the type of qualification as set out in the table at paragraph 18.9.16 (v) of the 
PRB Report 2016. This payment is normally made in the salary of the officer and would thus be 
part of the salary of the beneficiary. Despite the appellation of a lump sum, its payment, 
whether one off or otherwise, is made as part of the salary of the officer and would thus be 
within the officer's remuneration.

Given that the legislator has contemplated the exclusion of disputes pertaining to 
recommendations of the PRB Report in relation to 'remuneration ... of any kind' from the 
meaning of a labour dispute, the payment of the lump sum would fall within the wide ambit of 
paragraph (b) of the meaning of labour dispute under section 2 of the Act.

The Disputant would thus be barred from bringing a dispute for the payment of a lump 
sum for his BSc in Management as per paragraph 18.9.16 (v) of the PRB Report 2016 in view of 
the exclusion to the meaning of a labour dispute made at paragraph (b) under section 2 of the 
Act.

The Tribunal has noted that it is the argument of the Disputant that his dispute relates 
to the application, interpretation and implementation of the PRB recommendations and not to 
the substance of same. The Tribunal, in view of the Terms of Reference of the present dispute 
and of the prayer sought by the Disputant as set out in his Statement of Case, cannot concur 
with this argument.

Indeed, a perusal of the Terms of Reference reveal that the Disputant is asking to be 
granted an incremental credit or be paid a non-pensionable lump sum. This clearly 
demonstrates that the Disputant is first and foremost seeking the award of an increment or of a 
lump sum pursuant to the relevant paragraphs of the PRB Reports of 2013 and 2016 and is not 
per se principally concerned with the application, interpretation or implementation of the 
aforementioned recommendations of the PRB Reports as cited in the Terms of Reference.

Likewise, the Disputant, at paragraph 17 of his Statement of Case, is praying for the 
Tribunal 'to reinstate him in his right to be awarded an incremental credit for his higher 
qualification ...’. This again clearly shows that the Disputant is not primarily seeking the 
interpretation or the applicability of the PRB recommendation but the award of the increment 
pursuant to the relevant paragraph of the PRB Report.

9
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At this juncture, it would be useful to reflect on what was stated by the Supreme Court 
in Federation of Civil Service and Other Unions and others v The State of Mauritius and anor. 
[2009 SCJ 214]:

Should he of his own free will, however, opt to be governed by the recommendations in 
the new report, he is presumed like any citizen to know the law, including the new 
provisions, and cannot declare a dispute in relation to his remuneration or allowances.

It has also been noted that the representative of the Disputant has stated that the 
present Preliminary Objections in Law to the dispute should have been raised before the CCM 
and not before the Tribunal. The Disputant has also contended that the jurisdiction of the 
Tribunal can only be disputed on grounds as set out in section 71 of the Act, which does not 
apply to the present dispute.

The Tribunal, in view of the contentions of the Disputant, would refer to a ruling of the 
then Permanent Arbitration Tribunal in Mrs C. M. Tatiah and Development Bank of Mauritius 
(RN 758) delivered on 4 August 2004, which was followed in the matter of 5. Dawon and 
Mauritius Institute of Training and Development (supra). Therein, the Permanent Arbitration 
Tribunal notably stated:

The Tribunal wishes to address itself first on whether once a referral is made, it 
is bound to adjudicate on the dispute. Indeed Section 83 of the Industrial Relations Act 
1973 as amended states "Where any dispute is referred to the Tribunal by the Minister 
under section 82, the Tribunal shall, with all diligence, inquire into the dispute and 
make an award on it". Section 5 of the Interpretation and General Clauses Act defines 
"shall" as "may be read as imperative", (the underlining is ours).

Are we to hear any dispute referred to us by the Minister if the Tribunal finds 
that the dispute does not fall within the legal parameters of an industrial dispute as 
per the Industrial Relations Act 1973 as amended?

Russell on Arbitration, 18th Edition by Anthony Walton Q.C. at page 73 reads:

"It can hardly be within the arbitrator's jurisdiction to decide whether or not a 
condition precedent to his jurisdiction has been fulfilled. However, an arbitrator is 
always entitled to inquire whether or not he has jurisdiction, (see Brown v. 
Oesterreichischer Waldbesitzer R.G.m.b.h. (1954) (Q.B.8) An umpire faced with a 
dispute whether or not there was a contract from which alone his jurisdiction, if any, 
deal with the matter at all and leave the parties to go to the court, or he can consider 
the matter and if he forms the view that the contract upon which the claimant is 
relying and from which, if established, alone his jurisdiction can arise is in truth the

10
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contract, he can proceed accordingly. (Per Roskill J. in Lunada Exportadora and others
v. Tamari and Sons and Others (1967) L. Lloyd’s Rep. 353 at page 364)."

The Tribunal concedes therefore that whenever a compulsory arbitration is 
referred to it, it has no choice than to inquire into the dispute provided it satisfies the 
Tribunal that it is an industrial dispute.

It is trite understanding that the Tribunal will have no jurisdiction to hear a dispute 
which is not a labour dispute as defined in the Act. The Tribunal cannot therefore be precluded 
from being satisfied as to whether the dispute before it is a labour dispute as is defined under 
the Act.

Under section 71 of the Act, the Tribunal cannot enquire into a labour dispute where 
same relates to any issue within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Industrial Court; or which is the 
subject of pending proceedings before the Commission or any court of law. The Tribunal, 
before reaching this threshold, must however be satisfied as to whether the dispute before it 
amounts to a labour dispute in the first place. Only after having been satisfied of same can the 
Tribunal determine whether the labour dispute would fall within the exclusions provided for in 
the aforesaid section. The Tribunal is therefore entitled to satisfy itself as to whether the 
dispute is indeed a labour dispute as defined under the Act.

The Tribunal therefore finds that the first limb of the Preliminary objection in Law raised 
by the Respondent must succeed. As the Tribunal has found that the present dispute does not 
constitute a labour dispute as is defined under the Act, the Tribunal does not find it necessary 
to consider the other two limbs of the Preliminary Objection in Law raised by the Respondent.

The present dispute is therefore set aside.

. * 11
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SD Shameer Janhangeer 
(Vice-President)

SD Marie Desiree Lily Lactive (Ms) 
(Member)

SD Eddy Appasamy 
(Member)

SD Kevin C. Lukeeram
(Member)

Date: 30th March 2018
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General Notice No. 545 of 2018

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS TRIBUNAL

AWARD
ERT/RN 146/17

Before
Rashid Hossen - President
Marie Desiree Lily Lactive (Ms) - Member

Abdool Feroze Acharauz - Member
Teenah Jutton-Seeburrun (Mrs) - Member

In the matter of:-

ERT/RN 146 /17 - Miss Marie Florence Francois (Disputant)

And

Rodrigues Regional Assembly (Respondent)

In the presence of:-

Ministry of Civil Service & Administrative Reforms (Co-Respondent) 

thOn 27 July 2017, Miss Marie Florence Francois, residing at Citronelle, Rodrigues 

reported to the Rodrigues Commission for Conciliation and Mediation the 

existence of a labour dispute between herself and the Rodrigues Regional 

Assembly as per Section 64(1) of the Employment Relations Act 2008, as 

amended. Conciliation meetings were held at the Commission. As no settlement 

could be reached, the Commission referred the labour dispute to the Tribunal for 
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arbitration in terms of Section 69(7) of the Employment Relations Act 2008, as 
amended.

Miss Marie Florence Francois is hereinafter referred to as the Disputant and the 

Rodrigues Regional Assembly as the Respondent. The hearing took place on 13th 

January 2018 in the District Court of Rodrigues in the presence of the Ministry of 

Civil Service & Administrative Reforms.

Mr Ajay Daby, of Counsel, instructed by Mr Hemend Kumar Fulena, Attorney, 

appeared for the Disputant. Mr Isnoo Vijay Cooshna, of Counsel, instructed by Mr 

Anwar Abbasakoor, Attorney, appeared for the Respondent. The Co-Respondent 
was not legally represented.

The point in dispute is,

“Whether in accordance with recommendation EOAC 316 paragraph 

39.38 of the EOAC report PRB 2013, my grade as Higher Executive 

Officer should have merged with the grade of Office Management 

Executive and be restyled Office Management Executive as has been the 

case for my counterpart in Mauritius”.

In her Statement of Case, Disputant avers in substance:

• She joined the service as Extra Teaching Assistant on 27th April 1979. She 

was appointed as Clerical Assistant on 21st January 1981, Executive Office 

on 25th August 2003 and promoted Higher Executive Officer on 19th July 

2010.

2
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• The Errors, Omissions and Anomalies Committee Report (EOAC) - PRB 

2013 Recommendation EOAC 316 paragraph 39.38 stipulates that:

“The Committee recommends that the grade of Higher Executive Officer be 

merged with the grade of Office Management Executive and be restyled 

Office Management Executive. However, this merger should apply to those 

Higher Executive Officers in post as at 31 December 2012. ”

Same was not mentioned in the EOAC Report PRB 2013 for the Rodrigues 

Regional Assembly for the Higher Executive Officers of the Island of 

Rodrigues.

• However, Recommendation 7 paragraph 23 (d) of the above report 

stipulates:

“that subject to the approval of the Ministry of Civil Service and 

Administrative Reforms, revised conditions in respect of grades of the Island 

of Mauritius would, in principle, be applicable to similar grades of the 

Rodrigues Regional Assembly. ”

• The restyling of post from Higher Executive Officer to Office Management 

Executive has already been effected for her counterparts in Mauritius who 

have opted for same since 2013.

th h• Representations were made on 14 April 2015, 10th June 2016 and 31 

May 2017 to the Island Chief Executive of the Rodrigues Regional 

Assembly requesting for the merging of the post of the grade of 

Higher Executive Officer be merged with the grade of Office

3
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Management Executive and be restyled Office Management 

Executive. No reply was received.

On 27th July 2017, Disputant reported a dispute to the Rodrigues 

Commission for Conciliation and Mediation.

The Rodrigues Commission for Conciliation and Mediation has 
organized meetings for both parties on 10th August and 11 September 

2017.

As no settlement could be reached, on 25th October 2017, the 

Rodrigues Commission for Conciliation and Mediation referred the 

case to the Employment Relations Tribunal.

The Pay Review Report 2016 for the RRA recommended the 

following at paragraph 2.1.3:

“Higher Executive Officer (Rodrigues) presently, appointment to the 

grade of Higher Executive Officer (Rodrigues) is made by promotion 

of Executive Officers (Rodrigues) reckoning at least two years’ 

service in a substantive capacity. Given that all the officers in the 

latter grade have already joined the grade of Office Management 

Assistant formerly General Services Executive, recruitment to the 

grade of Higher Executive Officer (Rodrigues) would, henceforth, no 

longer be made. Besides, the RRA has in 2013 PRB Report, already 

been provided with a new level structure for general services. As the 

need for the level of Higher Executive Officer (Rodrigues) is no 

longer warranted, we are making the grade evanescent. ”0

Recommendation 4 paragraph 2.1.13 stipulates that:

4
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“We recommend that the grade of Higher Executive Officer 

(Rodrigues), be made evanescent. Personal salaries are being 

provided for incumbents. ”

■ Disputant did not have the opportunity to opt or not for the grade as 

Higher Executive Officer should have merged with the grade of 

Office Management Executive and be restyled Office Management 

Executive as has been the case for her counterparts in Mauritius.

■ Taking into consideration that the Report PRB 2013 (RRA), 

Miscellaneous, Recommendation 7 paragraph 23 (d) of the report and 

where same has been replicated in each report of the RRA:

“that subject to the approval of the Ministry of Civil Service and 

Administrative Reforms, revised conditions in respect of grades of the 

Island of Mauritius would, in principle, be applicable to similar 

grades of the Rodrigues Regional Assembly”, two letters were 
referred to the Island Chief Executive of the RRA on 10th June 2016 

and 31 May 2017. There was no reply.

■ Disputant firmly contends that it was the responsibility of the Island 

Chief Executive of the RRA to address the issue since 2013 as it has 

been the case for the other grades such the Higher Clerical Officer to 

General Service Officer which is now Management Support Officer, 

Executive Officer to General Services Executive which is now Office 

Management Assistant and the Word Processing Operators whose 

Scheme of Service has been amended to enable them to join the Grade 

of Management Support Officer.

5
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■ It is important to note that the appointment to the grade of Higher 

Executive Officer was done by promotion from Executive Office 

(Now) Office Management Assistant. The same Office Management 

Assistant is now drawing salary in a scale of - Rs 21950 x 625 - 

23200 x 775 - 32500 x 925 - 37125 x 1225 - 39575 whereas the 

grade of Higher Executive Officer (Rodrigues) (Personal) is drawing 

salary in a scale of Rs 22575x625 - 32000 x 775 - 32500x 925 - 

37125 x 1225 - 38350. (Pay Review Report 2016)

• The Disputant is advised and firmly believes that as a citizen of the 

Republic of Mauritius:

■ She is eligible for the grade of Higher Executive Officer to be 

merged with the grade of Office Management Executive and be 

restyled Office Management Executive as it has been the case 

for her counterparts in Mauritius because Disputant was 

promoted on 19 July 2010.

■ Disputant was deprived of the opportunity to opt or not for the 

grade as Higher Executive Officer which should have merged 

with the grade of Office Management Executive and be restyled 

Office Management Executive as has been the case for her 

counterparts in Mauritius.

■ The grade of Higher Executive Officer has been made 

evanescent for the Rodrigues Regional Assembly as per 

Recommendation 4 of the Pay Review 2016 as it has been the 

case for her counterparts in Mauritius who did not opt to join.

6
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■ Her constitutional rights have not been protected against 

discrimination because she has been bom in Rodrigues.

■ This situation has caused prejudice to her since 2013.

In its Statement of Case, Respondent made the following averments, amongst 
others:

• Creation of posts in the civil service are established under the Civil 

Establishment Act.

• Respondent can only appoint through delegated power by the Public Service 

Commission which is empowered to make appointments.

• The Errors, Omissions and Anomalies Committee (EOAC) set up in the 

wake of the publication of the PRB 2013 had recommended at paragraph 

39.38 that “the grade of Higher Executive Officer for officers in post as 
at 31 December 2012 be merged with the grade of Office Management 
Executive and be restyled Office Management Executive”.

• However, the abovementioned recommendation was not reproduced by the 

EOAC in its Report as regards the Higher Executive Officers on the 

establishment of the Rodrigues Regional Assembly but has instead 

recommended at paragraph 2.1.43 A for:

■ “the creation of a grade of Office Management Executive. 

Appointment thereto should be made by selection from among 

Senior Executive Officers, Higher Executive Officers and
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Executive Officers (Personal) reckoning at least 15 years service 

in a substantive capacity in the Executive Cadre and (...) and

■ the grade of Office Superintendent should be made evanescent”

At paragraph 2.1.43C of its Report, the EOAC also recommended that “the 

incumbent in the grade of Office Superintendent be given the option to 

join the new grade of Office Management Executive and be granted one 
increment on joining the grade”.

Thereafter, the Respondent made necessary arrangement with the Ministry 

of Civil Service and Administrative Reforms and the post of Office 

Management Executive was created by the Civil Establishment (Rodrigues 
Regional Assembly) Order 2013.

The Scheme of Service for the new post of Office Management Executive 

(OME) was prescribed on the 22 April 2014 and the only Office 

Superintendent in post was appointed OME on 07 August 2014.

It is worth mentioning that the structure of the General Service/Executive 

Cadre on the establishment of Mauritius and Rodrigues is not the same in 

that a grade of Senior Executive Officer (SEO), promotional from officers in 

the grade of Higher Executive Officer (HEO) exists on the establishment of 

the Respondent whereas this is not the case for the establishment in 
Mauritius.

During the pre PRB 2016 consultations, Higher Executive Officers in post 

on the establishment of the Respondent made representations to the PRB for 

the creation of additional posts of OME. Management and employees 

unions, on their part, made joint representations to the PRB for the merging
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of the grades of SEO and HEO into the grade of OME. The PRB in its 

Report in 2016 made no recommendations as such.

• Further representations were made by the Disputant to the Respondent in 

connection with the present dispute.

• Respondent has on the 24 August 2017 written to the Senior Chief Executive 

of the Ministry of Civil Service and Administrative Reforms to look into 

representations made by the Higher Executive Officers to remedy the 
anomaly.

• Reply of Ministry of Civil Service and Administrative Reforms is awaited.

• The Respondent has taken all necessary actions that would be reasonably 

expected of such a responsible institution in response to representations 

made by the Disputant.

In a document dated 4th January 2018, the Co-Respondent avers the following:-

• The new grade of Office Management Executive (OME) was created 

following the recommendation 15.19 of the Pay Research Report (PRB) 

Report 2008 on the Mauritian establishment but there was no such 

recommendation for the creation of that grade for the Rodrigues Regional 

Assembly (RRA) in that report.

• The grade of Office Management Executive (OME) on the establishment of 

the RRA was only created on the Errors, Omissions and Anomalies 

Committee (EOAC) Report 2013 in pursuance of paragraph 2.1.43 A 

thereof. Appointment to the grade was to be made by selection from among 

Senior Executive Officers (Rodrigues), Higher Executive Officers 
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(Rodrigues), General Services Executive (RRA) and Executive Officers 
(Rodrigues) (Personal).

• On the other hand, in the same EOAC Report 2013, at paragraph 39.38, it is 

recommended that the grade of Higher Executive Officer (HEO) in the 

Mauritian establishment be merged with the grade of Office Management 

Executive and be restyled Office Management Executive. However, this 

merger should apply only to those HEOs in post as at 31 December 2012.

• As there are no specific recommendations in the PRB Report 2016 regarding 

the grades of OME’s on the establishment of the RRA and the Ministry of 

Civil Service and Administrative Reforms (MCSAR), the recommendations 

of the EOAC Report 2013 still stand good.

• It should be noted that on the establishment of the RRA, there still exists a 

grade of Senior Executive Officer (Rodrigues) which, on the other hand, has 

been abolished on the establishment of the MCSAR. This grade provides an 

avenue for promotion for HEOs on the RRA.

• The recommendation in the EOAC Report 2013 that appointment to the 

grade was to be made by selection from among Senior Executive Officers 

(Rodrigues), Higher Executive Officers (Rodrigues), General Services 

Executive (RRA) and Executive Officers (Rodrigues) (Personal) still 

prevails and the MCSAR has no authority to change that recommendation 

and merge the grade of HEO (Rodrigues) with that of OME.

The Disputant deponed before the Tribunal and solemnly affirmed to the 

truthfulness of the contents of her Statement of Case. Being aware of the stand of 
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the Co-Respondent in relation to the issue of implementation of the PRB Report, 

she stated that this goes in line with her prayer. She produced the various 

correspondences between herself and the Respondent in relation to the present 

issue. She signed the option form in relation to the PRB Report 2016 in which she 

agreed to the Terms and Conditions laid out in that report. It has been her belief 

that despite the signing of the option form, management would in the meantime 

look into the case of Higher Executive Officers. She understands that the final 

approval does not emanate from the Respondent, but rather from the Co- 
Respondent.

The Respondent’s representative, Ms Marie Louise May Perrine, Assistant 

Manager HR, stated that she is the leading person at the office of the Island Chief 

Executive to channel matters regarding conditions of service to the Co- 

Respondent. Following representations made by the Disputant and others in the 
same grade on the 24th August 2017, the Island Chief Executive wrote to the Co- 

Respondent regarding the merging of the post of Higher Executive Officers into 

that of Office Management Executive (OME). She added that the role of Island 

Chief Executive is to implement the recommendation of the PRB Report and to 

address representations from employees.

Mr Shin King Wan Ah Fat, Assistant Manager HR, deponed on behalf of the Co- 

Respondent. His stand is that the grade of OME was created in the PRB Report 

2008 in the civil service excluding Rodrigues. It was only after the Errors, 

Omissions and Anomalies Committee (EOAC) Report 2013 that it was created for 

Rodrigues. According to the witness, it was clear in that report that the grade of 

OME was by appointment, by selection from Higher Executive Officer and other 

grades. This was a specific recommendation for the Rodrigues Regional
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Assembly, whereas on the Civil Service Mauritian establishment (excluding 

Rodrigues), it was a merger of Office Management Executive with Higher 

Executive Officer. As a result of the recommendation of EOAC, a Scheme of 

Service was prescribed. The witness stressed that the Co-Respondent only 
complies with approved recommendations.

Counsel for the Respondent submitted that by virtue of Section 3(2) of the 

Rodrigues Regional Assembly Act 2001, the Rodrigues Regional Assembly is a 

body corporate and the exercise of its functions is regarded as done on behalf of 

the Government of the Republic of Mauritius. The 4th schedule to the Act provides 

a list of areas of responsibilities to be exercised by the Rodrigues Regional 

Assembly and according to Counsel, Civil Service affairs are not included. He 

referred to section 66(3) of the Act that provides:

“The Staff of the Regional Assembly shall be under the administrative 

control of the Island Chief Executive. ”
•

The latter, he submitted, is therefore the best person to assess the qualities and 

weaknesses of his officers and make proper recommendations to the Public Service 

Commission in cases of in-house appointment or promotion. As far as the 

Rodrigues Regional Assembly is concerned, it has no authority regarding 

appointment, promotion, creation and merging of posts. The issue of appointment 

and promotion is the sole responsibility of the Public Service Commission 

(G.Appadu v The Public Service Commission and Mr Harish Bundhoo SCJ 29 of 

2003). Reference has also been made to the case of Mrs S.Hurry v the Government 

of Mauritius SCJ 51 of 1996), where it was stated that the duty to prepare Schemes 

of Service rests on the responsible officer but, that these must obtain the sanction
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of the Head of the Civil Service and agreed to by the Public Service Commission 

and which application before the Court could not succeed as one of the main 

parties was not before it. Counsel submitted that in the present case, the Public 

Service Commission was not made a party to it.

On the issue of the creation of posts, Counsel referred to the case of N.Dyall v 

J.Beegoo and the P.S, Ministry of Education, Arts and Culture [1998 SCJ 317]:-

“Now, the power to establish posts in the public service is conferred on the 

President (vide section 74 of the Constitution). When exercising his power 

the latter is required to act in accordance with the advice of the Minister for 

Civil Service Affairs (vide section 64 of the Constitution) and also in 

accordance with section 3 of the Civil Establishment Act. However, the 

power to appoint officers in the public service rests on the Public Service 

Commission (vide section 89 of the constitution). (See (1) (1987 MR 881;

(2) (1987 MR 1091.”

He also cited the case of Rodrigues Government Employees Association & Others 

v/s the Government of Mauritius (2000 SCJ 375):-

“It is perhaps appropriate that we state at the outset that the public service 

draws its source from section 74 of the Constitution and that the President 

acting in accordance with the advice of the Minister responsible for the Civil 

Service and in accordance with the provisions of the Civil Establishment Act 

constitutes officers or establishes posts for the State of Mauritius. The Civil 

Establishment Order made under the Civil Establishment Act.... sets out the 

offices created under the various Ministries or Government Departments.

13
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All public officers whether they originate from the Island of Mauritius or 

Rodrigues or any other island within the State of Mauritius are governed by 

the Public Service Commission Regulations 1967. ”

In short, he submitted that the Rodrigues Regional Assembly as a body corporate 

depends wholly on the Ministry of Civil Service Affairs for creation of posts, 

whereas for appointment and promotion, it is up to the Public Service Commission. 

His ending address was that the employer is always the Government of Mauritius.

Counsel for the Disputant submitted that it is established on facts that the Disputant 

deserves the attention of the employer. According to him, the Respondent 

accepted in its averments that it is the employer and that the latter cannot 
discriminate.

We will first deal with the legal issues raised. It has been strenuously argued that 

the present dispute should not have been directed against the Rodrigues Regional 

Assembly inasmuch as it is the Government of Mauritius which is the employer. 

We agree that neither a Minister nor a Ministry is an employer with regard to 

matters pertaining to a particular Ministry and that it is the State that carries the 

status of employer. With regard to the present case, reference should be made to 

the definition of the ‘employer’ in Section 2 of the Employment Relations Act 
2008, as amended.

Section 2 provides
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'Employer’ includes a person, an enterprise, the State, a statutory 

corporation, a body ofpersons employing a worker, or a group of employees 

or a trade union of employers.

The Rodrigues Regional Assembly Act 2002, as amended, clearly and 

unambiguously stipulates:-

Section 3 (2):

“The Regional Assembly shall be a body corporate and the exercise of its 

functions shall be regarded as done on behalf of the Government of the 

Republic of Mauritius. ” (Underlining is ours).

We therefore conclude that the Rodrigues Regional Assembly being an agent of its 

principal, the Government of Mauritius, can only act on its behalf. This dispute 

should then have been directed against the Government of Mauritius and not the 

Rodrigues Regional Assembly. (D.Bagha and Ministry of Education, Culture & 

Human Resources [CSAT Award R/N 1023]). We reiterate, en passant, what the 

Supreme Court had to say in Morris J. V Merville Beach Hotel & others (SCJ 414 

of2009):-

“....If a party does not know who his defendant is, his legal advisers should 

ascertain it for him. He should go to Court to determine his rights and not 

to find out who his defendant is....It is not the function of the courts to 

undertake an investigation as to who a claimant in any particular case 

should sue... ”
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The Respondent in its Statement of Reply averred that the dispute cannot be 

considered in the absence of all interested parties and its Counsel expatiated 

lengthily on the absence of the Public Service Commission as a party to the present 

dispute. Yet, in the end, he plainly stated: “/ did not say it should have been a 

party. ”

Indeed, Section 118 (4) of the Constitution of Mauritius provides:-

“Subject to Section 91 A, in the exercise of its functions under this 

Constitution, no such Commission shall be subject to the direction or control 
of any other person or authority. ”

The exceptions would be the Public Bodies Appeal Tribunal and a Court of Law. 

The latter’s power to adjudicate over the decision of such commission is provided 
in Section 119 of the Constitution: -

“No provision of this Constitution that any person or authority shall not be 

subject to the direction or control of any other person or authority in the 

exercise of any functions under this Constitution shall be construed as 

precluding a court of law from exercising jurisdiction in relation to any 

question, whether that person or authority has performed those functions in 

accordance with this Constitution or any other law or should not perform 

those functions. ”

The above section was canvassed in Devanand Bagha v Ministry of Education, 

Culture and Human Resources and Ministry of Civil Service & Administrative 

Reforms (RN 1023 of 2009). „ Quoting the Mauritius Senior Civil Servants 
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Association and Ministry of Health and of Quality of Life, in presence of Public 

Service Commission (Civil Service Arbitration Tribunal Award RN 963 of 2009), 

the Tribunal stated:-

“.....However, we do not share the view that the present matter cannot be

entertained in presence of the Public Service Commission. We refer here to 

what we stated in a Ruling delivered in RN 963 (Mauritius Senior Civil 

Servants Association & Ministry of Health and Quality of Life in 

presence of Public Service Commission):

The Tribunal considers that Section 118 (4) of the Constitution should not be 

looked at in isolation:-

“In the exercise of its function under this Constitution, no such Commission 

shall be subject to the direction or control of any person or authority.”

Indeed, we read the following in Section 119 of the Constitution

“Saving for jurisdiction of courts

No provision of this Constitution that any person or authority shall not be 

subject to the direction or control of any other person or authority in the 

exercise of any functions under this Constitution shall be construed as 

precluding a court of law from exercising jurisdiction in relation to any 

question, whether that person or authority has performed those functions in 

accordance with this Constitution or any other law or should not perform 
those functions.”
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The Legislator clearly intended that there should be an exception when it 

comes to the jurisdiction of Courts. We may anticipate Counsel arguing that 

our present forum is not as such a Court of law but a Tribunal. We find 

conflicting views emanating from our Supreme Court on that issue and that 

renders the state of our law on this issue incomprehensible. The Supreme 

Court of Mauritius sought to answer the question in Mauritius Breweries 

Ltd v Commissioner of Income Tax and six other cases (MR 1997) at 
page 3.

“It is clear that counsel on all sides have raised interesting issues which 

may resolved if we can provide answers to the following pertinent questions-

(1) Are the Tribunal and the MCCB Tribunal administrative tribunals or 

Courts of law?

(2) What is the rationale, behind administrative tribunals and are they 

Compatible with framework of our Constitution?

(3) Is Hinds applicable to the Tribunal and the MCCB Tribunal?

(4) Is an appeal on points of law really restrictive in practice and does it 

cover much the same ground as the Supreme Court’s powers of 

review?

(5) Are the Tribunal and the MCCB Tribunal, by reason of their 

membership, independent and impartial?
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(6) Is a right of appeal on points of law only from the Tribunal to the 

Supreme Court repugnant to our Constitution?

With regard to the first question, we have no difficulty in holding that, in the 

light especially of the powers, functions duties entrusted to the Tribunal and 

the MCCB Tribunal by the Legislator, both tribunals are essentially 

administrative tribunals and not Courts of law established “to exercise the 

judicial power of the State”. In relation to the Tribunal, there is the 

additional argument that it is inconceivable that the Legislator would 

entrust judicial power to two members who are laymen without any legal 

training who may, contrary to the views of the Chairman, decide the 

outcome of the Tribunal’s decision - see Banana and Ramie Products Co 

Ltd v Ministry of Lands and Natural Resources (1991) LRC 728 which 

makes an exhaustive analysis of the main case on this issue.

Moreover, applying the test laid down by Sankey LC in Shell Company of 

Australia Ltd v Federal Commissioner of Taxation [1931] AC 275 at page 

297, we consider that the Tribunal and the MCCB Tribunal are not Courts 

of law although (a) they give final decisions, (b) may hear witness on oath, 

(c) two or more contending parties appear before them between whom they 

have to decide, (d) they give decisions which affect the rights of parties, (e) 

there is an appeal against their decisions to a Court of law and (f) they are 

bodies to which a matter is referred. In other words, the Tribunal and the 

MCCB Tribunal do not cease to be administrative tribunals in spite of the 

fact that they act and are bound to act judicially and follow substantially the 

procedure of Court of law.
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We turn now to our second question. In Wade on Administrative Law (6th edition), 

the learned author at pages to 897 to 900, makes the following points -

a) The system of tribunals is an essential part of the machinery of government 

as it offers speedier, cheaper and more accessible justice in specialized 

fields while the process of the Courts of law is elaborate, slow and costly;

b) There is a close relationship between the supplementary network of 

adjudicating bodies, like tribunals and Courts of law, since in the majority 

of cases Parliament has provided a right of appeal from the tribunals to the 

Courts on question of law;

c) The term “administrative tribunals” is a misnomer since (i) they are 

independent and are insulated from administrative interference in their 

decision-making, (ii) their power to determine legal questions is entrusted by 

statutes, (Hi) their decisions are, in essence judicial. Rather than 

administrative in that they ascertain the facts and apply legal rules to them 

impartially, without regard to executive policy;

d) The tribunals are administrative only in so far as they are part of an 

administrative set-up for which a Minister is answerable to Parliament and 

there exist administrative reasons for preferring them to Courts of law.

So much for the ‘raison d’etre’ of administrative tribunals, like the Tribunal 

and the MCCB Tribunal. But how do those two tribunals fit in within the 

framework of our Constitution? The Constitution does not make specific 

mention of administrative tribunals but their existence is acknowledged in our 

opinion, in section 10(8) to (10) thereof. When our Constitution speaks of “any 
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court or other authority required or empowered by law to determine the 

existence or extent of any civil right or obligation shall be established by law 

and shall be independent and impartial”, (the emphasis is ours), it has in mind 

administrative tribunals, like the Tribunal and the MCCB Tribunal and 
countless others.

We may usefully refer to Akonaay and Anor v Attorney-General (1994) LRC 399, 

which was quoted to us by learned Counsel for the appellants in the sixth case, 

where at page 410 Nyalall CJ had this to say -

We agree that the Constitution allows the establishment of quasi-judicial bodies, 

such as the Land Tribunal. What we do not agree is that the Constitution allows 

the Courts to be ousted ofjurisdiction by conferring exclusive jurisdiction on such 

quasi-judicial bodies. It is the basic structure of a democratic constitution that 

state power is divided and distributed between three state pillars. These are the 

Executive, vested with executive power, the Legislature vested with legislative 

power and the judicature vested with judicial powers. This is clearly so stated 

under article 4 of the Constitution. This basic structure is essential to any 

democratic constitution and cannot be changed or abridged while retaining the 

democratic nature of the constitution: It follows therefore that wherever the 

constitution establishes or permits the establishment of any other institution or 

body with executive or legislative or judicial power, such institution or body is 

meant to function not in lieu of or in derogation of these three central pillars of the 

state, but only in aid of, and subordinate to those pillars (the emphasis is ours).

His Lordship went on to observe that any purported ouster of the jurisdiction of the 

ordinary Courts over a justiciable dispute would therefore have been 
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constitutional “but adjudicative powers could properly be conferred on bodies 

other than Courts provided that final adjudication by way of review or appeal 

was reserved for the High Court or Court of Appeal. ”

Yet a year later our Supreme Court asked again the same question in Chadraduth 

Sooknah v. The Central Water Authority SCJ 115 of1998:-

“The question that needs to be asked here is whether the Permanent Arbitration 

Tribunal can be equated to a Court. The answer is to be found in the following 

passage at page 319 in Phipson op. cit.:

“A court includes not only the regular superior courts of judicature but also 

inferior courts and tribunals, even domestic tribunals, provided they have 

jurisdiction either by the law or by the parties consenting to submit their affairs 

to adjudication by such tribunals. Thus the principle of conclusiveness has 

been held to be applicable to decisions of courts-martial, arbitrators and 

domestic tribunals such as the General Medical Council. In the present 

context, the awards of any such tribunal, however lowly, “are as conclusive and 

unimpeachable (unless and until set aside in any of the recognized grounds) as 

the decisions of any of the constituted courts of the realm. ”

Reference can also be made to Encyclpedie Dalloz v Chose Jugee:

12. L’autorite de la chose jugee s’attache egalement aux sentences 

arbitrales (Cass. Civ. 26 aout 1873, DP 74.1.475 ; Cass. Req. 31 mai 1902, DP 

1902.1.352) meme si les arbitres ont la qualite d’amiables compositeurs (Cass. 

Civ. 21 juin 1852, DP 53.1.109; 18 nov. 1884, DP 85.1.317). Ainsi, Tune des 
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parties ne peut pas recommencer le proces devant une autre juridiction, ni devant 

d’autres arbitres (Cass. Civ. 21 juin 1852, 18 nov. 1884, prec. ; 28 dec. 1927, DH 

1928.51).”

We take the view that had the Legislator intended to exclude administrative 

tribunals from the saving jurisdiction clause, it would have explicitly and expressly 

said so. We also find in paragraph 6 (2) (d) (ii) of the second Schedule annexed 

to the Industrial Relations Act 1973 as amended that the Tribunal may in 

relation to any dispute or other matter before it order any person to be joined as a 

party to the proceedings who, in the opinion of the Tribunal ought in the interests 

of justice to be joined as a party and to do so on such terms and conditions as the 

Tribunal may decide. We stress that the PSC in the present matter is not being put 

into cause as a Respondent but upon whose presence the matter is being called. 

We are not here to exercise any control or give directives to the PSC. We simply 

consider that it can enlighten us with respect to the dispute that we are called upon 

to adjudicate.”

On the merits of the dispute, likewise we find no reason to intervene in favour of 

the Disputant. After considering both the testimonial and documentary evidence 

and in particular, after perusing the Scheme of Service of the various posts 

concerned, we find the following:-

The Pay Research Bureau Report 2007 at paragraph 15.19 recommended the 

creation of the new grade of Office Management Executive (OME) on the 

Mauritian establishment without recommending same for the Rodrigues 

Regional Assembly. It was the Errors, Omissions and Anomalies 

Committee (EOAC) Report 2013 in its paragraph 2.1.43 A that created the 
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grade of Office Management Executive on the establishment of the 

Rodrigues Regional Assembly. It is noted that appointment to that grade 

was to be made by selection from among Senior Executive Officers 

(Rodrigues), Higher Executive Officers (Rodrigues), General Services 

Executive (Rodrigues Regional Assembly) and Executive officers 

(Rodrigues) (Personal). At paragraph 39.38 of the EOAC Report 2013, it is 

recommended that the grade of Higher Executive Officer in the Mauritian 

establishment be merged with the grade of Office Management Executive 

and be restyled Office Management Executive. The proviso here is that this 

merger should apply only to those Higher Executive Officers in post as at 
31st December 2012.

Higher Executive Officers on the establishment on the Rodrigues Regional 
Assembly have two avenues on the promotion:-

a) Promotion to the grade of Senior Executive Officer on the basis of 

experience and merit (see Scheme of Service of Senior Executive 
Officer, Rodrigues);

and

b) Appointment by selection to the grade of Office Management 

Executive (see Scheme of Service of Office Management 

Executive [Rodrigues Regional Assembly]).

We need to highlight that Higher Executive Officers in the establishment of 

Ministry of Civil Service and Administrative Reforms who were promoted 

from Executive Officers after 2013, do not, currently have any avenue of 
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promotion. The grade of Senior Executive Officer does no longer exist on 

its establishment and appointment to the grade of Office Management 

Executive on the establishment of Ministry of Civil Service and 

Administrative Reforms is made by promotion from Office Management 
Assistants.

Indeed, if we were to accede to the demand of the Disputant with regard to 

the merging of the Office Management Executive grade with that of the 

Higher Executive Officer, then the latter will be placed at a higher level than 

that of Senior Executive Officer who is at an intermediate level between 

Higher Executive Officer and Office Management Executive and this would 

be creating an anomalous situation. We note also that the grade of Higher 

Executive Officer is personal to the holder of the post.

Evidence has been adduced showing that the Disputant has opted to accept 

the revised emoluments and conditions of service as set out in the Pay 

Research Bureau Reports of 2013 and 2016.

It has been ushered that the different procedural appointments exercised 

between Mauritius and Rodrigues lead to discrimination. We may here 

conveniently quote part of the Judgment delivered by the Law Lords in the 

matter of Matadeen and Others v. M. G. C. Pointu and Others (Mauritius) 

[1998] UKPC 9 (18th February, 1998):-

“ Democracy and equality.
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As a formulation of principle of equality, the Court cited Rault J. in 

Police v. Rose [1976] M.R. 79,81:-

“Equality before the law requires that persons should be uniformly 

treated, unless there is some valid reason to treat them differently. ”

Their Lordships do not doubt that such a principle is one of the 

building blocks of democracy and necessarily permeates any 

democratic constitution. Indeed, their Lordships would go further 

and say that treating like cases alike and unlike cases differently is a 

general axiom of rational behaviour. It is, for example, frequently 

invoked by the courts in proceedings for judicial review as a ground 

for holding some administrative act to have been irrational: see 

Professor Jeffrey Jowell Q.C., Is Equality a Constitutional Principle? 

[1994] Current Legal Problems 1, 12-14 and De Smith, Woolf and 

Jowell, Judicial Review of Administrative Action, paras. 13-036 to 13- 

045.

But the very banality of the principle must suggest a doubt as to 

whether merely to state it can provide an answer to the kind of 

problem which arises in this case. Of course persons should be 

uniformly treated, unless there is some valid reason to treat them 

differently. ”

We hold that in the present matter, any difference in the merging of posts in lite 

cannot be considered to be discriminatory.
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Lastly, the Tribunal observes that the issue of whether the dispute is a labour 

dispute has not been taken and the Tribunal will leave open the question whether 

the dispute was reported more than three years after the act or omission that gave 
rise to the dispute.

For all the reasons stated above, the dispute is set aside.

SD Rashid Hossen
President

SD Marie Desiree Lily Lactive (Ms) 
Member

SD Abdool Feroze Acharauz 
Member

SD Teenah Jutton-Seeburrun (Mrs)

Member

28th March 2018
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General Notice No. 546 of 2018

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS TRIBUNAL

ORDER

ERT/RN 11/18

Before Indiren Sivaramen Vice-President

Marie Desiree Lily Lactive Member

Karen K. Veerapen Member

Kevin C. Lukeeram Member

In the matter of:-

Mr Sydney Wong Tong Chung (Appellant)

And

Commission for Conciliation and Mediation (Respondent)

The Appellant has by way of a letter dated 22 January 2018 (received on 23 January 
2018) appealed against the rejection of a dispute by the Commission for Conciliation 
and Mediation (the “CCM”). The Appellant has not filed grounds of appeal as such but 
has filed a Statement of Case.

The Respondent has filed a Statement of Reply and is maintaining the decision to reject 
the points in dispute as per section 65(1 )(f) of the Act.

Both parties were assisted by counsel and the Tribunal proceeded to hear the appeal.

The disputes before the CCM were as follows:

1. “Whether my pension under the Rogers Money Purchase Retirement Fund 
should be readjusted to take into account my date of entry which is June 1976 
instead of 1996.”

2. “Whether I am entitled to a retirement gratuity as per provision of the law. ”
The appeal is only in relation to dispute under limb 1 and it is conceded that the dispute 
under limb 2 in relation to gratuity falls within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Industrial 
Court.

The Tribunal will have to address a few issues which are called for in the present 
matter:
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1. The Tribunal has on a number of occasions stated that an appeal under section
66 of the Act must be directed against the President of the CCM and not the 
CCM. The power to reject a report of a dispute is given to the President of the 
CCM under section 65 of the Act when the latter is of the opinion that, for 
example, the dispute relates to any issue within the exclusive jurisdiction of the 
Industrial Court (Section 65(1 )(f) of the Act).

Section 65(1 )(f) of the Act thus provides as follows:

65. Rejection of labour disputes
(1) “The President of the Commission may reject a report of a labour 

dispute made under section 64 where he is of the opinion that-
(a) ....
(f) the dispute relates to any issue within the exclusive jurisdiction of 

the Industrial Court.

This is unfortunately not a mere “typing mistake” as Counsel for Appellant has 
put it and in effect amounts to the appeal having been made against the wrong 
party. Any order of the Tribunal would be made against the wrong person.

2. As per the record, Counsel for Appellant confirmed that the Statement of Case 
filed in the present case constituted in fact the grounds of appeal of the 
Appellant. The Statement of Case of Appellant reads as follows:

Appeal against the decision of the CCM as per CCM letter dated 5 January 2018 
(Annex 1).

1. The dispute was declared in conformity with section 64 of the Employment 
Relations Act on 26 December 2017 (Annex 2).

2. On basis of the CCM Report, the matter was reported to the Labour Office of Port 
Louis.

3. The Labour Office informed Mr Jean Sydney Wong Tong Chung:

3.1 That ONLY dispute No.2 will be inquired into and in case the employer 
has not respected the retirement gratuity provisions of the law (The 
Employment Rights Act), the matter will be referred to the Industrial Court.

3.2 That regarding Dispute 1 “Whether the pension of Mr Wong, under the 
Rogers Money Purchase Retirement Fund, should be readjusted to 
take into account his the date of entry as June 1976 instead of 1996” 
the matter is NOT “within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Industrial
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Court" as stated by the Commission. That in fact it CANNOT be dealt 
with by the Industrial Court.

4. Hence the application of Mr. Wong.

5. Mr. Wong contends that as per section 69(7) of the Employment Relations Act 
the dispute should have been referred to the Tribunal.

6. Question: In case this matter CANNOT be referred to the Industrial Court, is it a 
matter that can be referred to a Civil Court? Surely, in the form of a claim for 
compensation. However, Mr. Wong can opt as per the Employment Relations 
Act to refer the matter to the Tribunal. The consent of the worker has been given 
or can be given.

The Tribunal finds that the Statement of Case will be more appropriate for the 
arbitration of a labour dispute and not for an appeal. The Tribunal has difficulty in 
ascertaining the grounds on which the Appellant is in fact challenging the 
decision in the present matter. Reference has been made to what the ‘Labour 
Office’ allegedly told Appellant and this would be the basis for the appeal before 
us. The Statement of Case then ends with a question. The only clear averment 
made by Appellant himself is that the dispute should have been referred to the 
Tribunal. Even if this is accepted as a ground of appeal, the Tribunal cannot 
eventually allow the appeal on such a ‘ground’ as the appeal is concerned with 
the rejection of, a report of a dispute and the Tribunal cannot preempt that the 
dispute has to be referred to the Tribunal when it was not even considered by the 
CCM.

Though the Tribunal no doubt operates with a minimum of legal formalities and 
tries to be as practical as possible, the Tribunal is faced with a major obstacle in 
the present matter in relation to the ‘grounds of appeal’.

3. The Tribunal is of the view that an appeal under section 66 of the Act (though the 
section itself is nowhere mentioned by Appellant in his ‘appeal’) must also be 
directed against the employer as Co-Respondent or at least be made in the 
presence of the employer. The Tribunal will refer to sections 64(7) and 65(3) of 
the Act which read as follows:

64(7) Where a labour dispute is reported to the Commission, a copy of the report 
of the dispute shall be served by or on behalf of the party making the report upon 
every other party to the dispute.

3
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65(3) The President of the Commission shall give written notice of any rejection 
within 14 days of receipt of the report of the dispute to all the parties to the 
dispute.

The Tribunal will also quote the following from a judgment of the Supreme Court 
in the case of Pharmaceutical lmport& Export Ltd & anor v Bahemia F H & 
Ors 2012 SCJ 379:

“Mr. Jaddoo, Counsel for the respondents, on the strength of the authorities of 
Comty v Loizeau [1884 MR 132], Lam Shang Leen v Sauzier [1958 MR 237], 
Chamroo v La Preservatrice Co. Ltd. [1990 MR 302], and an unreported 
decision of the Court of Civil Appeal, dated 17 October 2011, in the case of 
Raman v Macky & Ors bearing reference SCR No. 932 (6B/43/08), has moved 
that the present appeal be dismissed on the ground that failure to join a party to 
an appeal is fatal to the appeal proceedings.

Mr. Pursem, for the appellants whilst fairly conceding that in principle all 
interested parties must be joined as parties to an appeal, nevertheless submitted 
that the decisions cited by Mr. Jaddoo do not lay down any hard and fast rule as 
regards the joining of parties.

In Comty (supra), the Appellate Court answered the question whether an 
execution debtor who was made, ex-officio a party to the interpleader 
proceedings in the Court below and was heard as a witness, ought to have on 
appeal been made a party, in the following terms'.

“...can we deal with a judgment in which he (the execution debtor) is concerned 
when he has had no notice of the appeal and was not summoned to appear as a 
co-respondent. We think that he ought to have been made a respondent, and 
that in his absence we cannot deal with this appeal.”

In Raman (supra), Counsel for the appellant conceded that no notice of appeal 
had been served on the Registrar of Civil Status who was not a party in the 
appeal proceedings but who was a co-respondent in the case between the 
appellants and the respondents. She however urged the Court of Appeal to 
allow the appeal to proceed for three reasons:
1. The appeal was against a dismissal of the case on a plea in limine litis. 
Should the appellants be successful on appeal, the case will be referred back to 
the trial Court for a proper determination and the Registrar will be a party.
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2. The Registrar was made a party to the case to amend the register of the Civil 
Status in the event the appellant (then plaintiffs) were successful. His stand was 
merely that he was abiding by the decision of the Court.

3. The other parties to the appeal proceedings had no objection to the appeal 
being proceeded in the absence of the Registrar.
The Court of Civil Appeal declined to follow the suggestions of Counsel for the 
appellant taking the view that the law makes no distinction between a respondent 
and a co-respondent. The Court found that as one of the parties was not a party 
in the appeal case, the appeal could not be proceeded with. The appeal was 
accordingly dismissed.

Our understanding and interpretation of the ratio decidendi of the aforementioned 
cases are that parties before the lower Court must be joined in the Appeal 
proceedings.”
In the case of Baines J v Pothunah P & Ors 2016 SCJ 9, the Supreme Court 
made a distinction between the non-joinder of parties in relation to a plaint with 
summons (which was the case there) as compared to ‘principles governing 
appeals and applications for judicial review’.

The Supreme Court thus stated the following:

“In my view, principles governing appeals and applications for judicial review are 
of little avail when considering non-joinder in relation to a plaint with summons, in 
the light of the clear and express provisions of rule 19 (1) of the SCR 2000. ”

The Tribunal is thus of the view that the appeal should have been made at least 
in the presence of the employer. The Tribunal will leave open the question 
whether the “Rogers Money Purchase Retirement Fund” should also have been 
joined in as a party before the CCM.

Despite these issues, the Tribunal wishes to observe, very importantly, that The Private 
Pension Schemes Act 2012 (which appears, on the basis of material available before 
us, to be the relevant piece of legislation in the present matter and which deals with 
matters pertaining to private pension schemes including, for example, the transfer of a 
member from one pension scheme to another) provides at section 54(2) the following:

54 (2) Notwithstanding any other enactment, any civil or criminal proceedings instituted 
under this Act shall, in the Island of Mauritius, be entered before the District Court of 
Port Louis.
The term “date of entry” has been used in a very vague manner in the terms of 
reference and the Tribunal will not linger over whether it relates to the date Appellant 
joined his last employer, the Fund or simply to “continuous employment” which is 
specifically provided for under the Employment Rights Act (section 9).
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For the reasons given above, the Tribunal finds that the present appeal cannot be 
entertained by the Tribunal and the decision of the President of the CCM is thus 
confirmed. The appeal is set aside.

SD Indiren Sivaramen

Vice-President

SD Marie Desiree Lily Lactive

Member

SD Karen K. Veerapen

Member

SD Kevin C. Lukeeram

Member

27 March 2018
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General Notice No. 2)47 of 2018

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N REF NO
GOODS 
TO BE 

CARRIED

VEHICLE 
NUMBER &

NAME OF MAXIMUM BASE OF
APPLICANT GROSS 

WEIGHT
OPERATION

165 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18500 RUHOMALLY
Bhai Nasser

NYP Avenue Des
775 OKg Cateaux V erts,

GV Mont Ida

General 
Goods

NYP
166 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18501 M.S Excavators Co Ltd 14930Kg

GV

Cyprus Lane, 
La Marie, 

Vacoas

General 
Goods

167 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18502 LOLLMUN 
Bhanoopreeya Karishma

NYP
35030Kg 

GV

Jhuboo Road,
Camp Thorel Waste

168 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18503 A.R Sorefan Transport 
Ltd

NYP
30000Kg 

GV

Octave Adam, 
Eau-Coulee, 

Curepipe

General
Goods + 

Containers

169 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18504 A.R Sorefan Transport 
Ltd

NYP 
30000Kg 

GV

Octave Adam, 
Eau-Coulee, 

Curepipe

General
Goods + 

Containers

170 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18505 Perfect Interior Ltd
2058MR16 

2850Kg 
GV

Saint Vincent De
Paul Avenue,
Pailles West, 

Pailles

Waste

171 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18506 Perfect Interior Ltd
4759SP10 
2500Kg 

GV

Saint Vincent De
Paul Avenue, 
Pailles West, 

Pailles

Waste
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172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

VEHICLE 
NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS 
TO BE 

CARRIED

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18507 Innobox Company Ltd
NYP 

3000Kg 
GV

Koenig Lane,
St Paul

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18508 Logidis Limited
NYP 

4850Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18509 Logidis Limited
NYP 

3990Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18510 Logidis Limited
NYP 

6330Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18511 Logidis Limited
NYP 

3550Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18512 Logidis Limited
NYP 

4850Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18513 Logidis Limited
NYP 

3580Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18514 Logidis Limited
NYP 

3580Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18515 Logidis Limited
NYP 

3470Kg 
GV

IBL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General
Goods180
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181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

VEHICLE
NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS 
TO BE 

CARRIED

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18516 Logidis Limited
NYP 

3220Kg 
GV

1BL Complex 
Zone 1, 

Riche Terre

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18517 Logidis Limited
NYP

3460Kg
IBL Complex

Zone 1, General
GoodsGV Riche Terre

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18518 Logidis Limited
NYP

3310Kg
IBL Complex

Zone 1, General
GoodsGV Riche Terre

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18519 Logidis Limited
NYP

3550Kg
IBL Complex

Zone 1, General
GoodsGV Riche Terre

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18520 Eastern Stone Crusher 
Ltd

NYP 
32000Kg 

GV

Petite Retraite, 
Laventure

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18521 Eastern Stone Crusher 
Ltd

NYP 
32000Kg 

GV

Petite Retraite, 
Laventure

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18522 Eastern Stone Crusher 
Ltd

NYP 
32000Kg 

GV

Petite Retraite, 
Laventure

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18523 Eastern Stone Crusher 
Ltd

NYP 
32000Kg 

GV

Petite Retraite, 
Laventure

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18524 Eastern Mix Ltd
NYP 

32000Kg 
GV

Petite Retraite, 
Laventure

General
Goods189
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191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

VEHICLE

REF NO NAME OF
NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM BASE OF GOODS 

TO BE 
CARRIEDAPPLICANT GROSS 

WEIGHT
OPERATION

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18525 Eastern Mix Ltd
NYP

32000Kg 
GV

Petite Retraite, 
Laventure

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18526 Eastern Mix Ltd
NYP 

32000Kg 
GV

Petite Retraite, 
Laventure

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18527 Compagnie Du Mapou
Limited

1507FB18 
9880Kg 

GV

Mapou Leclezio, 
Goodlands

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18528 J&B Haula§e Servlces 
Ltd

J679 Royal Road, Belle General 
32000Kg Rose, Quatre Goods +

GV Bornes Containers

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18529 SOORMALLY 
Mohammad Yaasir

NYP
7335Kg

GV

Alma Street, 
Vallee Pitot, 
Port Louis

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18530 Habib Transport Co Ltd
3068ZW06 
32000Kg 

GV

Caro Lalo, 
Vallee des Pretres

General 
Goods + 

Containers

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18531 EMAMBOCUS 
Feroz

3470ZN98 
2950Kg 

GV

Mosque Road, 
Plaine Des 

Papayes

General
Goods +
Waste

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18532
SOOUMBUR 

Manushka 
(Born Ramdoss)

3469ZW05 
32000Kg 

GV

L'Escalier Branch 
Road, 

L'Esperance, 
Quartier Militaire

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18533
MUTHUR

Bibi Waheeda Hossenee 
(Bom Tuher)

1273ZS98
4790Kg 

GV

La Paix Street, 
Port Louis

General 
Goods
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

APPLICATION FOR ADDITION OF PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF

VEHICLE 
NUMBER &
MAXIMUM BASE OF GOODS

APPLICANT GROSS 
WEIGHT

OPERATION TO BE CARRIED

199 NTA/PUB/A/LC/17080 GUNGAH
Prakash

BX315 
24390Kg 

GV

Royal Road,
Providence, 

Quartier Militaire

From: General Goods

To: General Goods +
Waste

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE (TAXI) 
LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF OPERATION

29 43537/C From: JAGDAMBI Mohunpersad Shumah Taxi Car
3698ZN01

Goodlands

To: CHOONKA Mohamed Parvez

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF BASE OF OPERATION FOR TAXI LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF OPERATION

30 44368/C Mr. DOMUN Muhammad Reza Taxi Car From: Rose Belle Taxi Stand
7298BZ13

To: Brown Sequard Street, Curepipe
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To: Heirs Naziroodeen BUNDHOO 
to be represented by
Mrs. Bibi Nasreen Banu BUNDHOO

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

E1CEI5CE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF 
OPERATION

31 29366/C From: (Late) Naziroodeen BUNDHOO Taxi Car
3698ZN01

Place Margeot, 
Rose Hill

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT BUS) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT

7 25268/E From: (Late) Mr. JEEBUN Bimlall

To: Heirs JEEBUN Bimlall 
to be represented by 
Mrs. JEEBUN Chamawtee

VEHICLE
NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

7125OC13 From: Madame Lolo, Rose Belle
14 Seater

To: Madame Lolo, Rose Belle

Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his objection/s or other representation/s together 
with his name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach 
the Secretary to the Board, National Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Cassis, 
Port Louis not later than on the seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government 
Gazette. Any objection that reaches the Secretary to the Board after the prescribed time limit will 
not be entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis
27 March 2018
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General Notice No. 548 of 2018

TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes

The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

NID Codes For Marks

Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation
(310) Application (151) Registration Date (111) Registration Number

Number
(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address

(320) Filing Date
(540) Description of the (740) Representative’s Name &

(330) Priority Data Mark Address

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 38)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(310) MU/M/2018/26869 (320) 22/03/2018
(730) FUNWORLD CO LTD
(730) Super U Centre, La Salette Road, 

Grand Baie, 1207-02, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney 
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) 41
(540) Funworld Leisure Centre (Stylized)

W LEISURE CENTRE

(310) 25671/2017 (320) 23/08/2017
(730) Charles & Keith International Pte Ltd

6 Tai Seng Link, Charles & Keith Group 
Headquarters, Singapore 534101 
Singapore

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attorney-at-Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Room 310, 
St. James Court, St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (3,9, 14, 18, 25 and 35)

(540> CHARLES & KEITH

(310) 26008/2017 (320) 20/10/2017
(330) 016637738 22/05/2017 EU
(730) Epiroc Aktiebolag

c/o Atlas Copco, 105 23 Stockholm, Sweden 
(740) Geroudis Management Services Ltd.

Trademark Agent
River Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis 

(511) (9, 16, 35, 36, 37, 41 and 42) 

5 0 EPIROC

(310) 26031/2017 (320) 25/10/2017
(730) BELCHIM CROP PROTECTION N.V.

Technologielaan 7, 1840 Londerzeel, Belgium 
(740) Geroudis Management Services Ltd.

River Court, St. Denis Street, Port-Louis 
(511) (5)

<540) ACAMOS
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(310)
(330)
(730)

(740)

(5U) 
(540)

26090/2017 (320) 06/11/2017
30 2017 107 537.9 27/07/2017 DE
Dr. Michael Gordon
Wesendonkstrasse 35, 81925 Miinchen, 
Germany
Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis 
(12)

Taycan

(310) 26196/2017 (320) 21/11/2017
(730) Trois Freres Distilleries (Pty) Ltd

La Plaine St. Andre, Au Cap, Mahe, 
Seychelles

(740) Geroudis Management Services Ltd, 
Trademark Agent
River Court, St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (32 and 33)

(310) 26211/2017 (320) 22/11/2017
(730) DSM IP Assets B.V., a Dutch Company

Het Overloon 1, 6411 TE Heerlen 
Netherlands

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (32)

,540) OATWELL

(310) 26319/2017 (320) 08/12/2017
(730) INNISFREE CORPORATION

100, Hangang-daero, Yongsan-gu, Seoul, 
Rep.of Korea

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law,
Etude Philips International Ltd
Room 310, St. James Court, St. Denis Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (21 and 35)

'40) INNISFREE
(310) 26412/2017 (320) 22/12/2017
(730) Amorepacific Corporation

100, Hangang-daero, Yongsan-gu, Seoul, 
Rep.of Korea

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (3)
(540) RYO Device

(310) 26546/2018 (320) 24/01/2018
(730) OCEANA GROUP LIMITED

9th Floor, Oceana House, 25 Jan Smuts Street, 
Cape Town, 8001, Western Cape, South Africa 

(740) Geroudis Management Services Ltd
Trademark Agent
River Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis 

(511) (29, 3 land 35)

<540) OCEANA PECHE
INTERNATIONAL
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(310) 26547/2018 (320) 24/01/2018
(730) OCEANA GROUP LIMITED

"9th Floor, Oceana House, 25 Jan Smuts Street, 
Cape Town, 8001, Western Cape, South Africa 

(740) Geroudis Management Services Ltd
Trademark Agent
River Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis 

(511) (29, 3 land 35)
(540) OCEANA PECHE INTERNATIONAL 

(LOGO)

/oc?ana\
\ PtCHt INTERNATIONAL /

(310) 26589/2018 (320) 02/02/2018
(730) CENTURY 21 REAL ESTATE LLC
s 175 Park Avenue, Madison, New Jersey 07940,

U.S.A.
(740) Geroudis Management Services Ltd, 

Trademark Agent
River Court, St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (35)

< 40) CENTURY 21

(310) 26619/2018 (320) 06/02/2018
(330) 30 2017 027 397.5 25/10/2017 DE
(730) Dr. Michael Gordon 

Wesendonkstrasse 35, 81925 Miinchen, 
Germany

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (3,4,6, 7, 8,9, 11, 12, 14, 16, 18,20,21,24, 
25, 26, 27, 28, 34, 35, 36, 37, 39, 41, 42 and 
43)

(540) Taycan

(310) 26680/2018 (320) 15/02/2018
(730) DSM IP Assets B.V.

Het Overloon 1, 6411 TE, HEERLEEN,
The Netherlands

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(511) (1,5 and 17)
(540) DSM Logo & Device

^8^9^ A

DSM
(310) 26696/2018 (320) 19/02/2018
(330) 87/595305 04/09/2017 US
(730) Arthrex, Inc.

1370 Creekside Boulevard, Naples, Florida 
34108-1945, U.S.A.

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attomey-at-Law 
No. 12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (10)
(540) Arthrex & Device (and logo)

Arthr^k"^?

(310) 26697/2018 (320) 19/02/2018
(330) 87/595302 04/09/2017 US
(730) Arthrex, Inc.

1370 Creekside Boulevard, Naples, Florida 
34108-1945, U.S.A.

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attomey-at-Law 
No. 12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (10)
(54°) aArthrex
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(310) 26725/2018 (320) 22/02/2018
(330) 4393014 02/10/2017 FR
(730) LOUIS VUITTON MALLETIER

2, rue du Pont-Neuf, 75001 Paris, France
(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attomey-at-Law

12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 
(511) (35, 38 and 41)
(540) LV logo ____

(310) 26729/2018 (320) 23/02/2018
(730) WORLDWIDE DIAMOND CORPORATION 

LIMITED
Wellington, HP Tower, 171 Featherston Street, 
Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

(740) Me Vashish Bhugoo, Attomey-at-Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, Georges 
Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (36)

(540) WORLDWIDE 
DIAMOND 
EXCHANGE

(310) 26813/2018 (320) 13/03/2018
(330) Respective Priority numbers for classes 1-45:

40-2017-0120761 to 40-2017-0120805 KR 
(730) LOTTE Corporation

300, Olympic-ro, Songpa-gu, Seoul,
Rep.of Korea

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street,Port Louis 

(511) (1,2, 3, 4, 5, 6,7, 8,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15,
16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27,
28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 
40,41,42, 43, 44 and 45)

(540) L (lowercase) and Device in Colour©
(310) 26814/2018 (320) 13/03/2018
(330) 40-2017-0120806 22/09/2017 KRand40- 

2017-0120807 22/09/2017 KR
(730) LOTTE Corporation

300, Olympic-ro, Songpa-gu, Seoul, 
Rep.of Korea

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street,Port Louis 

(511) (30 and 35)
(540) L (lowercase) and Device in Colour 

e

(310) 26815/2018 (320) 13/03/2018
(330) 2018-002157 09/01/2018 JP
(730) Aisin Seiki Kabushiki Kaisha (also trading as 

Aisin Seiki Co., Ltd.)
2-1 Asahi-machi, Kariya-shi, Aichi-ken, 
Japan

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (7 and 37)

<540) Power FabriQ

(310) 26816/2018 (320) 13/03/2018
(330) 2018-002158 09/01/2018 JP
(730) Aisin Seiki Kabushiki Kaisha (also trading as 

Aisin Seiki Co., Ltd.)
2-1 Asahi-machi, Kariya-shi, Aichi-Ken, 
Japan

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(511) (7 and 37) 

(540) ZENNO



31 March 2018 1301

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) 26858/2018 (320) 19/03/2018
(730) CINCO STARS LTD

4 Tres Bon Road, VACOAS,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (18 and 25)
(540) Sofia & Noah (and logo)

(310) 26859/2018 (320) 19/03/2018
(730) H.V. HOLDINGS LTD

8th Floor, Max City Building, Remy Ollier 
Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 38)
(540) COSMOS (and logo)

^COSMOS

(310) 26860/2018 (320) 19/03/2018
(730) EDDY PIERRE YHOAN GONTRAN

18 B20, Les Colonies, Rue Celicourt Antelme, 
Curepipe, Republic of Mauritius

(740) ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (33, 35 and 43)
(540) Rodlsland & Logo

(310) 26861/2018 (320) 19/03/2018
(730) EDDY PIERRE YHOAN GONTRAN

18 B20, Les Colonies, Rue Celicourt Antelme, 
Curepipe, Republic of Mauritius

(740) ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (33, 35 and 43)
(540) L'ESPRIT RODRIGUAIS & Logo

| L’ESPRIT
I RODRIGUAIS

(310) 26863/2018 (320) 21/03/2018
(730) SOLUTIONS EAU ET ENVIRONMENT

LTEE
The Junction Business Hub A- 202 -
Calebasses, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (6, 19 and 37)
(540) BLUE -The Art of Pools (and logo)

(310) 26865/2018 (320) 21/03/2018
(730) L.V.M (Mauritius) Ltd

Riviere Baptiste, La Laura, St. Pierre 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Mr Pravin BARTHIA, IP Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port Louis

(511) (30, 35 and 43)
(540) MyPokPok & Logo
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(310) 26870/2018 (320) 22/03/2018
(730) FUNWORLD CO LTD

Super U Centre, La Salette Road, Grand Baie, 
1207-02, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (28 and 41)
(540) Le Lucky Strike Bar & Lounge and Logo

Bar & lounge

(310) 26871/2018 (320) 22/03/2018
(730) FUNWORLD CO LTD

Super U Centre, La Salette Road, Grand Baie, 
1207-02, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (28 and 41)
(540) TI VEGAS (Stylized) and Logo

(310) 26872/2018 (320) 22/03/2018
(730) FUNNY KID LTD

Grand Bay, La Salette, 1313-01,
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (41)

(540) FUNNY KID

(310) 26873/2018 (320) 23/03/2018
(730) LIRTA Ltd

Pierre Simonet Street, Floreal, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (43)
(540) KUJA

kui«
Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11th Floor, Sterling House, Lislet 
Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay prescribed by law (2 
months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

Date: 29 March, 2018 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 549 of 2018

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been registered under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(111) 23566/2018 (151) 13/03/2018
(730) Eyelashes & Nails Ltd
(730) 255, More Anna Av Soufleur, Flic-en-Flac, 

Republic of Mauritius
(740) Mr Neeven N. Parsooramen, Barrister-at-Law 

Suite 613, 6th Floor, St. James Court, 
St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 3 and 44
(540) EVO2 Logo

eve;

(111) 23567/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Tires Specialist Tiremaster Ltd
(730) Industrial Zone, Phoenix,

Republic of Mauritius
(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney-at-Law

12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 29 and 35
(540) Lafish stylized

(111) 
(330) 
(730) 
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

23568/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
T2017-141351 25/10/2017 JP
NH Foods Ltd., a Japanese corporation
4-9, Umeda 2-chome, Kita-ku, Osaka-shi, 
Osaka, Japan
Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 
Int Class 29

NH Foods

(111) 23569/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) FARHANATOORAB NEETOO
(730) 101 Jacarandas Avenue, More Montreal 

Coromandel, Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 14,18, 21, 25, 26 and 28
(540) ZAFA ELEGANCY (and logo)

(111) 23570/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) LUX Hospitality Ltd
(730) Pierre Simonet Street, Floreal, 

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 43
(540) LIGHT & FRESH

(111) 23571/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) AHRIM, Association des Hoteliers et 

Restaurateurs- He Maurice
(730) Suite 83, Level 2, Medine Mews, La Chaussee, 

Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Ruben Cyril Payen

IBL Ltd, 10, Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 29 and 41
(540) CHECK-IN LOGO

check-in
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(111) 23572/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) PARMALAT SA (PTY) LTD
(730) Strand Road, Stellenbosch, Western Cape, 

South Africa
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 

ENSafrica (Mauritius) 
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 29
(540) NATURE'S GIFT (special form)

(111) 23573/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) PARMALAT SA (PTY) LTD
(730) Strand Road, Stellenbosch, Western Cape, 

South Africa
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 

ENSafrica (Mauritius) 
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 29
(540) NATURE'S GIFT Logo

(111) 23574/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Marie Michele Dominique Pierre
(730) A2 Avenue J.Lebrun, Q-Bornes,

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 35 and 41
(540) TEAL - Transparency, Ethics, Accountability 

and Leadership Development Program (and 
logo)

(111) 23575/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Panagora Marketing Company Ltd
(730) C/o Eclosia Group, Gentilly, Moka,

Republic of Mauritius
(740) Mr Gerard H de Froberville of 

ENSafrica(Mauritius) 
19, Church Street, Port-Louis, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 29 and 30
(540) HAOCHI AND LOGO

HAO
CHI
DIM SUMS

(111) 23577/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) RELAXON BEDDING LTD
(730) Orchard Centre, Ground Floor, 44-045,

Quatre-Bornes, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney at Law

12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 
(510) Int Class 20 and 35

5401 SLUMBERLAND
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(111) 23578/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Marie Nadine Bourbeau
(730) 4-5 Collins Rd, Roches-Brunes,

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 29 and 30
(540) Exo (Special form)

(111) 23579/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Shandong Linglong Tyre Co., Ltd.
(730) No.777 Jinlong Road, Zhaoyuan city, 265400, 

Shandong, Peoples Republic of China
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 12
(540) ROADONE (Stylized)

ROADONE
(111) 23580/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut 

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI DARE Label in Colour

(111) 23581/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI GONG Label in Colour

aiso
Dare Go* 1#

(111) 23582/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut 

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI CICIBEBE Label in Colour

(111) 23583/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) The Mauritius Commercial Bank Limited 
(730) Sir William Newton Street, Port-Louis,

Republic of Mauritius
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent of ENSafrica 

Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 36 and 45
(540) My Conciergerie by MCB & Logo

MY CONCIERGERIE
BY MCB
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(111) 
(730) 
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

23584/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
X-Strata Systems Limited
Unit 8, Stevenson Delhomme Suites, Le 
Chantier, P.O. Box 882, Victoria Mahe, 
Seychelles
Eversheds (Mauritius) Ltd, Trademark Agent 
Suite 310, 3rd Floor, Barkly Wharf, Le Caudan 
Waterfront, Port Louis
Int Class 35 and 42
X-STRATA SYSTEMS Logo

(111) 23585/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Abercrombie & Fitch Europe Sagl
(730) Via Moree, 6850 Mendrisio, Switzerland
(740) Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys at Law

7th Floor, Chancery House, Lislet Geoffrey 
Street, Port-Louis,

(510) Int Class 3

15401 HOLLISTER

(111) 23586/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) SOUTHCORP BRANDS PTY LIMITED
(730) 58 Queensbridge Street, Southbank, Victoria, 

3006, Australia
(740) Mr Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent of 

ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 33

15401 MAISON DE
GRAND ESPRIT

(111) 23587/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) VARCO DISTRIBUTORS LTD
(730) 27, Royal Road, GRNW, Port Louis,

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 29 and 30
(540) NIO (and logo)

(111) 23588/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) The Cloud Factory EMEA Ltd
(730) 1, The Factory Building, Vivea Business Park, 

Moka, Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 42
(540) The Cloud Factory EMEA and logo

(HI) 
(730) 
(730)

(740)

heCLOUD
FACTOPYemeci

(510) 
(540)

23589/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
CHEKI AFRICA MEDIA
C/O International Financial Services Limited 
IFS Court, Bank Street, Twentyeight, Cybercity, 
Ebene 72201, Republic of Mauritius
Etude Philips International Ltd
Suite 310, St James Court, St Denis Street, 
Port Louis
Int Class 9 and 35
SOKOSO (and logo)

Sokoso
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(111) 23590/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) PACON LTD
(730) Bonne Terre, Vacoas, Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 16
(540)

PACON PRO

(111) 23591/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) PARMALAT SA (PTY) LTD
(730) Strand Road, Stellenbosch,

Western Cape, South Africa
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 

ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 29
(540)

NATURE'S GIFT

(111) 23592/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) AVANTIME LTD
(730) Ecoasis Hub, Highlands Phoenix,

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 4 and 40
(540) BIODIEZ (and logo) 

bicdiez

(111) 23593/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) AVANTIME LTD
(730) Ecoasis Hub, Highlands Phoenix,

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 4 and 40
(540) BIOMAXX (and logo) 

bicmaxx
(111) 23594/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Gino Michael VIRASSAMY and Andy James 

BANAN
(730) Camp Levieux, Eaux Coulee, Curepipe, 

Republic of Mauritius and Camp Levieux, Eaux 
Coulee, Curepipe, Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Class 35
(540) Ti Bandits Logo

ATi BArtiis

(111) 23595/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) BEUSSE Emmanuel Florent
(730) Cnr. St. James & A. Nahaboo Solim Streets, 

Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 24 and 25
(540) 2B map (and logo)

2B
map
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(111) 23596/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Africa Top Consulting Ltd
(730) Ebene Junction, Rue de la Democratie, Ebene 

72203, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney-at-Law

8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, Georges 
Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 39
(540) TMS EXPRESS (word with chevron logo)

TMS^
express

(111) 23597/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) DEVEN-VILLA LTD
(730) Mont Oreb Lane, Pereybere,

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 43
(540) Residence Le Joli Manguier and logo

(111) 23598/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI TARTINI Label in Colour

Tartim
(111) 23600/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut 

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI LEIL GOURMET Label in Colour

(111) 23599/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut 

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI POP KEK Label in Colour

(111) 23601/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut 

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI CIN Label in Colour
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(111) 23602/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut 

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI PUF Label in Colour

(111) 23603/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Eti Gida Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
(730) Hosnudiye Mahallesi Kizilcikli Mahmut 

Pehlivan CD. Eti Plaza No:ll Tepebasi, 
Eskisehir, Turkey

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) ETI WANTED NUTS Label in Colour

w

(111) 23604/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Compagnie de Mont Choisy Limitee
(730) Chemin 20 Pieds, Grand Bale 30527, 

Republic of Mauritius
(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney-at-Law

12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 28, 29, 30, 31, 35, 36, 37, 41, 42, 43, 

44 and 45
(540) MONT

Mont
(111) 23606/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) UPL CORPORATION LIMITED
(730) 5th Floor, Newport Building, Louis Pasteur

Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Zohra Yusuf Nazroo, Attorney-at-Law

12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 
(510) Int Class 1
(540)

MICROTHIOL

(111) 23605/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) Ramdara Lungtoo
(730) Ville Bague, D'Epinay, Republic of Mauritius 
(510) Int Class 16
(540) Ocean Breeze Soft

(9cean ffiw&ze-

(111) 23607/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) UPL CORPORATION LIMITED
(730) 5th Floor, Newport Building, Louis Pasteur 

Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Zohra Yusuf Nazroo, Attorney-at-Law

12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 
(510) Int Class 1 and 5
(540)

NUTREO



1310 The Mauritius Government Gazette

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(111) 23608/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) AHRIM, Association des Hoteliers et 

Restaurateurs- lie Maurice
(730) Suite 83, Level 2, Medine Mews, La Chaussee, 

Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(740) R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent

IBL Ltd, 10, Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis 
(510) Int Class 35 and 41
(540) OPERA LOGO

Cbera^-

(111) 23609/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) AMG Trust
(730) Suite 204, Grand Baie Business Quarter, 

Chemin Vingt Pieds, Grand Bay, 
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Class 45
(540) AMG (and logo)

amc
(111) 23576/2018 (151) 14/03/2018
(730) Shenzhen Otot Electronic Group co., Ltd.
(730) Floor 6, building B, Jiuwei the Third Industrial 

Zone, Xixiand Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, 
Guangdong Province,
Peoples Republic of China

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney at Law
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 9
(540) OTOT Deviceo

(111) 23610/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) APPLE INC.
(730) 1 Infinite Loop, Cupertino, CA 95014,

United States of America
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 9

15401 MAC

(111) 23611/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) APPLE INC.
(730) 1 Infinite Loop, Cupertino, CA 95014,

United States of America
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 9

,540) MACBOOK

(111) 23612/2018 (151) 16/03/2018
(730) APPLE INC.
(730) 1 Infinite Loop, Cupertino, CA 95014,

United States of America
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 9

l540’ IMAC

Ag Controller
Industrial Property Officearch 2018
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General Notice No. 550 of 2018

THE PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGN & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 40)

Notice is hereby given that the following industrial design has been registered under 
Section 31 of the Patents, Industrial Designs & Trademarks Act 2002:

Description of Design: SUGARCANE HARVESTER

Number & Date of Registration: 000185/2018 of 27 December, 2017

Name & Address of the registered owner: Chavda Rajeshkumar Ranchhodbhai of

Rampara, Tai: Wadhwan, Dist: Surendranagar 363435 Gujarat, India

Name & Address of Creator: Chavda Rajeshkumar Ranchhodbhai of Rampara, Tai:

Wadhwan, Dist: Surendranagar 363435 Gujarat, India

Filing Date: 27 December, 2017

Products: Agricultural machinery

Class: 15-03

Representation of Design:

FRONT VIEW REAR VIEW
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

RIGHT SIDE VIEW

LEFT SIDE VIEW

TOP VIEW BOTTOM VIEW

Date: 29 March, 2018
The Controller

Industrial Property Office
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Legal Notices and Advertisements
Third and Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Nitin MOMPLE, 

residing at A3, Abercrombie, Les Salines, 
Port-Louis, has applied to the Honourable, 
the Attorney-General, for leave to change the name 
Nitin into those of Nitin Poran, so that in future 
he may be known under the names and surname of 
Nitin Poran MOMPLE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a 
period of 28 days as from date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 15th day of March 
2018.

Mrs K. D. Varmah 
Room 405, Chancery House, 

Lislet Geoffroy Street, 
Port-Louis 

Attorney for the Petitioner 
(Rec. No. 16/475115)

Third and Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Diptee 

GEERDHARRY has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change her name 
Diptee into those of Zoyah Bibi Jannat Adeelah 
so that in the future she shall bear the names 
and surname of Zoyah Bibi Jannat Adeelah 
GEERDHARRY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 20 February 2018.

Ms Diptee GEERDHARRY 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/475083)

Third and Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Mohammad

Rumi Mahmood ADAM of Royal Park, Lot 164 

B, Humber Lane, Balaclava, have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
his names Mohammad Rumi Mahmood into that 
of Rumi so that in the future he shall bear the name 
and surname of Rumi ADAM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
the publication.

Dated: 1st March 2018.

Mr Mohammad Rumi Mahmood ADAM

(Rec. No. 16/475065)
Applicant

Third and Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs 

Beekram Sarju have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change their minor 
son’s name Siddhesh into that of Mivaan so that 
in the future he shall bear the name and surname 
of Mivaan Sarju.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Date: March 2018.

(Rec. No. 16/475061)

Mr & Mrs Beekram Sarju 
Applicant

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mahendranath 

GYA has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change his surname GYA into 
that of GAYA so that in the future he shall bear the 
name and surname of Mahendranath GAYA.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the last publication of this notice.

Dated this 8th March, 2018.

Mahendranath GYA 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 16/475164)
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Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Noel Jean-Claude 

Vinay, of 60, Gleneagles Road, Greenslide, 
Johannesburg, Republic of South Africa, has 
applied to the Honourable, The Attorney-General, 
for leave to change his surname “Vinay” into those 
of “St. Clair-Vinay”, so that in future he may bear 
the name and surname of “Noel Jean-Claude St. 
Clair-Vinay”.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated at Port Louis, this 20th March, 2018.

A. Rajah 
of 56, Sir William Newton Street, 

Port Louis.
Petitioner’s Attorney 

(Rec. No. 16/475179)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Manevi 

MURUGESAN has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change her name 
and surname Manevi MURUGESAN into those 
of Begum Kouraisha GHOORAH so that in the 
future she shall bear the names and surname of 
Begum Kouraisha GHOORAH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the last publication of this notice.

Dated this 2nd March, 2018.

Manevi MURUGESAN (Ms) 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/475190)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr 

Lakshineekumaara AWOOTAR has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change his name Lakshmeekumaara into that of 
Avnish so that in the future he shall bear the name 
and surname of Avnish AWOOTAR.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 27 February 2018
(Rec. No. 16/475123)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Jaggadambal 
PATTEN (born MOOTOOCURPEN) has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change her name Jaggadambal into that of 
Maya so that in the future she shall bear the name 
and surname of Maya MOOTOOCURPEN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 8 March 2018

(Rec. No. 16/475121)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Mohammad 
Hamil KAREEMUN has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change his name Mohammad Hamil into those 
of Mohammad Aamir Hussein so that in the 
future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Mohammad Aamir Hussein KAREEMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the' office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 8 March 2018

(Rec. No. 16/475154)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs Vikash 
MULLOO of Birla Road, Cottage, have applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
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change the name of their minor son Harsh into 
those of Yog Yura so that in the future he shall bear 
the names and surname of Yog Yura MULLOO.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
the publication.

Dated: 1st March 2018.

Mr & Mrs Vikash MULLOO
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 16/475150)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Stephan Kevin 
CARDIN has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change his names Stephan 
Kevin and to replace it by Baptiste Pierre Charles 
so that he may henceforth bear the names and 
surname of Baptiste Pierre Charles CARDIN.

Objections if any, to the granting of the said 
application should be filed in the Registry of the 
Office of the Attorney General within a period of 
28 days as from the last date of the publication of 
this notice.

Dated at Port Louis this March 2018.

Stephan Kevin CARDIN 
of 35 Residence Les Tarniers, Flic en Flac

Applicant
(Rec. No. 16/475144)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs 
Prameshwar GOOLJAURY, acting as legal 
administrators of their minor son, Mokshamsingh 
GOOLJAURY of L’Agrement, Saint Pierre, 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change the name of their son, 
Mokshamsingh into that of Madhav, so that in 
the future, he may officially be known under the 
name and surname of Madhav GOOLJAURY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a 

period of 28 days as from date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 20th day of March 2018.

Mr & Mrs Prameshwar GOOLJAURY
Petitioners

(Rec. No. 16/475172)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is hereby given that I, Abdool Cader 
MALLAM HASSAM, of No. 79, Sodnac Avenue, 
Quatre Bornes, has petitioned to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change my names 
and surname Abdool Cader MALLAM HASSAM 
into those of Cader MALLAM-HASSAM, so that 
in the future I shall bear the name and surname of 
Cader MALLAM-HASSAM.

Objection if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within four 
months as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated at Port Louis, this 28 March 2018.

C. MALLAM HASSAM 
of Office No. 512, 

5th Floor, Sterling House, 
Port Louis 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/475253)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is hereby given that Abdool Cader 
MALLAM HASSAM, of No. 79, Sodnac Avenue, 
Quatre Bornes, has petitioned to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change the 
names of his minor son, Muhammad Ayman 
MALLAM HASSAM into those of Ayman 
MALLAM HASSAM, so that in the future he 
shall bear the name and surname of Ayman 
MALLAM HASSAM.

Objection if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within four 
months as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.
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Dated at Port Louis, this 28 March 2018.

C. MALLAM HASSAM 
of Office No. 512, 

5th Floor, Sterling House, 
Port Louis 

(Rec. No. 16/475253) Applicant

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
NOTICE is hereby given that Muhammad 

Adnaan MALLAM-HASSAM, ofNo. 79, Sodnac 
Avenue, Quatre Bomes, electing his legal domicile 
in the office of the undersigned Attorney-at-Law, 
has petitioned to the Honourable Attorney-General 
for leave to change his names Muhammad 
Adnaan into that of Adnaan so that in the future 
he shall bear the name and surname of Adnaan 
MALLAM-HASSAM.

Objection if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within four 
months as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated at Port Louis, this 28 March 2018.

C. MALLAM HASSAM 
of Office No. 512, 

5th Floor, Sterling House, 
Port Louis 

Petitioner’s Attorney 
(Rec. No. 16/475253)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is hereby given that Ameerah Bibi 
MALLAM HASSAM, of No. 79, Sodnac Avenue, 
Quatre Bomes, electing her legal domicile in the 
office of the undersigned Attorney-at-Law, has 
petitioned to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change her names and surname Ameerah 
Bibi MALLAM HASSAM into those of 
Ameerah MALLAM-HASSAM that in the future 
he shall bear the name and surname of Ameerah 
MALLAM-HASSAM.

Objection if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within four 
months as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated at Port Louis, this 28 March 2018.

C. MALLAM HASSAM 
of Office No. 512, 

5th Floor, Sterling House, 
Port Louis 

Petitioner’s Attorney 
(Rec. No. 16/475253)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Kavish 
TRANQUILLE has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his surname 
TRANQUILLE into that of SOOKHUN so that 
in the future he shall bear the name and surname of 
Kavish SOOKHUN.

Objections, if any should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.
(Rec. No. 16/475215)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Boojh Kumar 
DOOKAN has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his names 
Boojh Kumar into those of Shyamal Boojh 
Kumar so that in the future he shall bear the 
names and surname of Shyamal Boojh Kumar 
DOOKAN.

Objections, if any should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 22 March 2018.
(Rec. No. 16/475274)

First Publication

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
21st day of June 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, situate at Supreme Court 
Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port-Louis, Sale 
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by Levy of the following immoveable property, 
“Une portion de terrain de la contenance de neuf 
perches soixante centimetres soil quatre cent cinq 
metres carres et soixante dix centiemes, situee 
au quartier de Flacq, lieudit Riche Mare. Une 
portion de terrain de la contenance de trois cent 
huit metres carres et soixante dix centimetres, 
situee au quartier de Flacq, lieudit Riche Mare. 
Lesquelles portions de terrain qui sont contigues 
ont ete trouvees etre d’une contenance reelle et 
totale de sept cent vingt et un metres carres et 
quatre vingt sept centiemes (721.87m2) ainsi que 
I’atteste un rapport, avec plan figuratif dresse 
par Monsieur Zahur Ahmad Khuram Beegun, 
arpenteur jure, le neuf aout de I ’an deux mil neuf, 
enregistre au Reg. L.S 68 No. 2317, et bornees 
tant d’apres le titre de propriete que d’apres le 
sus dit rapport comme suit: Du premier cote, par 
‘Hanuman Road’, sur dix huit metres et quatre 
vingt dix sept centimetres (18.97m). Du second 
cote, partie par un terrain appartenant a la ‘Ste 
Arya Prathinidhi Sabha Mauritius ’ etpartie par un 
autre terrain appartenant a Madame B. Chengadu, 
sur une longueur totale mesurant trente huit 
metres et soixante dix sept centimetres (38.77m). 
Du troisieme cote, par un terrain appartenant a 
Mr. Y. Janikeramudu, sur dix neuf metres (19.00m). 
Et du quatrieme et dernier cote, par un terrain 
appartenant a Monsieur M. Keetaruth, sur trente 
sept metres et vingt neuf centimetres (37.29m).

Together with all building existing on the said 
portion of land or any building which may be 
erected thereafter and all the appurtenances and 
dependencies thereof generally whatsoever without 
any exception or reserve, the whole more fully 
described and transcribed in Vol. 7576 No. 30, 
bearing PIN: 1406130033 viz the whole morefully 
described in the Memorandum of Charges filed in 
the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request 
of MAUBANK Ltd acting in the rights of 
Mauritius Post and Cooperative Bank Ltd against
1. Mr Ahmed BUNDHOO 2. Mrs Bibi Naseema 
BUNDHOO (Born AUCKARAULLEE) both of 
them of No 23B Thierry Street, Rose-Hill.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before tfie transcription of the 

judgement of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis this 06th day of April 2018.

Mrs Anju K Ghose 
of Suite No.3, Level 6, 
The Hennessy Tower, 
Pope Hennessy Street, 

Port-Louis. 
Attorney in charge of the sale 

(Rec. No. 16/475225)

First Publication

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
10th day of May 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, situate at Supreme Court 
Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port-Louis, Sale 
by Levy of the following immoveable property 
“Une portion de terrain de la contenance de 
trois cent et trente et un centimes metres carres 
(312.3m2), etant le lot No. 1, distraite de deux 
terrains contigus de la contenance respective de 
mille cent quarante metres carres (1,140 m2) sois 
trois cents toise (300T)et sept cent soixante metres 
carres (760m2), situee au quartier des Plaines 
Wilhems lieu dit Beau Bassin, No 83 Route Royale 
d’apres le cadastre de la Municipalite de Beau 
Bassin/Rose Hill, et bornee tant d’apres le titre de 
propriete que d’apres un rapport de description, 
avec un plan figuratif dresse par Monsieur L.F.K 
Li Mew Tung, arpenteur jure, le vingt huit mars 
Tan deux mil. Enregistre au Reg LS 39 No 4011, 
comme suit: vers I ’est, par la Route Royale (Port 
Louis - St Jean Road), un trottoir entre,.sur douze 
metres et quatre vingt dix centimetres (12.90m.) 
vers le Sud, par un chemin de quatre metres et 
cinquante centimetres (4.50m) de large, partie sur 
une longueur developpee mesurant trois metres 
et soixante centimetres (3.60m) et partie sur une 
ligne droite mesurant dix huit metres et quatre 
vingt centimetres (18.80m), des reserves de quatre 
vingt dix centimetres (0.90m) de large entre. Vers 
I’Quest, par le lot No. 3, sur quinze metres et 
quarante et un centimetres (15.41m).

Together with all the building existing on the 
said portion of land or any building which may 
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be erected thereafter and all the appurtenance and 
dependencies thereof generally whatsoever without 
any exception or reserve, the whole more fully 
described and transcribed in Vol 4418 No 54 viz 
the whole morefully described in the Memorandum 
of Charges filed in the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request of 
MAUB ANK Ltd acting in the rights of Mauritius 
Post and Cooperative Bank Ltd against 1. Fine 
Filati Co Ltd, service to be effected at its registered 
office at 83 Royal Road Beau Bassin, 2. Mrs 
Ansuya Ragoonathsingh (Born Jhurry) 3. Mr 
Oudesh Ragoonathsingh-Both of 83 Royal Road 
Beau Bassin 4. Mr Romesh Chandreduthsingh 
Hardowar and 5. Bhanoomatee Hardowar 
(Born Ragoonathsingh) - both of 189 (Ex73) 
Sir S. Ramgoolam Street, Quatre Bornes 6. Mr 
Naresh Ragoonathsingh and 7. Mrs Doovinah 
Ragoonathsingh (Born Seetohul) - both of 83 
Royal Road, Beau Bassin.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgement of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis this 6th day of April 2018.

Mrs Anju K Ghose 
of Suite No. 3, Level 6, 

The Hennessy Tower, 
Pope Hennessy Street, 

Port-Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale 

(Rec. No. 16/475225)

First Publication

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
21st day of June 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, situate at Supreme Court 
Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port-Louis, Sale by 
Levy of the following immoveable property:

Property Charged 1: Belonging to Defendant 
No 1.

“Une portion de terrain de la contenance 
d 'un arpent sois quatre mille deux cent vingt et 

un metres carres (4221m2), situee au quartier de 
Grand Port lieu dit Tintamare et borne d’apres 
titre comme suit: Vers le Nord par un chemin de 
balisage de douze pieds sur cent dix huit pieds: 
Vers I 'Est par un chemin de douze pieds commun 
a tons les acquereurs de Tintamare sur trois 
cent quarante pieds; Vers le Slid, par un chemin 
de six pieds commun a tous les acquereuses de 
Tintamare sur cent dix huit pieds; Et vers I 'Guest 
par Ramkissoon Nunkoo sur trois cent quarante 
pieds.

Together with all plantations and buildings and 
its appurtenances and dependencies and generally 
all that may depend there form or will form part 
thereof without any exception or reservation, the 
whole morefully described and transcriped in Vol 
TV. 4669 No. 61.

Property Charged 2: Belonging to Defendant 
No 2.

Tout en ce qui reste — sois quatre cent 
quarante trois metres carres et vingt centimetres 
(443.20m2) (apres destraction q'une portion de 
terrain de la contenance de huit perches (8p) soit 
trois cent trente sept metres carres et soixante 
huit centimetres (337.68m2) vendue suivant titre 
transcrit au vol. 1193 no. 24) d’une portion 
de terrain de la contenance dix huit perches et 
demie soit sept cent-quatre vingt metres carree et 
quatre vingt huit centimes, situee au quartier de 
Grand Port lieu dit Union Park et borne dans sa 
contenance originaire d'apres titre comme suit: 
de premier cote, par la Route Publique conduisant 
de Port Louis a Mahebourg sur cinquante pieds; 
Du troisieme cote par Hoolkoom Jagessur sur cent 
trente neuf pieds; Du deuxieme cote par Munnilall 
Gungabissoon sur une; longueur calculee de 
cinquante trois pieds.

Together with building and all its appurtenances 
and dependencies thereon existing and generally 
all that may depend therefrom or will form part 
thereof without any exception or reservation, the 
whole more fully described and transcribed in Vol 
TV. 4669 No.60.

Together with all building existing on the said 
portion of land or any building which may be 
erected thereafter and all the appurtenances and 
dependencies thereof generally whatsoever without 
any exception or reserve, the whole morefully 
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described and transcribed in Vol TV. 4669 No. 61 
and Vol TV. 4669 No. 60 viz the whole morefully 
described in the Memorandum of Charges filed in 
the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request of 
MAUBANK Ltd acting in the rights of Mauritius 
Post and Cooperative Bank Ltd against 1. Miss 
Devianee Jugessur 2. Mr Jai Sunkur, 3.Mr Anand 
Jugessur and Mrs Taramatee Jugessur (born 
Joymungul) both of them of Royal Road, Union 
Park.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgement of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis this 06th day of April 2018.

Mrs Anju K Ghose 
of Suite No.3, Level 6, 
The Hennessy Tower, 
Pope Hennessy Street, 

Port-Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale

(Rec. No. 16/475225)

First Publication

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
10th day of May 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, situate at Supreme Court 
Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port-Louis, Sale by 
Levy of the following immoveable property, “une 
portion de terrain de la contenance de quatre 
cent dix huit et soixante dix huit centimes metres 
carres (418.78m2), etant le lot 5, distraite de deux 
portions de terrain contigues de la contenance 
respective de mille cent quarante metres carres 
(1140m2) soit trois cent toise (300T) et sept cent 
soixante metres carre (760m2) soit deux cent toise 
(200T), situee au quartier des Plaines Wilhems. 
Lieu dit Beau Bassin No 83 Route Royale d’apres 
un rapport de description avec un plan figuratif 
y joint dresse par Monsieur L.F.K Li Mew tung, 
arpenteur jure, le vingt huit mars de I’an deux 
mille, enregistre au Reg LS 39 No. 4011, comme 

suit: Vers le Nord, par les reserves d’un canal 
sur quinze metres et quatre vingt dix centimetres 
(15.90m). Vers I’Est, partie par le Lot 3 ci-dessus 
decritpar la largeur d ’un chemin commun etpartie 
par le lot No 4 ci-dessus decrit sur une longueur 
totale de vingt sept metres et soixante quatre 
metres et quatre vingt centimetres (27.64m). Vers 
le Sud par M. Heerassing sur vingt cinq metres et 
trente cinq centimetres (15.80m). Vers I ’Quest, par 
M.D Luchmun sur vingt cinq metres et trente cinq 
centimetres (25.35m).

Together with all the building existing on the 
said portion of land or any building which may 
be erected thereafter and all the appurtenances 
and dependencies thereof generally whatsoever 
without any exception or reserve, the whole 
morefully described and transcribed in Vol 4418 
No. 4 viz the whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request of 
MAUBANK Ltd acting in the rights of Mauritius 
Post and Cooperative Bank Ltd against 1. Mrs 
Ansuya Ragoonathsingh (Born Jhurry) 2. Mr 
Oudesh Ragoonathsingh-Both of 83 Royal Road 
Beau Bassin.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgement of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis this 06th day of April 2018.

Mrs Anju K Ghose 
of Suite No.3, Level 6, 
The Hennessy Tower, 
Pope Hennessy Street, 

Port-Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale

(Rec. No. 16/475225)

First Publication

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
14th day of June 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, situate at Supreme Court 
Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port-Louis, the Sale 
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by Levy of the following immoveable properties 
“Uneportion de terrain de la contenance de mille 
cinquante cinq et trente centiemes metres carres 
(1,055.30 m2), situee au quartier de la Riviere 
du Rempart, lieudit Grand Baie, et bornee tant 
d’apres le titre depropriete que d’apres un proces 
verbal de rapport, avec plan figuratif dr esse par 
Monsieur Louis Maurice Dumazel, arpenteur jure, 
en date du vingt decembre mil neuf cent quatre 
vingt huit, enregistre au Reg L.S. 26 No 2741, 
comme suit: Du premier cote, par un chemin 
commun de trois metres soixante six centimetres 
(3.66m) de large, une reserve de soixante et un 
centimetres (0.61m) de large entre, sur vingt et 
un metres soixante dix centimetres (21. 70m). Du 
deuxieme cote, par le lot No 2, sur quarante neuf 
metres cinquante huit centimetres (49.58m). Du 
troisieme cote, par Aihissoo Joomun, sur vingt 
et un metres soixante dix centimetres (21.70m). 
Et du quatrieme et dernier cote, par un chemin 
commun de trois metres soixante six centimetres 
(3.66m) de large, une reserve de soixante et un 
centimetres (0.61m) de large entre, sur quarante 
neuf metres trente huit centimetres (49.38m). Tout 
ce qui reste (apres distraction d’une portion de 
terrain de la contenance de mille cinquante cinq 
et trente centiemes metres carres(l,055.30m2) 
vendue a Monsieur et Madame Dawood Junglee 
suivant titre enregistre et transcrit au Vol 1918 
No 14) d’un terrain de la contenance originaire 
de deux mille cent dix et cinquante centiemes 
metres carres (2,110.50m2), situe au quartier de 
la Riviere du Rempart, lieudit Grand Baie. Lequel 
solde a depuis ete arpente par Monsieur Louis 
Maurice Dumazel, ancien arpenteur jure, et a ete 
trouve etre de la contenance de mille cinquante 
cinq et vingt centiemes metres carres (1,055.20m2), 
suivant son proces verbal de rapport d’arpentage 
en date du vingt decembre mil neuf cent quatre 
vingt huit, enregistre au Reg L.S. 26 No 2741, et 
est bornee tant d’apres le titre de propriete que 
d’apres leditproces verbal de rapport comme suit: 
Du premier cote, par un chemin commun de trois 
metres soixante six centimetres (3.66m) de large, 
une reserve de soixante et un centimetres (0.61m) 
de large entre, sur vingt et un metres cinquante huit 
centimetres (21.58m). Du deuxieme cote, par Azam 
Joomun, sur quarante neuf metres quatre vingt dix 
neuf centimetres (49.99m). Du troisieme cote par 
Aihissoo Joomun sur vingt et un metres cinquante 

huit centimetres (21.58m). Et du quatrieme et 
dernier cote par le Lot No 1, sur quarante neuf 
metres cinquante huit centimetres (49.58m). Et 
une portion de terrain de la contenance de cinq 
cent quarante huit et soixante dix centiemes metres 
carres (548.70m2), situe au quartier de la Riviere 
du Rempart, lieudit Grand Baie, et bornee tant 
d’apres le titre depropriete que d’apres unproces 
verbal de rapport, avec plan figuratif, dresse par 
Monsieur J. Ramnajooloo, arpenteur jure, en date 
du dix neuf decembre mille neuf cent quatre vingt 
dix, enregistre au Reg L.S. 26 No 13457, comme 
suit: Du premier cote, par chemin Cremation de 
trois metres soixante six centimetres (3.66m) de 
large, une reserve de soixante et un centimetres 
(0.61m) de large entre, sur onze metres quatre 
centimetres (11.04m). Du deuxieme cote, par le 
surplus du terrain sur cinquante metres quinze 
centimetres (50.15m). Du troisieme cote, partie 
par Ahmade Joomun et partie par Bibi Aihissou 
Joomun, sur une ligne droite de onze metres quatre 
centimetres (11.04m). Et du quatrieme et dernier 
cote, par Noor Mamode Joomun, sur quarante 
neuj metres quatre vingt dix neuf centimetres 
(49.99m)”.

Together with all the building existing on the 
said portion of land or any building which may 
be erected thereafter and all the appurtenances 
and dependencies thereof generally whatsoever 
without any exception or reserve, the whole more 
fully described in a deed transcribed in Vol 7427 
No 40 and in Vol 7472/4, the whole morefully 
described in the Memorandum of Charges filed in 
the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request of 
MauBank Ltd acting in the rights of the MPCB 
Ltd against 1. Mr Sanjaye Nath RAMSAHA, 
dully represented by agent and proxy Mr Hariduth 
RAMSAHA of Rishi Dayanand Lane, Mare 
La Chaux, Quatre Cocos 2. Mrs Danwantee 
BUNDHUN RAMSAHA, (the lawful wife of 
Sanjaye Nath RAMSAHA), duly represented by 
agent and proxy Mr Hariduth RAMSAHA of Rishi 
Dayanand Lane, Mare La Chaux, Quatre Cocos.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgement of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.
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Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis this 06,h April 2018.

Mrs Anju K Ghose 
of Suite No.3, Level 6, 
The Hennessy Tower, 
Pope Hennessy Street, 

Port-Louis. 
Attorney in charge of the sale 

(Rec. No. 16/475225)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
12th day of July, 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar situate at the Supreme Court 
Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the sale 
by levy of ‘Les biens et droits immobiliers ci-apres 
decrits dependant d’un groupe d’immeubles sis 
dans le district de la Riviere Noire, au lieudit« La 
Tour Koenig » (L. T.K. VII of State Land) portant la 
denomination de « RESIDENCE GRIVE » et erige 
sur une portion de terrain de la contenance de 
huit mille six cent soixante dix sept metres carres 
(8677m2) ayantfait I ’objet d ’un bail a construction 
par le gouvernement de la Republique de Maurice 
en faveur du vendeur. Le tout plus amplement 
decrit au reglement de Co-propriete ci-apres 
relate. Leditgroupe d’immeublessoumis au regime 
de la co-propriete et ayant fait I’objet d’un etat 
descriptif de division incorpore au reglement de 
co-propriete dresse par Mattre MARIE JOSEPH 
BERNARD D’HOTMAN DE VILLIERS, notaire 
au Port Louis, le dix neuf Septembre mil neuf cent 
quatre vingt quatorze, enregistre et transcrit au 
Vol. TV 2888 No. 9. DESIGNATION - Le Lot No 
80. Un appartement Type etant le Lot No 80 d’une 
superficie reelle interieure hors murs de cinquante 
trois metres carres et quarante centiemes de 
metres carre (53.40m2) (mais portant le numero 
B48 au plan contenant la numerotation des lots 
qui est demeure annexe au susdit reglement de 
co-propriete), situe dans le Bloc B au troisieme 
etage en premiere position a droite de la cage 
d’escalier se trouvant a droite en se mettant face 
audit bloc du cote des entrees. Avec ensemble les 
Quatre Vingt Neuf/Dix Milliemes (89/10.000emes) 
des parties communes du groupe d’immeubles 
telles qu ’elles sont definies au susdit reglement de 
co-propriete. Together with all that may depend 

or form part thereof without any exception or 
reservation, the whole morefully described in Vo:- 
TV 3408 No 10 and Reglement de Co-propriete> 
Vol TV 2888 No 9. PIN: 1924130006, and in the 
Cahier des Charges filed in the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request of 
Mauritius Housing Company Ltd against Mr & 
Mrs Jean Mac Kensy GENTIL.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 23rd day of March, 
2018

Me D.LUCHMUN 
2nd Floor, Fairfax House, 

Mgr Gonin Street, 
Port Louis. 

Attorney in charge of the sale 
(Rec. No. 16/475246)

First Publication

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
12th day of July, 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court situate 
at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale by 
Levy of: "Une portion de terrain de la contenance 
de quatre arpents et demie (4’/> arpents) soit 
environ dix huit mille neuf cent quatre vingt treize 
et quatre vingt onze centiemes metres carres 
(18,993.91 m2) environ, situee au quartier des 
Plaines Wilhems, lieu dit «Trou aux Cerfs». (PIN 
Number:- 1743560190) Au titre de propriete ci- 
apres relate, il a ete fait observer que la susdite 
portion de terrain a depuis ete arpente par J. 
Carnal Boudou, ancien arpenteur jure et a ete par 
lui trouvee etre de la meme contenance ainsi qu ’il 
appert de son proces verbal en date du 22/12/1970, 
enregistre au Reg:- A 378 No. 8986, comme suit:- 
Du premier cote, par la Route Publique de Trou 
aux Cerfs, sur deux cent pieds (200 ’) soit soixante 
cinq metres quinze (65 m 15); Du second cote, 
partie par Ghore et partie par divers proprietaires, 
sur huit cent soixante quinzepieds (875 ’) soit deux 
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cent quatre vingt cinq metres zero deux (285 m 
02); Du troisieme cote, par G. Lagane, sur deux 
cent pieds (200 ) soit soixante cinq metres quinze 
(65 m 15); Et du quatrieme cote, par un chemin 
commun et partie par le Board de Curepipe, sur 
huit cent soixante quinze pieds (875 ’) soit deux 
cent quatre vingt cinq metres zero deux (285 m 02). 
La mesure employee est le pied franqais/metres. 
Together with all buildings, constructions and 
plantations existing thereon, and all dependencies 
and appurtenances thereof, generally whatsoever, 
without any exception or reservation, the whole 
as morefully described in title deed drawn up by 
Mr. Louis Serge Gopee, Late Notary Public, on 
the 13/05/1977, registered and transcribed on the 
19/05/1977 in Vol. 1366/138.”. The land has a 
rectangular shape with a frontage of some 65 m 
on a depth of some 284 m. Sandfree plot, part of it 
under thick scrub vegetation. Land slopes down in 
a south-westerly direction with magnificent views 
of the mountain range. It lies next to the built-up 
residential area.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of 
The Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd against 
Mr. Indurdutt BEENESSREESINGH formerly 
known as Indurdutt BINASSARI.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 27th day of March, 
2018.

Udhisteer K. Ragobur 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

of 19, Church Street, 
Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale 
(Rec. No. 16/475272)

SALE BY LICITATION

Take notice that on the 26th day of March 2018, 
has been filed in the Master’s office, Supreme 

Court of Mauritius, the Memorandum of Charges, 
Conditions and Clauses, pursuant and according 
to which shall take place before the Master’s Bar, 
the Sale by Licitation of the hereunder described 
immoveable property viz:- A portion of land of 
the extent of 240.83 square metres situate in the 
District of Savanne, place called Chemin Grenier, 
being Lot No. 2 together with an old unfinished 
dilapidated residential building made of cement 
blocks under slab composed of two rooms and one 
kitchen, with no water and electricity supplies and 
no amenities and morefully described as per deed 
transcribed in Vol 8138/40 and bounded according 
to a survey report drawn up by Mr A. Khadaroo, 
Sworn Land Surveyor, dated the 22nd April 2011 
duly registered in Reg B 179 No. 796 as follows:- 
On first side, by and exit road of 3.05 metres 
wide upon two lines measuring 3.08 meter and 
13.04 meters respectively; On the second side, by 
lot No 3 14.87 metres; On the third side, partly by 
Mr Louis Francois Poudret and partly by Societe 
Secours Mutuels de Chemin Grenier on a total 
lengths of 16.11 metres and on the fourth side, by 
lot No 1 15.29 metres. The said portion of land 
is located in a residential zone. Together with all 
that depends or forms part thereof without any 
exceptions or reservations whatsoever, the whole 
morefully described in the said Memorandum of 
Charges.

The said sale is prosecuted at the requests 
of May Danielle Solange Rajni LUCHMAN 
against Paul Michel Tristan LUCHMUN, a 
retired mechanic residing at Maidstone Street, 
Morcellement Antelme, Forest Side.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
be debarred from such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 27th day of March 2018.

C. Seebaluck C.S.K 
of Cathedral Square, 

Port Louis 
Attorney in charge of the sale

(Rec. No. 16/475242)



31 March 2018 1323

SALE BY LICITATION

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday 
the 07th day of June 2018 at 13.30 hrs, shall 
take place before the Master’s Bar situate at the 
Supreme Court Building, Jules Koenig Street, 
Port-Louis, the Sale by Licitation prosecuted at 
the request of L- Radharanee RAMDHARY
2.-  Hemwantee RAMDHARY and 3.- Heirs 
of late Poospawatee RAMDHARY namely:-
(i) Thavish CHAREETUR (ii) Kerishma 
CHAREETUR and (iii) Kishor CHAREETUR 
against Mrs Rageshwaree RAMDHARY, the 
lawful wife of Narashwarsingh TOT ARAM of 
“Une portion de terrain de la contenance de 
110 Toises, situee au quartier des Plaines Wilhems 
lieu dit Beau Bassin et bornee comme suit:- Des 
ler et 2enK cotes, par le chemin commun; Des 3 'ne 
et 4enK cotes par le surplus du vendeur. The whole 
morefully described in the deed dated 08/11/1978, 
30/11/1978 and 01/03/1979 and transcribed in 
•Volume 1436/165. - Together with a concrete 
residential building existing thereon provided with 
water and electricity supplies and all that may 
depend or form part thereof. All parties claiming 
a right to take inscription of legal mortgage upon 
the said property are warned that they must do 
so before the transcription of the judgment of 
adjudication failing which they shall forfeit such 
right.

*i

LEGAL NOTICE UNDER SECTION 108 & 
117 OF THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

DAEWOO CORPORATION (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
(in liquidation)

(“the Company”)

I, Mr. Xavier Koenig, Insolvency Practitioner, 
hereby give notice that I have been appointed 
liquidator of the Company by virtue of an order 
issued by the Honourable Mr. G. Angoh on the 
21st day of March 2018.1 have been notified of my 
appointment on the 21st March 2018 and the date of 
commencement of the winding-up of the Company 
is 21st March 2018. Creditors and shareholders 
of the Company may direct their inquiries to 
my office at 19 Church Street, Port-Louis or on 
+230 212 2215.

Notice is also given that the first meeting of 
creditors will be held in my office on 27th April 
2018 at 10.00 a.m. and that the first meeting of 
contributories will be held at the same place and

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 23rd day of March 
2018.

Mrs A. Prayag 
of Mgr Gonin St, Port-Louis 

Attorney in charge of the sale
(Rec. No. 16/475242)

SALE BY LICITATION

Take notice that on the 26th day of March 2018, 
has been filed in the Master’s Office, Supreme 
Court of Mauritius, the Memorandum of Charges, 
Conditions and Clauses, pursuant and according 
to which shall take place before the Master’s Bar, 
the Sale by Licitation prosecuted at the request 
of Mrs Aarti RAKHAH against Mr Sooven 
NARENDRA of “Uwe portion de terrain de la 
contenance de 428 m2, situee au quartier de Grand 

Port lieu dit Mare d’Albert et bornee comme suit:- 
Du ler cote, par le Phoenix-Mahebourg Road, 
(A 10), sur 7m5 7; Du 2emc cote, partie par le terrain 
appartenant a Mons. Jayelall Mohur et partie par 
le terrain appartenant a Mons. Ditlall Mohur, sur 
une longueur totale de 60m; du 3"'ne cote, partie 
par le 2eme Lot (etant le surplus d’apres un projet 
de distraction) sur 6.75m; du 4ime et dernier cote, 
par un chemin de sortie (pieton) d’un metre et 
vingt centimetres de large sur 60m. The whole 
morefully described in the deed and transcribed 
in Volume 7209/22. - Together with a concrete 
building thereon. All parties claiming a right to 
take inscription of legal mortgage upon the said 
property are warned that they must do so before 
the transcription of the judgment of adjudication 
failing which they shall forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 27th day of March 
2018.

P. Chuttoo 
of 2nd Floor, Astor Court, 

Port Louis 
Attorney in charge of the sale 

(Rec. No. 16/475242) 
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on the same day at 10.30 a.m. To be entitled to 
vote, creditors must lodge with me their proof of 
debts not later than two days before the date and 
time fixed for the meeting of creditors.

Dated at Port Louis this 27th day of March 2018.

Xavier Koenig 
Liquidator

(Rec. No. 16/475272)

I Gowtamsingh Dabee ACA FCCA, Insolvency 
Practitioner, of 5th Floor, Green Cross Building 
Belle Rose, Quatre-Bomes, Mauritius have been 
appointed as liquidator.

Dated this 27th day of March 2018.

Gowtamsingh Dabee 
Tel: 5 2579194 - gdabee@gdriches.mu

(Rec No. 16/475270)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Georesources Exploration Ltd

(In Shareholders ’ Voluntary Winding-up)

I, Shareef Ramjan hereby notify that:

(i) I have been appointed as liquidator of 
the above named company by virtue of a 
shareholders’ resolution dated 23 January 
2018.

(ii) The commencement date of the liquidation 
is 23 January 2018.

(iii) Any inquiries by any debtors or creditors 
may be sent to me.

(iv) My contact details are as follows:

C/o SRA Partners
More Bheenick, 
Telfair, Moka 
Republic of Mauritius
Tel: (+230) 460 9000

Dated this 22 March 2018.

Shareef Ramjan 
Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 16/475191)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Prime India Investment Fund Ltd
(In Members ’ Voluntary Winding Up)

Notice is hereby given that on 28 February 
2018 a special resolution was passed, whereby 
Prime India Investment Fund Ltd would be wound 
up under Section 137(l)(b) of the Insolvency Act 
2009 and that Mr. Gowtamsing Dabee ACA FCCA 
Insolvency Practitioner of GD Riches Chartered 
Certified Accountants, 5th Floor, Green Cross 
Building, Belle Rose Quatre-Bomes, Mauritius be 
appointed as liquidator of Prime India Investment 
Fund Ltd.

Dated this 27th day of March 2018.

Apex Fund Services (Mauritius) Ltd.
Company Secretary 

(Rec No. 16/475270)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Georesources Exploration Ltd

(In Member’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The shareholder of Georesources Exploration 
Ltd (the “Company”) has passed the following 
special resolutions on 23 January 2018 in lieu 
of holding a special meeting in accordance with 
Section 117 of the Companies Act 2001:

1 That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under sections 139 to 141 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009;

2 That Mr Shareef Ramjan (FCCA) of the firm 
SRA PARTNERS (More Bheenick, Telfair, 
Moka) be appointed liquidator; and

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Prime. India Investment Fund Ltd
(‘the Company’)

(In Members Voluntary Winding Up)

Notice is hereby given that on 28 February 
2018 a special meeting was held, whereby it was 
resolved that the Company be wound up under 
Section 137 of the Insolvency Act 2009 and that

mailto:gdabee@gdriches.mu
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3 That the liquidator be and is hereby 
empowered to distribute to the Member, in 
specie or in kind, the whole or any part of the 
assets of the Company.

Dated this 22 March 2018.

Sunibel Corporate Services Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475191)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(6) 
OF THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Millernium Architects Mauritius Ltd
(the “Company”)

(In Members ’ Voluntary Winding Up)

Notice is hereby given that subsequent to a 
shareholder’s special resolution of the Company 
on 06 February 2017, the following resolutions 
were passed:

That the Company be wound up by way of 
member’s voluntarily under Section 137(l)(b)of 
the Insolvency Act 2009; and

That Mr. Nazeer Bhugaloo of 5th Floor City 
Centre Building, 31 Cnr La Corderie & Leoville 
L’homme Streets, Port Louis, Mauritius, be 
appointed as Liquidator who shall, subject to such 
limitations and restrictions as may be prescribed, 
have and may exercise all the functions and powers 
of a liquidator in a members’ winding up.

Date: 16 March 2018

SGG Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Ltd 

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475207)

Description of the property in receivership:

All the assets of the company including 
goodwill, movable and immovable property as 
well as on all or part of its properties which may 
from time to time belong to it and generally on all 
its properties of any kind and nature whatsoever 
and wheresoever both present and future (including 
land and buildings) which are subject to the 
following charges inscribed on the assets of the 
company:

Floating charge inscribed in Vol CH 
201709/001044.

All persons, companies, corporate bodies 
having in their possession any property of the said 
company are required to return forthwith all such 
properties to the Receiver/Manager. All debtors of 
the company are hereby informed that they should 
pay all sums due by them to the Receiver/Manager 
only and all payments shall only be valid if they 
have been signed by the Receiver/Manager or by 
his duly appointed representative(s).

All creditors and those who have any claim 
from the company are required to send in their 
full name(s), addresses and descriptions, full 
particulars and proof of their debts or claims to the 
Receiver/Manager.

The Receiver/Manager reserves the right, if so 
required, by written notice, requests the creditors 
to be personally present, to come and prove their 
debts or claims.

Notice is also given to any person who reckons 
that the company holds property belonging to 
him and/or property in which he has rights should 
submit his claim in ownership and/or right on or 
before , March 30, 2018 at 16.00 hrs latest.

Mr. Raj. D.Gangoosirdar 
Practitioner Ltd 
Registered Insolvency Practitioner 
Receiver/Manager
East Indiana Company Limited 
(In Receivership)

c/o Recovery & Insolvency 
20, Meldrum Street 

Curepipe 
Tel: 697-3156/Fax: 697-3154 

E-mail: raj.ripl@insolvency.mu 
(Rec. No. 16/475198)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 187 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

EAST INDIANA COMPANY LIMITED

(In Receivership)

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr. Raj Deokumar 
Gangoosirdar, having my Registered Office at 
c/o Recovery & Insolvency Practitioner Ltd, 20, 
Meldrum Street, Curepipe, have been appointed 
Receiver/Manager of East Indiana Company 
Limited on March 16, 2018 at 16hr00.

mailto:raj.ripl@insolvency.mu
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 287 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

A G Nabee & Co Limited (the ‘Company’)
Notice is hereby given that I, Mushtaq Oosman 

FCA of Level 9 Orange Tower, CyberCity, Ebene 
have been appointed as Administrator of A G 
Nabee & Co Limited (the ‘Company’) with effect 
as from 26 March 2018 at 9 a.m.

Notice is also given to any person, who believes 
that the Company holds property belonging to him 
or property in which he has rights, should submit 
his claim in writing to the Administrator with all 
supporting documents in respect of such ownership 
or right by 3 April 2018 at 4 p.m.

All persons, companies or corporate bodies 
having in their possession any property, document, 
books and records which belongs to the Company 
are requested to deliver them forthwith to the 
Administrator.

Further notice is given that all sums due to the 
Company should be payable to the Administrator 
and receipts for such payments shall only be valid 
if they bear the signature of the Administrator or 
his duly appointed representative/s.

All correspondences should be addressed to:

Mr Mushtaq Oosman, FCA

Administrator

c/o Level 9, Orange Tower

CyberCity

Ebene

Tel: + 230 403 6900/ Fax: +230 403 6910

Dated this 27 March 2018.
Mushtaq Oosman 

Administrator
(Rec. No. 16/475256)

and

In re: N.K.O Ladyfly Company Ltd
(In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has 
on 18th day of September, 2017 at 10.42 hours, 
ordered that the above-mentioned Company be 
wound up under the provisions of the Insolvency 
Act 2009 and that Ag. Official Receiver, be 
appointed Provisional Liquidator of the 
Company.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, One Cathedral 
Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, on 
Monday, 16th day of April, 2018 at 10.00 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 10.15 hours.

Notice is also given that in case creditors 
having any claim whatsoever against the said 
company and for that claim to be considered, a 
proof of debt verified by an affidavit in accordance 
with the Insolvency Act 2009 must be lodged with 
me not later than 10.00 hours on the 16th day of 
April, 2018.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to N.K.O Ladyfly Company Ltd are warned that 
they must deliver over same to me.

Dated : 21st March, 2018.
V. Virasami 

Ag. Official Receiver & 
Provisional Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 16/475252)

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION DEPARTMENT 
Insolvency Service

OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE
One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 

Tel. No.: 202 0600

In the matter of:-
My Ref: SC/COM/PET/01093/2017

The Insolvency Act
and

In re: Sefraco Ltd
(In Liquidation)

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION DEPARTMENT 
Insolvency Service

OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE
One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 

Tel. No.: 202 0600

In the matter of:~
My Ref: SC/COM/PET/00583/2017

The Insolvency Act
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Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has 
on 27th day of September, 2017 at 11.00 hours, 
ordered that the above-mentioned Company be 
wound up under the provisions of the Insolvency 
Act 2009 and that Ag. Official Receiver, be 
appointed Provisional Liquidator of the 
Company.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, One Cathedral 
Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, on 
Monday, 16th day of April, 2018 at 11.00 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 11.15 hours.

Notice is also given that in case creditors 
having any claim whatsoever against the said 
company and for that claim to be considered, a 
proof of debt verified by an affidavit in accordance 
with the Insolvency Act 2009 must be lodged with 
me not later than 11.00 hours on the 16th day of 
April, 2018.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to Sefraco Ltd are warned that they must deliver 
over same to me.

Dated : 21st March, 2018.

V. Virasami 
rt!g. Official Receiver & 
Provisional Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 16/475252) 

that the above-mentioned Company be wound up 
under the provisions of the Insolvency Act 2009 
and that Ag. Official Receiver, be appointed 
Provisional Liquidator of the Company.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, One Cathedral 
Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, on 
Monday, 16th day of April, 2018 at 10.30 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 10.45 hours.

Notice is also given that in case creditors 
having any claim whatsoever against the said 
company and for that claim to be considered, a 
proof of debt verified by an affidavit in accordance 
with the Insolvency Act 2009 must be lodged with 
me not later than 10.30 hours on the 16th day of 
April, 2018.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to Nandalec Company Ltd are warned that they 
must deliver over same to me.

Dated : 21st March, 2018.
V. Virasami 

rtg. Official Receiver & 
Provisional Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 16/475252)

Second and Last Publication

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Mauritius 
Gymkhana Club has applied to the Central Water 
Authority for a groundwater licence/renewal of 
a groundwater licence to use groundwater from 
BH No. 892 at Suffolk Road, Vacoas for non­
domestic purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the first 
licence/renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing to the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street,
Rose Hill

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION DEPARTMENT
Insolvency Service

OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE
One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 

Tel. No.: 202 0600

In the matter of:-
My Ref: SC/CGM/PET/001507/2016

The Insolvency Act
and

In re: Nandalec Company Ltd (In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has on 
6(h day of October, 2017 at 10.49 hours, ordered
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Dated 14th March 2018.
Club Manager 

Mauritius Gymkhana Club 
(Rec. No. 16/475152) Appl icant

First Publication

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that We, PRINCES 
TUNA MAURITIUS LIMITED, have applied 
to the Central Water Authority for the renewal 
of a ground water licence to use groundwater 
from borehole BH958 at Port-Louis for our fish 
processing plant.

Any person wishing to object to the renewal 
of the licence may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at: 
PRINCES TUNA MAURITIUS LIMITED, 
MARINE ROAD, PORT LOUIS

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

(Rec. No. 16/475255)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that We, Compagnie 
Mauricienne de Textile Ltee, have applied to 
the Central Water Authority for the renewal of a 
ground water licence to use ground water from 
borehole BH 526 and BH 526B at Les Casernes, 
Curepipe for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing to the Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3 rd Floor,
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street,
Rose Hill

(Rec. No. 16/475250)

NOTICE UNDER THE CADASTRAL 
SURVEY ACT 2011 SECTION 9(l)(a) & (b)

Notice is hereby given that, I, A.S. Calloo, Land 
Surveyor, shall at the request of Mr Mohammad 
Siddick Sahebally, Mrs Neezlabee Mungly and 
Mrs Bibi Nazli Sahebally proceed with the survey 
and fixing of boundary stones of three portions of 
land of the extent of [i] 46 Toises or 174.74 m2, 
[ii] 43 % Toises or 164.30 m2 and [iii] 29 Toises 
or 111.43 m2, situate in the district of Plaines- 
Wilhems, place called Beau-Bassin, Dumat Street 
and belonging to them as per T.V. 1618 No. 10.

The said survey will start on Saturday 14th day 
of April 2018 as at 9.30 hrs in the morning and-will 
continue on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties of the 
portion of land above referred to, are called upon 
to attend the survey on the aforesaid date and time 
and to produce to me or to any other Land Surveyor 
deputed by me in case of impediment, their 
relevant title deeds or any other document which 
will allow me to establish and fix the boundaries of 
the abovementioned property.

Under all legal reservations.

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that We, Sobail Ltee, 
have applied to the Central Water Authority for 
a ground water licence to use ground water from 
2 Boreholes at Pont Bruniquel, Tombeau Bay for 
industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the licence renewal may do so within 21 days 
from the publication of this notice by lodging the 
objection in writing within the Authority stating 
the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street,
Rose Hill

(Rec. No. 16/475210)



31 March 2018 1329

Dated at Highlands Road Phoenix, this 23rd day 
of March 2018.

A. S. CALLOO
Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 16/475268)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9 (1) (b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011
Notice is hereby given that I. P. G. Bruno 

DUMAZEL, Sworn Land Surveyor, shall at the 
request of Mr. Dewanan DHONDEA proceed 
with the survey and fixing of boundary stones of 
a portion of land, situated in the district of Moka, 
place called Montagne Blanche and belonging to 
him as per title deed transcribed in TV 1515/82.

The survey will be carried on Tuesday 17th 
April 2018 at llhOO a.m. and will continue on the 
following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties of the 
portion of land above referred to, are called upon 
to attend the survey on the aforesaid date and time 
and to produce to me or to any other Land Surveyor 
deputed by me in case of impediment, their 
relevant title deeds or any other document which 
will allow me to establish and fix the boundaries of 
the above-mentioned property.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 16th day of March 
2018.

P. G. Bruno DUMAZEL 
Sworn Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 16/475241)

Dated this 26th March 2018.

General Partner
(Rec. No. 16/475227)

NOTICE UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT
CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the private company 
Evaco Construction Ltd has by a special 
resolution passed on 13th March 2018 changed 
its name into FairStone Ltd as evidenced by a 
certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies 
on 22nd March 2018.

Dated this 28th March 2018.

Mrs. Sophie Gelle 
For Box Office Ltd

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475263)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 35(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Riqueza Capital 
Investments Limited a Category 1 Global 
Business Company, has by special resolution dated 
21 March 2018, changed its name to Six Sigma 
Ventures Limited in accordance with Section 36 
of the Companies Act 2001.

A certificate to that effect has been issued by the 
Registrar of Companies.

Date: 27 March 2018.

Sphere Management (Mauritius) Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475258)

NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
36 (2) (c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company 
SANTAYAREA BY BEACHCOMBER LIMITED 
has by a special resolution changed its name 
into SANTAYAREA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Incorporation on 
Change of Name given under the hand and seal 
of office of the Registrar of Companies dated 20 
February 2018.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 55 (3) OF THE 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that the General Partner 
and Limited Partner of “Oxbridge Technology 
and Innovations Fund LP”, a limited partnership 
set-up in Mauritius having its registered office at IFS 
Court, Bank Street, TwentyEight, Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Republic of Mauritius (the “LP”), have, 
pursuant to a unanimous partners agreement dated 
14 March 2018, approved the dissolution of the 
LP in accordance with Section 55(l)(d) of the 
Limited Partnerships Act 2011 with effect as of 
3 April 2018.
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This 1st day of March 2018.

ENL Limited 
(Rec. No. 16/475202) Company Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36 (2) (c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the private company 
“The Perennial Foods Group” has, by way of a 
special resolution of its shareholders, changed its 
name to “The Perennial Foods Group Ltd” as 
evidenced by a certificate issued under the hand 
and seal of the Registrar of Companies on 20 
March 2018.

Date: 22 March 2018.

AAA Global Services Ltd
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 16/475213)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company ETA 
ENGINEERING & ELEVATOR COMPANY 
LTD has by a special resolution changed its name 
to AG MELCO ELEVATOR (MAURITIUS) 
COMPANY LIMITED as evidenced by a 
certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies 
on the 22nd March 2018.

Dated this 23rd March 2018.
L.S. CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475218)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that V-Cube Offshore 
Services Limited has by shareholders resolution 
passed on the 15 th March 2018 changed its name to 
Dolphin Management Services Ltd as evidenced 
by the certificate of Incorporation on change of 
name issued by the Registrar of Companies on the 
22nd March 2018.

Dated at Quatre Bornes, Mauritius this 28th 
March 2018.-

V-Cube Offshore Services Limited
Director 

(Rec. No. 16/475238)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “UIL Holding” has 
by a special resolution passed on 21st November 
2017 changed its name into that of “AX Holding” 
as evidenced by a certificate issued by the Registrar 
of Companies on 14th February 2018.

Dated this 14th day of March 2018.

NWT(Mauritius) Limited
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475219)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Effective 
Infrastructure Management Ltd” has changed 
its name by way of Special Resolution, and is 
now incorporated under the name of “Effective 
Distribution Management Ltd” with effect from 
20th March 2018.

Dated: 21.03.2018.

For and on behalf of 
Virtual Secretaries Limited

Corporate Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475192)

NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
62 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that a resolution for the 
reduction of the stated capital of the company,

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“FWM Secretarial Services Limited” has by 
way of a special resolution changed its name to 
“NWT Secretarial Services Ltd” as evidenced by 
the certificate given under the hand and seal of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 19th March 2018.

Dated this 20th day of March 2018.

FWM Secretarial Services Limited
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475229)
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MDA Offices Limited, from Rs 478,421,298 
to Rs 207,782,873 will be proposed to the 
shareholders of the company.

Dated this 6th day of February 2018.

By order of the Board 
ENL Limited

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475245)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 62(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that TRIOLET 
AUTOMOBILE TRADING ENTERPRISE 
LTD, a domestic company limited by shares, 
having its registered office at 20 Pieds Road, 
Triolet, and having company number Cl02344 
(the “Company”) is proposing to reduce the stated 
capital of the Company by 43,764,600 Mauritian 
Rupees. The resolution to reduce the stated capital 
shall be passed after thirty days from the date of 
publication of the present notice.

Details of the proposed reduction of stated 
capital are as follows:

Details Amount in 
MUR

Stated Capital of 
the Company before 
reduction

328,228 Ordinary
Shares

65,645,600

Amount of the 
reductions

218,823 Ordinary 
Shares

43,764,600

Stated Capital after 
reduction

109,405 Ordinary
Shares

21,881,000

Dated: 26 March, 2018.

By Order of the Board

TRIOLET AUTOMOBILE TRADING 
ENTERPRISE LTD

(Rec. No. 16/475240)

72201, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies to be removed from the Register of 
Companies under the provisions of Section 302 of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
intends not later than 28 days from the date of 
publication of this notice to apply for the removal 
from the Register for the purpose of becoming 
incorporated under the laws in force in the Republic 
of Seychelles.

Dated this 19th day of March 2018.

Dale Corporate Services Limited
Corporate Director 

(Rec. No. 16/475195)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Ashford Taylor 
Consulting Limited (“the Company”), a Category 
2 Global Business Licence and having its registered 
office at 6th Floor, Dias Pier Building, Le Caudan 
Waterfront, Caudan, Port Louis, Mauritius is on 
this 05th January 2018 applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for removal of the Company from the 
Register under Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest the 05th day of February 2018.

Dated this 05th January 2018.

Frontiere Finance Ltd
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 16/475231)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309(l)(d) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Tarbert Holdings 
Limited (“the Company”) incorporated as a 
Global Business Company Category 2 and 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that LUCEO Corp., 
a Category 2 Gobal Business Licence (“the 
Company”) and having its Registered Office 
at C/o Dale International Trust Company 
Limited, 3rd Floor, Tower A, 1 Cybercity, Ebene
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having its registered office at 6th Floor, Dias Pier 
Building, Le Caudan Waterfront, Caudan, Port 
Louis, Mauritius has on the 13th of March 2018 
applied to the Registrar of Companies for removal 
of the Company from the Register under Section 
309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest the 23rd day of April 2018.

Dated this 23rd March 2018.

Frontiere Finance Ltd
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475230)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“CREATIVE SLABROC LTD”, having 
its registered office at 421, Avenue Tulipes, 
Montreal 2, Coromandel is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

“The Company has never had any trading 
activities since its incorporation and has no 
intention to carry on any business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all known creditors and 
has distributed its assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001

That any objection to the removal shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies within 28 
days from date of this notice.

Date: 22nd March 2018.
Guitary Lacour 

Director
Lacour Myrielle Jacqueline 

(Rec. No. 16/475248) Director

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Bellefon Brunot 
Designs Ltd (“the Company”) holding a Domestic 
Licence and having its Registered Office at 
Level 10, Tower I, NeXTeracom Building, Ebene, 
Republic of Mauritius is on this 26th day of March 
2018 applying to the Registrar of Companies for 
removal from the Register under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of publication 
of this notice.

Dated this 26th day of March 2018.

Vuna Capital Trustees (Mauritius) Ltd 
(Rec. No. 16/475271) Registered Agent

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001
SURE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(the "Company”)

Notice is hereby given

(1) That the above Company holding a Category 
2 Global Business Licence and having its 
registered office at Rogers Capital Corporate 
Services Limited, St Louis Business Centre, 
Cnr Desroches & St Louis Streets, Port Louis, 
Mauritius is to be removed from the register 
of companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

(2) That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and 
the Companies Act 2001.

(3) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not less than 28 days after the 
date of the notice, at latest by 12 April 2018.

Date: 15 March 2018.

Rogers-Capital Corporate Services Limited 
Registered Agent 

7ec. No. 16/475259)
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NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF THE 
COMPANY UNDER SECTION 311 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT 2001
Notice is hereby given that the Company 

“Vectis Holdings Ltd” a Global Business Category 
Two company having its registered office at C/o 
MATCO LIMITED, IIth Floor, NeXTeracom 
Building, Tower 1, Ebene Cybercity, Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for its 
removal from the Register under Section 309(l)(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

* Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 
should be delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this: 26th March 2018.

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 16/475262)

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF THE 
COMPANY UNDER SECTION 311 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“Unified Portfolio International” a Global 
Business Category Two company having its 
registered office at C/o MATCO LIMITED, 11th 
Floor, NeXTeracom Building, Tower 1, Ebene 
Cybercity, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for its removal from the Register under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 
should be delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this: 26th March 2018.

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 16/475211)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 (2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In the matter of:

GARDENIA AGRIPHARMA LTD

Notice, is hereby given that GARDENIA 
AGRIPHARMA LTD (the “Company”) situated 
at C/o of Socota Phoenicia Business Park, Sayed 
Hossen Road, Solferino, Phoenix Mauritius, 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for 
removal from the Register of Companies, under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001 
on the ground that the Company has remained 
dormant since its inception.

Objections or claims if any should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 
days of the date of this notice.

Dated this 19th March 2018.

SGG Corporate Services (Mauritius) Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475209)

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF THE 
COMPANY UNDER SECTION 311 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT 2001
Notice is hereby given that the Company 

“Uniseed Ltd” a Global Business Category 
Two Company having its registered office at C/o 
MATCO LIMITED, 11th Floor, NeXTeracom 
Building, Tower 1, Ebene Cybercity, Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for its 
removal from the Register under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 
should be delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this: 26th March 2018.

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 16/475211)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 (2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
MKH Holdings, having its registered office at 
c/o Imara Trust Company (Mauritius) Limited, 
Level 2, Alexander House, Silicon Avenue, 
Ebene Cybercity 72201, Republic of Mauritius, 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies, for its 
removal from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased its activities, 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Objections to the removal if any should be filed 
with the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 
days from the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 23rd March 2018.

Imara Trust Company (Mauritius) Limited 
Company Secretary/Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 16/475212)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:

That BCG HOLDINGS LTD, a Domestic 
Company, having its Registered Office at C/o DN 
Partners Ltd, 32 Eugene Laurent Street, Port Louis 
is to be removed from the Register of Companies 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days after 
the date of this notice.

Date: 27/03/2018.

Director
(Rec. No. 16/475214)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:

That CROZAT LIMITED (the “Company”), 
a Category 1 Global Business Licence Company, 
having its registered office at Suites 340-345, 
Barkly Wharf, Le Caudan Waterfront, P.O. Box 
1070, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies 
in accordance with Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered 
to the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 
days after the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 22 March 2018.

AAMIL (Mauritius) Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475216)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “ SGCS Overseas”, 
a Category 1 Global Business Licence Company 
of 9th Floor, Standard Chartered Tower, 19 
Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies for its removal from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001 on the grounds that 
the company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice, at latest by 24th April 2018.

Dated this 27th day of March 2018.

Knights & Johns Management Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475217)



31 March 2018 1335

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “SHORELCO 
(MAURITIUS) LTD” holding a Category 2 Global 
Business Licence and having its Registered Office 
at Level 2, Max City Building, Remy Ollier Street, 
Port Louis, Mauritius, is on this 22nd day of March 
2018 applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309 of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest 22nd day of April 2018.

Date: 22nd March 2018.

OCRA (Mauritius) Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 16/475192)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that EGGER 
(MAURITIUS) LTD a domestic company, having 
its registered office at 29, Meldrum Street, Beau 
Bassin is applying to the Registrar of Companies 
for the removal of the Company from the Register 
in accordance with the Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its constitution/ Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice.

Dated this 15 March 2018.

Mr Luc Mario Alain Captieux 
Director

(Rec. 16/475200)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ASTRA GROUND 
SERVICES LTD a domestic company, having its 
registered office at Royal Road, La Grotte, Plaines 
Maignen is applying to the Registrar of Companies 
for the removal of the Company from the Register 
in accordance with the Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its constitution/ Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice. .

Dated this 15 March 2018.

Mr Jean Yves Christian Cherubin 
Director

(Rec. 16/475200)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In the matter of:

Coleburn Investments Limited
Notice is hereby given that “Coleburn 

Investments Limited” of Les Cascades, Edith 
Cavell Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for 
removal from the Register of Companies, under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on 
the ground that:—

“The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.”

Objections or claims if any should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 
days of the date of this notice.

Dated this 23 March 2018.

SGG Fund Services(Mauritius) Ltd 
(Rec. 16/475208) Company Secretary
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that FAB MARLIN 
LTD a domestic company, having its registered 
office at Avenue Bounty, Morcellement Raffray, 
Albion is applying to the Registrar of Companies 
for the removal of the Company from the Register 
in accordance with the Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its constitution/ Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice.

Dated this 15 March 2018.

Mr Alain Fabrice NAYNA 
Director

(Rec. 16/475200)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “EVENT PARK 
LTD” (Company number Cl34390), a domestic 
company having its Registered Office at More 
Bheenick, Telfair, Moka, Mauritius, is applying to 
the Registrar of Companies for its removal from 
the Register of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
ceases to trade, has discharged in full its liabilities 
to all its known creditors, and has distributed its 
surplus assets in accordance with its constitution 
and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
within 28 days of this notice.

Dated 20 March 2018.

Mr. Ramjan Shareef 
Director

(Rec. No. 16/475191)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Clarastone Ltd a 
domestic company having its registered office at C/o 
KBA INVESTMENT LTD, 68, d’Entrecasteaux 
Street Port Louis is to be removed from the 
Registrar of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice.

Dated this 31st March 2018.

Director

(Rec. No. 16/475239)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that J. BOB 
DEVELOPMENT CO LTD a domestic company, 
having its registered office at Appt No. 15 
Cascadella Court, Beau Bassin is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies for the removal of the 
Company from the Register in accordance with the 
Section 309(l)(d)(i) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its constitution/ Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice.

Dated this 15 March 2018.

Mr Jean Robert Emmanuel Latour
Director

(Rec. 16/475200)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “ECOSUR 
AFRIQUE”, a Category 1 Global Business 
Licence Company of 9th Floor, Standard Chartered 
Tower, 19 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is applying 
to the Registrar of Companies for its removal 
from the Register of Companies under Section 
309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on the 
grounds that the company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice, at latest by 16th April 2018.

Dated this 20th day of March 2018.

Interface International Ltd
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475261)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(4) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Verdant 
International Ltd (the “Company”), holding a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence and having 
its Registered Office at C/o Trustlink International 
Limited, Suite 501, St. James Court, St. Denis 
Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001. Notice is hereby also 
given that the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001. 
The Company has no charges inscribed against 
them.

Objection, if any, should be made in writing to 
the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days 
from date of this notice.

Dated this 29th day of March 2018.

TRUSTLINK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 16/475244)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(4) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that BUDGET PET 
CARE LTD (the “Company”), holding a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence and having 
its Registered Office at C/o Trustlink International 
Limited, Suite 501, St. James Court, St. Denis 
Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001. Notice is hereby also 
given that the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001. 
The Company has no charges inscribed against 
them.

Objection, if any, should be made in writing to 
the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days 
from date of this notice.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

(‘the Act’)

Notice is hereby given that Guardian Africa 
Logistics (‘the Company’), having its Registered 
Office at c/o GFin Corporate Services Ltd, Level 6, 
GFin Tower, 42 Hotel Street, Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Mauritius is applying to be removed from 
the Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Act.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Act.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Act is to be made in 
writing to the Registrar of Companies by latest 
28 days from the date of this publication.

Dated: March 26, 2018.

GFin Corporate Services Ltd 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475251)
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Dated this 29th day of March 2018.

TRUSTLINK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 16/475244)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Devesh BISSESSUR of Bissessur Lane, 
Pont Colville, Nouvelle France has applied to 
the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Retailer 
of liquor and alcoholic products (Restaurant) in 
respect of premises situated at Ex Main Road, 
Rampe Le Moirt, Mare D’Albert.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

(Rec. No. 16/475224)

Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.
(Rec. No. 16/475221)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

VINJTA Distributing Marketing Ltd of 16A, 
Vingta Lane III, Solferino, Vacoas has applied to 
the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Dealer 
of liquor and alcoholic products - (wholesale) 
in respect of premises situated at 1st Floor, 16A, 
Vingta Lane III, Solferino, Vacoas.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette. 
(Rec. No. 16/475222)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Pratima Devi Moorghen of Pere Glorieux St, 
Grand Gaube have applied to the Director General 
of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue 
of a new licence of Retailer of liquor and alcoholic 
products (off) in respect of premises situated at 
Pere Glorieux St, Grand Gaube.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette. 
(Rec. No. 16/475275)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

Bacchanale Ltd of Ex-Medine Sub Office, 
Royal Road, Beau Songes has applied to the 
Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Retailer 
of liquor and alcoholic products - (off) in respect 
of premises situated at Cnr Emile Sauzier & Sir 
Virgil Naz Streets, Curepipe.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur



BANK OF CHINA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Loss for the vear/period

(ArrtountinUSD) ... 2017.

Interest income 850,652 314,311

Interest expense (8,480)

Net interest income 842,172 314,311

Fee and commission income 15,596

Fee and commission expense (5,526) (9,500)

Net fee and commission 10,070 (9,500)

Foreign exchange difference (26,839) 70,446

Other operating income (26,839) 70,446

Total operating income 825,403 375,257

Impairment loss on financial assets (275,455)

Personnel expenses (1,920,883) (575,055)

Operating lease expenses (306,677) (122,761)

Depreciation (304,623) (100,032)

Other operating expenses (613,650) (785,065)

Total operating expenses (3,145,833) (1,582,913)

Loss before income tax (2,595,885) (1,207,656)

Income tax expense_______________________________ (294,913) 195,935

(2,890,798) 11.011.721)



BANK OF CHINA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from banks

Loan and advances to customers

Other assets

Furniture and equipment 

Deferred tax

19305,904

88,602

54,862,675

167,780

785,599

3,016,584

45,314,311

96,723

937,028

195,935

Total assets 75,710,560 49,560,586

LIABILITIES

Customer deposits

Current tax liabilities

Other liabilities

28,862,882

91,256

658,941 572,307

Total liabilities 29,613,079 572,307

EQUITY

Share capital

Accumulated losses
50,000,000

(3,902,519)

50,000,000

(1,011,721)

Total equity 46,097,481 48,988,279

Total equity and liabilities 75,710,560 49,560,586



BANK OF CHINA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loss for the year/period
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Income tax expense
Impairment loss on financial assets 
Exchange differences

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease/ (inc. ?ase) in medium term placements with other banks 
increase in loan and advances to customers 
increase in other assets
Increase in customer deposits 
increase in other liabilities 

Cash flows from financing activities

income tax paid ________ _____________________ ..
Net cash from/fused tn J operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of furniture and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities __  ___ _______



(153,194) (1,037,060)

{2,890,798} (1,011,721)

304,623 100,032
294,913 (195,935)
275,455

(3,346)  (128)
(2,019,153) (1,107,752)

45,225,709 (45,314,311)
(55,133,130) -

(71,052} (96,728)
28,862,882 -

86,634 572,307
16,946,890 (45,946,484)

(7,722) -
16,939,168 (45,946,484)

(153,194) (1,037,060)



BANK OF CHINA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
Statement of Changes In Equity 

For the year ended 31 December 2017
&

Accumulated

As at 13 January 2016 (date of incorporation)
Issue of share capital
Total comprehensive income

50,000,000

* flosses.'**

__(1,011,721)
50,000,000
(1,011,721)

As at 31 December 2016 50,000,000 (1,011,721) 48,988,279
Total comprehensive income - (2,89(',7?B) (2,890,798)
As at 31 December 2017 50,000,000 (3,902,519) *6,097,481

S
5
re 
3

§

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF CHINA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

Opinion

In our opinion, the summary financial statements derived from the audited financial 
statements of Bank of China (Mauritius) Limited for the year ended 31 December 2017 are 
consistent, in all material respects, with those financial statements, in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001, the 
Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004.

Summary Financial Statements

The accompanying summary financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2017, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
are derived from the audited financial statements of Bank of China (Mauritius) Limited (the



BANK OF CHINA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Management's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance 
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the 
Banking Act 2004.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the summary financial statements based on our 
procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing 
(ISA) 810 (Revised), "Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements."

Other matter

This report has been prepared solely for the Bank's members, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001.

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's members those 
matters we are required to state to the latter in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Bank and the Bank's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Bank other than in our capacities as auditors 
and in dealings in the ordinary course of business.
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.



© 'f (31WBANK OF CHINA (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
consistent with the requirements of the Code. In our opinion, the disclosures in the Corporate 
Governance report are consistent with the requirements of the Code.

ERNST & YOUNG
Ebene,
Mauritius

THIERRY LEUNG HING WAH, F.C.C.A.
Licensed by FRC

23 March 2018
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HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Summary statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net trading income

Other operating income
Total operating income

Net reversal of impairment/fimpairment loss) on financial assets

Personnel expenses
Operating lease expenses
Depreciation
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities
Related tax

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Net change in fair value

Total comprehensive income for the year

2017 2016 2015
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000

63,078 52,630 44,968
(15,338) (9.992) (3,266)
47,740 42,638 41,702

: '-'1^ •

/ 6,406 10,256 14,236
(582) (828) (4,783)
5,824 9,428 9,453

- ' 2.860 • 3.595 3,958
56,424 55,661 55,113

c ' *
r \ . 650 744 749
'« 57.074 56.405 55.862

, 17 29 (774)
. *T  •

J (3,202) (3,064) (2.705)
, , (151) (125) (136)

■■ ‘ ' (32) (38) (13)
(10,845) (10,179) (8,830)
(14,230) (13,406) (11,684)

i 42,861 43,028 43,404

* r?
(1,904) (1.852) (1.900)

;• 40,957 41,176 41,504

(529) (304) 36
14 9 3

1515) (295) 39

(156) - -
(671) (295) 39

40.286 40,881 41,543
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HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Summary statement of financial position at 31 December 2017

2017 2016 2015

ASSETS
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,635,210 421,405 376,826
Trading assets J 20 920 1,314
Loans and advances to banks 531,831 1.395,481 999,122
Loans and advances to customers 1,750,583 1,613,678 1,645,791
Investment securities 298,499 - -
Equipment 44 52 32
Deferred tax assets ;>. ? • - 67 55 46
Other assets 29,893 14,014 15,336

.ii'

Total assets 4,246,247 3.445,605 3,038,467

LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 3,120,937 2,162,790 2,557,350
Trading liabilities 629 137 256
Other borrowed funds 783,201 946,560 117,691
Current tax liabilities 815 786 818
Other liabilities 17,067 22,016 13,423

Total liabilities fc' 3,922,649 3,132,289 2,689,538

Shareholder's equity
Stated capital 72,957 72,957 72,957
Retained earnings 156,818 140,103 177.280
Other reserves < - . 93,823 100,256 98,692

Total equity attributable to equity holder 323,598 313,316 348,929

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 4,246,247 3,445,605 3,038,467

Approved by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Matthew Lobner
Chairman

Dean Lam Kin Teng
Managing Director

Lukas Mandangu
Director
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HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Summary Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Stated 
capital

Retained 

earnings
Statutory 

reserve

General banking

reserve

Reserves for 
own shares

Fair value 

reserve
Total Equity

USD’000 USD'000 USD’000 USD’000 USD'000 USD’000 USD’000
Balance at 1 January 2015 72,957 182,280 72,957 27,135 53 - 355,382

Profit for the year 41,504 - - 41,504
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities (49) - - (49)
Exchange difference on remeasurements of 
defined benefit liabilities 85 - - - 85
Tax on other comprehensive income 3 - 3
Total other comprehensive income for the year 39 - - - 39
Total comprehensive income for the year 41,543 - - 41,543
Transactions with owner of the Bank
Dividends paid (48,000) - - - (48,000)
Exchange difference 5 - - (1) - 4
Transactions with owner of the Bank (47,995) - - (1) - (47,996)
Transfer from general banking reserve 1,452 - (1,452) -
Balance at 31 December 2015 72.957 177,280 72,957 25,683 52 - 348.929
Profit for the year 41,176 - - - 41,176
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities (313) - (313)
Exchange difference on remeasurements of
defined benefit liabilities - 9 ■ -
Tax on other comprehensive income 9 - - - 9
Total other comprehensive income for the year (295) - - - (295)
Total comprehensive income for the year 40,881 - - - 40,881
Transactions with owner of the Bank
Dividends paid (76,500) - - - (76,500)
Exchange difference 13 - (7) 6
Transactions with owner of the Bank (76,487) - - (7) (76.494)
Transfer to general banking reserve (1,571) - 1,571 -
Balance at 31 December 2016 72,957 * ! 140,103 72,957 27,254 45 313,316
Profit for the year 40,957 - - - 40,957
Other comprehensive income'\
Net change in fair value (156). (156)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities 
Exchange difference on remeasurements of - (462) - - - - (462)
defined benefit liabilities (67) - - ■ - ■ (67)
Tax on other comprehensive income 14 - - - 14
Total other comprehensive income for the year (515) - - (156) (671)
Total comprehensive income for the year 40,442 (156) 40,286
Transactions with owner of the Bank
Dividends paid (30,000) - - - (30,000)
Exchange difference 2 - - (6) ♦ (4)
Transactions with owner of the Bank (29,998) - - (6) (30.004)
Transfer from general banking reserve 6,271 - (6,271) -
Balance at 31 December 2017 72,957 156,818 72,957 20,983 39 (156) 323,598
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HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Summary Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
USD'000

2016
USD’000

2015
USD’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 42,861 43,028 43,404

Adjustments for:
Depreciation 32 38 13
Loss on sale of equipment 3 - 2
Net (reversal of impairment)/impairment loss on financial assets (17) (29) 774
Net interest income (47,740) (42,638) (41.702)
Exchange differences in respect of cash and cash equivalents 5,297 2,226 17,970

436 2,625 20,461
Change in: • >
Other assets (16,641) “ 3,494 9,999
Other liabilities (4,709) 6,678 (16,661)
Trading assets 800 394 21,288
Trading liabilities ■ 492 (119) (3,038)
Loans and advances to banks 863,650- - 4 (396,359) 301,160
Loans and advances to customers (136,888) 32,142 1.066,964
Deposits from banks < - (184)
Deposits from customers 958,147 (394,560) (72,821)
Interest received 63,490 50,458 47,084
Interest paid (16,111) (8,375) (3,657)
Other borrowed funds (166,230) 930,522 (214)

1,546,436 226,900 1,370,381
Income tax paid {1,873) (1,884) (2,002)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 1,544,563 225,016 1,368,379

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of equipment (27) (58) (14)
Proceeds from the sale of equipment - 1
Net investment in securities (298,305) - -
Net cash used in investing activities (298,332) (58) (13)

Cash flows from financing activities
*

Dividends paid (30,000) (76,500) (48,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (30,000) (76,500) (48,000)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,216,231 148,458 1,320,366
Cash and cash equivalents at 01 January 421,405 275,173 (1,027,223)
Exchange differences in respect of cash and cash equivalents (5,297) (2,226) (17,970)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,632,339 421,405 275,173
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HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholder of

HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Report on the Summary Financial Statements

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited (the "Bank") are 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements, on the basis described in note 1.

The summary financial statements

The Bank's summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2017 comprise:

• the summary statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;
• the summary statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the related notes to the summary financial statements.

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting 
Standards. Reading the summary financial statements and auditor’s report thereon, therefore, is not a substitute for 
reading the audited financial statements and the auditor's report thereon.

The Audited Financial Statements and our Audit Report thereon

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 14 March 2018.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Summary Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements on the basis described in note 1.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are consistent, in all material 
respects, with the audited financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with 
International Standard on Auditing 810 (Revised), ’Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements'.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Michael Ho Wan Kau, licensed by FRC

14 March 2018

Mote 1The accompanying summary financial statements are derived from the audited financial statements of HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited (the "Bank") for the • year ended 31 December 2017. These audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, are available at HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited. 6th floor. HSBC Tower. 18 Cybercity, Ebene, Reduit 72201. The summary financial statements comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 as presented in the audited financial statements for that period without reference to the detailed notes.

Issued by HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited in March 2018 



31 March 2018 1347

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - Mauritius Branch

Summary statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
MUR'000

2016
MUR'000

2015
MUR'000

Interest income 789,429 838,046 814,987
interest expense (211,945) (236,936) (257,351)
Net interest income 577,484 601,110 557,636

Fee and commission income 188,458 193,193 209,589
Fee and commission expense (43,325) (33,154) (33,677)
Net fee and commission income 145,133 160,039 175,912

Net trading income 173,088 168,202 194,350
■

895,705 929,351 927,898

Other operating income 320,937 301,122 284,857

Total operating income 1,216,642 1,230,473 1,212,755

Net impairment loss on financial assets (4,853) (15,556) (18,045)

Personnel expenses (363,021) (346,258) (361,609)
Operating lease expenses (45,398) (40,995) (46,669)
Depreciation (11,402) (12,029) (14,809)
Other expenses (484,918) (506.013) (519,509)
Total expenses (904,739) (905,295) (942,596)

Profit before income tax 307,050 309,622 252,114
Income tax expense (86,883) (85,455) (57,397)
Profit for the year 220,167 224,167 194,717

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities (112,584) (84,691) (7,754)
Related tax on remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities 48,978 12,704 1,163
Gain / (Loss) on revaluation of land and buildings 15,442 (28.711) 1,790
Related tax on gain on revaluation of land and buildings (1,274) 2,788 (77)

(49,438) (97,910) (4,878)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Net change in fair value of available for sale financial assets 953 106,233 (78,038)

________ 953 106,233 (78,038) }
Other comprehensive income for the year (48,485) 8,323 (82,916) > ‘
Total comprehensive income for the year 171,682 232,490 111,801 1 ? 
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - Mauritius Branch

Summary statement of financial position at 31 December 2017

2017
MUR'000

2016
MUR'000

2015
MUR'000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4,392,528 3,509,555 4,560.602
Trading assets 800 694 225,613
Loans and advances to banks 604,380 563,557 307.595
Loans and advances to customers 13,004,031 12,404,036 13,603.659
Investment securities 6,175,741 5,705,028 4,864,108
Other assets 1,924,534 2,060,873 1,973,128
Property, plant and equipment 248,766 233,996 266,243
Deferred tax assets 89.067 53,014 36,308

Total assets 26,439,847 24,530.753 25,837,256

LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 268,725 188,531 650,082
Deposits from customers 19,718,435 19,542.948 20,498,350
Trading liabilities 9,443 6,400 1,527
Other borrowed funds 2,887,037 1,264,409 1.426,619
Current tax liabilities 47,003 54,846 45,203
Other liabilities 1,120,718 1,251,509 1,128,971

Total liabilities 24,051,361 22,308,643 23,750,752

Shareholder's funds
Assigned capital 239,265 239,265 239,265
Retained earnings 1,516,703 1,368.257 1,305,057
Other reserves 632.518 614,588 542,182

Total shareholder's funds 2,388,486 2,222,110 2,086.504

Total liabilities and shareholder's funds 26,439,847 24,530,753 25.837,256

Approved on 26 March 2018

Christopher Jonathan Kyle Murray Lukas Mandangu
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - Mauritius Branch

Summary Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Assigned capital
MUR'000

Other Reserves
Retained earnings

Reserves for own shares
Revaluation reserves Statutoryreserve

General banking reserve
Fair value reserve Total

MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR'000
Balance at 01 January 2015 239,265 1,121,831 24,899 233,704 243,185 125.756 (13.751) 1,974.889
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

- 194,717 194,717

Net change in fair value (78,038) (78,038)Realisation of revaluation reserve to retained earnings 26,262 (26,262)Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities (7,754) (7.754)
Revaluation of properties 1.790 1,790
Tax on other comprehensive income 1,163 (77) 1,086
Total other comprehensive income 19.671 (24,549) (78,038) (82,916)
Total comprehensive »ncome 214,388 - (24,549) (78,038) 111,801
Transactions with owners of the Bank
Other movements during the period 899 3.161 4,060Net change in fair value of share-based payment habilitiv (4,246) (4.246)
Transactions with owners of the Bank 899 (1,085) - (186)Transfer (from)/to general banking reserve - (32,061) 32,061
Balance at 31 December 2015 239,265 1,305,057 23,814 209.155 243,185 157,817 (91.789) 2,086,504
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year 224,167 224,167
Other comprehensive income
Net change in fair value - 106,233 106,233
Realisation of revaluation reserve to retained earnings 1,277 (1,277)Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities (84,691) (84,691)
Revaluation of properties (28,711) (28,711)
Tax on other comprehensive income - 12,704 2,788 15.492
Total other comprehensive income (70,710) - (27,200) 106,233 8,323
Total comprehensive income 153,457 (27,200) 106,233 232,490
Transactions with owners of the Bank
Other movements during the period 
Net change in fair value of share-based 1,608 2,157 3,765

(3.249)payment liability (3,249)
Profit remittance to Head office (97,400) (97,400)
Transactions with owners of the Bank (95,792) (1,092) (96,884)
Transfer (from)/to general banking reserve 5,535 (5,535)
Balance at 31 December 2016 239,265 1,368,257 22,722 181.955 243,185 152,282 14,444 2,222,110
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - 220,167 - - 220,167
Other comprehensive income
Net change in fair value 953 953Realisation of revaluation reserve to retained earnings 929 (929) -
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities - (112,584} (112,584)
Revaluation of properties - 15,442 15,442
Tax on other comprehensive income - 48,978 (1,274) - 47,704
Total other comprehensive income - (62,677) 13,239 953 (48,485)
Total comprehensive income - 157,490 13,239 - 953 171,682
Transactions with owners of the Bank
Other movements during the period (4,713) 1,241 139 (3,333)
Net change in fair value of share-based payment liability - (1,973) (1,973)
Transactions with owners of the Bank (4,713) (732) 139 (5,306)
Transfer (from)/to general banking reserve - (4,331) - 4,331
Balance at 31 December 2017 239,265 1,516,703 21,990 195,333 243.185 156,613 15,397 2,388,486 
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - Mauritius Branch

Summary Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
MUR'000

2016
MUR’000

2015
MUR'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 307,050 309.622 252,114

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Profit on sales of equity securities
Provision and adjustments to income for impairment losses
Net interest income
Exchange differences in respect of cash & cash equivalents

Change in:
Other assets
Other liabilities
Trading assets
Trading liabilities
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to banks
Deposits from customers
Deposits from banks
Interest received
Interest paid
Other borrowed funds

Tax paid
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale
Net investment in securities
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repatriation of profit

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Exchange differences in respect of cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

11,402
370

12,029
1

14,809
911

(2,967) 9,115 8,940
(577,484) (601,110) (557,636)
120,401 28,243 (170,204)

(141,228) (242,100) (451,066)

135,613 (84,464) (287,922)
(237,434) 54,717 197,991

(106) 224,919 281,907
3,043 4,873 (2,057)

(597,028) 1,190,508 (1,424,564)
(40,823) (255,962) 4,115
175,487 (955,402) 1,912,417
80,194 (461,551) (155,469)

790,155 834,765 817,943
(218,894) (253,099) (265,333)

- (1,326,820) 1,326,820
(51,021) (1,269,616) 1,954,782

(87,373) (77,219) (89,373)
(138,394) (1,346,835) 1.865,409

(11,100) (8,542) (5,384)
- 50 270
- 26,040

(469,760) (734,687) (35,506)
(480,860) (743,179) (14,580)

- (97,400) -
- (97,400) -

(619,254) (2,187,414) 1,850,829
2.245,146 4,460,803 2,439,770
(120,401) (28,243) 170,204
1,505,491 2.245,146 4,460,803
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - Mauritius Branch

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Directors of

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Report on the Summary Financial Statements

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation 
Limited - Mauritius Branch (the "Bank") are consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements, on 
the basis described in note 1.

The summary financial statements

The Bank's summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2017 comprise:

• the summary statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;
• the summary statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the related notes to the summary financial statements.
The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting 
Standards. Reading the summary financial statements and auditor's report thereon, therefore, is not a substitute for 
reading the audited financial statements and the auditor's report thereon.

The Audited Financial Statements and our Audit Report thereon

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 26 March 2018.

Responsibilities of Management for the Summary Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements on the basis described in note 1.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statement

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are consistent, in all material 
respects, with the audited financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with 
International Standard on Auditing 810 (Revised), ‘Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements'.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Michael Ho Wan Kau, licensed by FRC

26 March 2018

Note 1 {The accompanying summary financial statements are derived from the audited financial statements of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation k- Mauritius Branch (the "Bank") for the year ended 31 December 2017. These audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, are available from the regulatory authorities. The summary financial statements comprise the statement of financial Kposition as at 31 December 2017 and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 31 y?December 2017 aS presented in the audited financial statements for that period without reference to the detailed notes.
£K*

Issued by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation - Mauritius Branch in March 2018. H
hsbc

(Rec. No. 16/475269)
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BARCLAYS BANK MAURITIUS LIMITED
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016 2015
Rs’m Rs’m Rs'm

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Banks 37,967 48,448 60.977
Trading assets 881 1.025 1,989
Derivative financial assets 69 36 113
Loans and advances to Banks 3,180 3.069 1.300
Loans and advances to customers 49,511 44,111 47,700
Investment securities 13,656 7.755 7,759
Property and equipment 355 287 307
Intangible assets 26 42 45
Goodwill 73 78 78
Deferred taxation assets 385 401 370
Other assets 3,037 2,791 2,831
Total assets 109,140 108.043 123,969

LIABILITIES
Deposits from Banks 6 6 5
Deposits from customers 84,213 84.308 97,956
Derivative financial liabilities 69 44 107
Other borrowed funds 8,289 6,945 9.636
Taxation liabilities 115 151 118
Retirement benefit obligations 631 635 936
Provisions -
Other liabilities 1,000 695 744
Total liabilities 94,323 92,784 109.502

EQUITY AND RESERVES
Share capital 12,142 12,778 12,749
Retained earnings 1,919 2.032 1,403
Reserves 756 449 315
Total equity and reserves 14,817 15,259 14,467
Total liabilities, equity and reserves 109,140 103,043 123.969

# BARCLAYS
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016 2015
Rs’m Rs'm Rs'm

Interest income 3,953 3,815 3,466
Interest expense (701) (771) (902)
Net interest income 3,252 3,044 2.564

Fee and commissjon income 672 654 564
Fee and commission expense (131) (89) (63)
Net fee and commission income 541 565 501

Net trading income 298 342 372
Net gain on other financial instruments carried at fair value 62 258 183
Other operating income ♦ 1 1

360 601 556

Operating income 4,153 4,210 3.621

Net impairment loss on financial assets (171) (332) (426)
Personnel expenses (1,260) (1.091) (1,083)
Operating lease expense (66) (69) (66)
Depreciation and amortisation (84) (73) (90)
Administrative and other expenses (543) (552) (494)

(2,124) (2,117) (2,159)

Profit before taxation 2,029 2.093 1.462
Taxation (160) (190) (156)
Profit for the year 1,869 1,903 1,306
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss
Exchange differences for the year (927) 56 1.230
Net fair value gainZ(loss) on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, before taxation 137 89 (145)
Fair value gain recycled to profit or loss on (*)disposal of available-for-sale financial assets ( )
Deferred in taxation arising on net fair value (loss)/gain on revaluation of available-far -sale 
financial assets (24) (15) 25

(814) 130 1,108
Items that wiil not be reclassified to 
profit or loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement benefit plans 70 (157) 25

rjpfprrprl income tax arising on actuarial flossesl/gains on retirement benefit Dians & 25 (3)
61 (132) 22

Other comprehensive income for the year, (753) (2) 1,130
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,116 1,901 2,436

$ BARCLAYS
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016 2015
Rs'm Rs'm Rs’m

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

2,029 2.093 1.462

Provision for loan impairment 560 586 684
Provision for loan impairment released (364) (225) (221)
(Gain)Zloss on sale of property and equipment (62) (‘) *
Depreciation of property and equipment 71 60 72
Property and equipment written off * * 8
Impairment of property and equipment - - 7
Intangible assets written off * 3 *
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 13 18
Interest receivable (3.953) (3.815) (3,466)
Interest payable 701 771 902
Exchange differences (1) 3 3
Fair value gain on financial instruments carried at fair value 15 1 4
Equity-settled share-based payments expense (19) 4 5
Cash flows used in operating activities before changes in 
operating assets and liabilities (1,010) (506) (522)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
lncrease/(decrease) in operating assets:
Derivative financial instruments (47) 76 461
Loans and advances to Banks (336) (1,261) -
Loans and advances to customers (6,926) 3,257 4,652
Other assets (202) 61 (158)

(Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 25 (63) (474)
Deposits from customers 3,591 (13.866) 8.657
Provisions - - (10)
Other liabilities 318 (50) 258
Retirement benefit obligations 33 (499) 4
Net cash (used in)/from operations (4,554) (12.851) 12,868
Income tax paid (220) (179) (184)
Interest received 3,492 3,504 3,095
Interest paid (822) (714) (979)
Interest received on investment securities 322 338 329
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (1.782) (9,902) 15,129

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of property and equipment (144) (42) (20)
Payments for purchase of intangible assets (1) (12) (2)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 71 *>
Payments for purchase of investment securities (16,873) (5.554) (4,027)
Proceeds on maturity of investment securities 11,173 5,667 4,096
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (5,774) 59 47

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (1,539) (1,113) (858)
Other borrowed funds (3,044) 2,028 770
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (4,583) 915 (88)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (12,139) (8,928) 15,088
Cash and cash equivalents at 01 January 45,732 54,493 34,827

33,593 45,565 49,915
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (2,818) 167 4,578
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 30,775 45,732 54,493

BARCLAYS



SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Equity- settled
Share 

capital
Rs’m

Other 
reserves 

Rs’m
Capital 
reserve
Rs’m

Statutory 
reserve 
Rs'm

General 
reserve 
Rs’m

Fair 
value 

reserve 
Rs’m

Translation 
reserve 
Rs’m

employee 
benefits reserve 

Rs’m

Retirement 
benefit plan reserve 

Rs’m
Retained 
earnings 

Rs’m
Total 

equity 
Rs'm

At 1 January 2015 11,740 5 52 219 359 106 48 20 (705) 1,039 12,883
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 1,306 1,306
Fair value loss on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax - - - - - (120) - - - (120)
Fair value gain recycled to profit or loss on disposal of 
available-for-sale financial assets - - - - (2) - - - (2)
Exchange differences for the year 1,009 22 - 203 - (4) 1,230
Actuarial gains on retirement benefit plans, net of tax - - - - - - 22 22
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,009 * 22 (122) 203 18 1.306 2,436
Transfer from retained earnings to general reserve - - - (112) - - 112 -
Transfer from retained earnings to statutory reserve - 196 - - - - - (196) -
Dividends - - - - - - (858) (858)
Recognition of equity share-based payments - - - - - 6 - - 6
At 31 December 2015 12,749 5 52 415 269 (16) 251 26 (687) 1,403 14,467
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1,903 1,903
Fair value loss on revaluation of available-for-sale 
financial assets, net of tax - - - - 74 - - - - 74
Fair value gain recycled to profit or loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets - - * - - - -
Exchange differences for the year 29 * - 1 - 26 - * 56
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit plans, net of tax - - - - - - (132) - (132)
Total comprehensive income for the year 29 - - 1 74 26 - (132) 1.903 1,901
Transfer from general reserve to retained earnings - - - . (124) - - - - 124 -
Transfer from retained earnings to statutory reserve - - 285 - - - - - (285) -
Dividends - - - - - (1.113) (1.113)
Recognition of equity share-based payments - - - - - - - 4 - - 4
At 31 December 2016 12,778 5 52 700 146 58 277 30 (819) 2,032 15,259

# BARCLAYS

31 M
arch 2018 

1355



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

Equity- 
settled

At 1 January 2017

Share 
capital
Rs’m
12,778

Other 
reserves

Rs‘ m
5

Capital 
reserve
Rs'm

52

Statutory 
reserve
Rs’m

700

General 
reserve
Rs’m

146

Fair value reserve 
Rs’m

58

Translation reserve 
Rs’m

277

employee 
benefits 
reserve

Rs’m

30

Retirement 
benefit plan 

reserve

Rs’m

(819)

Retained 
earnings

Rs’m

2.032

1,869

Total 
equity 

Rs’m

15,259

1,869
Profit for the year - - - - ■ - - 113
Fair value gain on revaluation of available-for-sale 113 *
financial assets, net of taxFair value gain recycled to profit or loss on disposal of available-for- 4 - (927)sale financial assets * (292)
Exchange differences for the year (636) - (3) 61 61
Actuarial gains on retirement benefit plans, net of tax - - - • - 65 1,869 1,116
Total comprehensive income for the year (636) - - (3) 113 • (165) -
Transfer from general reserve to retained earnings - - 165 - (278)
Transfer from retained earnings to statutory reserve - - 278 - - - (1.539) (1.539)
Dividends - - - - (19) - - (19)
Recognition of equity share-based payments - - - 11 (754) 1,919 14,817

171 (15)

At 31 December 2017 12,142 5 52 978 308

Amount denoted by an (*)  represent figures less than Rs500.000.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 20 March 2018 by the undersigned:

PHILLIP DAWE
CHAIRMAN

RAVIN DA]EE
MANAGING DIRECTOR

FRANCO DAVIS
FINANCE DIRECTOR

# BARCLAYS
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Note 1: Basis of preparation
The summary financial statements are derived from the audited financial statements of Barclays Bank Mauritius Limited for the year ended 31 December 2017. The audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, are available upon request. The summary financial statements comprise the summary statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the summary statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 as presented in the audited financial statements for the year without reference to the detailed notes.
Independent Auditors’ Report on the Summary Financial Statements
To the Member of Barclays Bank Mauritius Limited

Opinion

The summary financial statements, which comprise the summary statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the summary 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended are derived from the audited financial 
statements of Barclays Bank Mauritius Limited for the year ended 31 December 2017.

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements are consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements, 
on the basis described in Note 1.

Summary Financial Statements

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance 
with the Mauritius Companies Act. Banking Act and Financial Reporting Act. Reading the summary financial statements and our report 
thereon, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and our report thereon. The summary financial statements 
and the audited financial statements do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our report on the audited 
financial statements.

The Audited Financial Statements and Our Report Thereon

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 20 March 2018.

Management’s Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements on the basis described in Note 1.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are consistent, in all material respects, with the 
audited financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 
(Revised), “Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements".

KPMG John Chung, BSc FCA
Ebene Licensed by FRC

Date: 27 March 2018

$ BARCLAYS
(Rec. No. 16/475243)
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Deutsche Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017
2017 2016 2015
USD USD USD

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 188,255,834 387,587,689 467,934,849
Loans and advances to banks 4,948,121 149,972,477 123,620,031
Loans and advances to customers - 62,727,846 130,252,414
Other assets 44,974,227 3,351,421 2,817,038
Property, plant and equipment - 1,068,918 1,371,221
Total assets 238,178,182 604,708,351 725,995,553

Liabilities:
Deposits from customers 186,651,744 564,967,913 687,049,174
Current tax liabilities 139,898 143,518 195,220
Other liabilities 9,879,883 1,563,139 1,607,516

Total liabilities 196,671,525 566,674,570 688,851,910

Equity:
Share capital 7,800,330 7,800,330 7,800,330
Retained earnings 25,649,978 21,549,824 19,984,440
Other reserves 8,056,349 8,683,627 9,358,873
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 41,506,657 38,033,781 37,143,643

Total liabilities and equity 238,178,182 604,708,351 725,995,553

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20,n March 2018

Friedrich Philipps Simon Murfin Subhas Lallah
Chief Country Officer Director Director

Date: March 20,2018

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017

* 'Depreciation' includes an amount of USD 659,359 representing assets written off under Property, plant and equipment.

2017 2016 2015
USD USD USD

Interest income 7,876,706 4,701,139 2,840,067
Interest expense (843,782) (581,687) (659,122)
Net interest income 7,032,924 4,119,452 2,180,945
Fee and commission income 1,021,579 1,090,583 1,098,877
Fee and commission expense (172,632) (177,039) (191,713)
Net fee and commission income 848,947 913,544 907,164

Net trading income 494,119 693,273 1,049,143
Revenue 8,375,990 5,726,269 4,137,252
Other operating income 11,523,239 10,479,555 10,504,451
Total operating income 19,899,229 16,205,824 14,641,703

Personnel expenses 10,162,007 7,038,376 6,732,125
Operating lease expenses 610,107 556,876 582,762
Depreciation* 1,146,275 490,504 492,898
Other expenses 4,280,108 3,057,711 2,664,559

16,198,497 11.143.467 10.472.344
Profit before tax 3,700,732 5,062,357 4,169,359
Income tax expense (227,856) (151,395) (148,535)
Profit for the year 3,472,876 4,910,962 4,020,824
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 
(all attributable to equity shareholders) 3,472,876 4,910,962 4,020,824
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Statement of changes in shareholders' equity for the year ended 31 December 2017
Other reserves

Share 
capital

Retained 
earnings

General 
Banking 
reserve

Statutory 
reserve Total

USD USD USD USD USD
Balance at 01 January 2015 7,800,330 19,185,561 2,625,388 8,056,349 37,667,628
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 4,020,824 - - 4,020,824
Transfer from general banking reserve 
Transaction with owners of the Bank:

- 1,322,864 (1,322,864) - •

Dividend paid to equity shareholders - (4,544,809) - - (4,544,809)
Balance at 31 December 2015 7,800,330 19,984,440 1,302,524 8,056,349 37,143,643
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 4,910,962 - - 4,910,962
Transfer from general banking reserve 
Transaction with owners of the Bank:

- 675,246 (675,246) - -

Dividend paid to equity shareholders - (4,020,824) - - (4,020,824)
Balance at 31 December 2016 7,800,330 21,549,824 627,278 8,056,349 38,033,781
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 3,472,876 - - 3,472,876
Transfer from general banking reserve - 627,278 (627,278) - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 7,800,330 25,649,978 - 8,056,349 41,506,657

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017

Profit before income tax
Cash flows from operating activities:
Adjustments for separately disclosed and non-cash items: 
Income tax paid
Depreciation*

* 'Depreciation' includes an amount of USD 659,359 representing assets written off under prapertv, plant and equipment.

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

Adjustments for net change in assets and liabilities:
Change in loans and advances to banks
Change in loans and advances to customers
Change in deposits from customers ,
Change in other assets
Change in other borrowed funds
Change in other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2017 2016 2015
USD USD USD

3,700,732 5,062,357 4,169,359

(231,476) (203,097) (270,362)
1,146,275 490,504 492,898
- 56 -
4,615,531 5,349,820 4,391,895

145,024,356 (26,352,446) 49,642,126
62,727,846 67,524,568 132,286,364
(378,316,169) (122,081,261) (252,188,077)
(41,622,806) (534,383) 1,925,429
- - (39,399,750)
8,316,744 (44,378) 109,302
(199,254,498) (76,138,080) (103,232,711)

(188,256) (215,136)

(77,357)(188,256)(215,136)

(4,020,824)(4,544,809)
- (4,020,824) (4,544,809)
(199,331,855)
387,587,689

(80,347,160)
467,934,849

(107,992,656)
575,927,505

188,255,834 387,587,689 467,934,849
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
TO THE MEMBERS OF DEUTSCHE BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

Opinion

In our opinion, the summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements of Deutsche Bank (Mauritius) Limited for the year ended 
31 December 2017 are consistent, in all material respects, with those financial statements, in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004.

Summary Financial Statements

The accompanying summary financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, are derived from the 
audited financial statements of Deutsche Bank (Mauritius) Limited (the 'Bank') for the year ended 31 December 2017. Those financial statements, and 
the summary financial statements, do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our report on those financial statements. 
The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting Standards. Reading the summary 
financial statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements of Deutsche Bank (Mauritius) Limited.

The Audited Financial Statements and our Report Thereon

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 20 March 2018. That report also includes an 
Emphasis of Matter which draws attention to Note 4 in the audited financial statements. Note 4 of the audited financial statements indicates that 
management has no intention to carry out any further business activities in Mauritius, and the Board of Directors and the sole shareholder of the Bank 
approved to surrender the Bank's banking license to the Bank of Mauritius. The Bank has also started implementing a structured plan to terminate its 
banking business in Mauritius. These conditions indicate that the Bank is no longer a going concern at the reporting date, and that the final amounts to 
be received upon realisation of the assets and settlement of the liabilities could vary from the amounts shown in the statement of financial position.

Management's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the summary financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with 
International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 (Revised). "Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements."

Other matter

This report has been prepared solely for the Bank's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001.

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank’s members those matters we are required to state to the latter in an auditor's 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank's 
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Bank other than in our capacities as auditors and in dealings in the ordinary course of business. 
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as it appears from our examination of those records.

Banking Act 2004

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a consistent basis and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the 
Banking Act 2004 and the regulations and guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius. The explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers 
or agents of the Bank were satisfactory.

Financial Reporting Act 2004

The directors are responsible for preparing the Statement of Corporate Governance Practices. Our responsibility is to report on the extent of compliance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance (the 'Code') as disclosed in the annual report and whether the disclosure is consistent with the requirements of 
the Code. In our opinion, the disclosures in the Statement of Corporate Governance Practices are consistent with the requirements of the Code.

ERNST & YOUNG'
Ebene, Mauritius

Date: 20 March 2018

THIERRY LEUNG HING WAH, F.C.C.A.
Licensed by FRC

(Rec. No. 16/475257)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Directors of
HABIB BANK LIMITED

Report on the Summary Financial Statements
Our Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of HABIB BANK LIMITED 
(MAURITIUS BRANCH) (the “Bank”) derived from the audited financial statements are consistent, in 
all material respects, with those financial statements, on the basis described in note 1.

The summary financial statements
The Bank’s summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements for the year 
ended 31 December 2017 comprise:

• the summary statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;
• the summary statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the summary statement of changes in equity for the year then ended.

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International 
Financial Reporting Standards, the Mauritian Companies Act 2001, the Mauritian Banking Act 2004 
and regulations and guidelines issued by the Bank of Mauritius. Reading the summary financial 
statements and the auditor’s report thereon, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited 
financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.

The Audited Financial Statements and our Audit Report thereon
We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 29 
March 2018

Management’s Responsibilities for the Summary Financial Statements
The Bank’s management are responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited financial 
statements on the basis described in note 1.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 18 CyberCity, Ebene, Reduit 72201, Republic of Mauritius
T: +230 404 5000, F:+2$0 404 5088/89, www.pwc.com/mu
Business Registration Number : F07000530

PricewaterhouseCoopers is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each member firm ol which is a separate legal entity.

http://www.pwc.com/mu
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Directors of
HABIB BANK LIMITED (Continued)

Report on the Summary Financial Statements (Continued)
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are 
consistent in all material respects with the audited financial statements based on our procedures, 
which were conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing 810 (Revised), 
‘Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements’.

Other Matter
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the directors of Habib Bank 
Limited for the purpose of Section 34(6)(b)(ii) of the Mauritian Banking Act 2004 and for no other 
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to 
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly 
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

29 March 2018

Michael Ho Wan Kau, licensed by FRC
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HABIB BANK LIMITED (MAURITIUS BRANCH)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

2017 2016 2015
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 6,256 23,625 17,485

Adjustments for:
Depreciation 3,815 4,402 4,598
Loss on asset disposed - 14
Impairment on financial assets 1,107 1,744 3,838
Release of provisions for credit impairment (403) (2,040) (2,121)
Retirement benefit obligation 1,443 1419 1,157
Net interest income (60442) (74,907) (66,335)

(48,024) (45,943) (41,378)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in investment securities (68,848) (694,421) (56,270)
Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to customers 76,363 422,102 (94,520)
DecreaseZ(increase) in other assets 10,489 (39,481) (26,078)
(Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers (62,130) 358,718 291,718
IncreaseZ(decrease) in other liabilities 30316 (3,673) 2,418
Contributions paid on retirement benefit obligation (435) (831) (550)
Interest received 101,284 105,979 96,289
Interest paid (38,110) (31,261) (30,755)
Income tax paid (4,825) (277) -

Net cash from operating activities (3,920) 70,912 140,874

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of equipment - 540 -
Purchase of equipment (2,297) (1457) (2,877)
Net cash used in investing activities (2497) (717) (2,877)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (17,500) (8,825) -
(Decrease)Zincrease in other borrowed funds (42,782) (54345) 39,004
Net cash (used in)/from financing activity (60,282) (63370) 39,004

IncreaseJ(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (66,499) 6,825 177,001
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1, 446,084 439459 262,258
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 379385 446,084 439,259

Note 1

The summary financial statements are derived from the audited financial statements of HABIB BANK LIMITED (MAURITnjS BRANCH) (the 
“Bank”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. These audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards, are available from the regulatory authorities. The summary financial statements comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2017 and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year 
ended 31 December 2017 as presented in the audited financial statements for that period without reference to the detailed notes.



HABIB BANK LIMITED (MAURITIUS BRANCH)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - DECEMBER 31. 2017

Assigned 
capital

Statutory 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Actuarial 
loss

General 
Ranking 
Reserve Total

Rs’000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

At January 1,2017 200,000 69,099 137,528 (14,426) 5,122 397,323

Profit for the year - 4,644 - 4,644
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 453 453
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,644 453 - 5.097

Transaction with owners 
Dividend Paid (17300) - - (17,500)

Transfer to resents 697 3,997 (4,694)

At December 31, 2017 200,000 69,796 128,669 (13,973) 428 384,920

At January 1, 2016 200,000 65.596 127,961 (5.990) 3,662 391,229

Profit for the year - 23,355 • - 23,355
Ollier comprehensive income for live year - - (8.436) (8.436)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 23,355 (8,436) 14.919

Transaction with owners 
Dividend paid (8,825) (8,825)

Transfer to reserves 3,503 (1,963) 1.460

At December 31,2016 200,000 69,099 137328 (14.426) 5,122 397,323

Al January 1,2015 200,000 62,988 115,361 (4.937) 1,283 374,895

Profit for the year 17,387 - 17,387
Oilier comprehensive income for the year - (1.053) (1.053)
Total comprehensive income for the year 17,387 (1.053) - 16,334

Transfer io reserves 2,608 (4,987) 2379

At December 31,2015 200.000 65396 127.961 (5390) 3.662 391,229
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HABIB BANK LIMITED (MAURITIUS BRANCH)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016 2015
Rs’000 Rs'000 Rs'000

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 379,585 446,084 439,259
Loans and advances to customers 913,683 990,771 1,412,744
Investment securities 1,170,244 1,103,382 407,968
Equipment 5,607 7,125 10,824
Deferred tax assets 8,680 8,171 3,359
Other assets 190,765 201,254 161,773
Total assets 2,668,564 2,756,787 2,435,927

LIABILITIES

Deposits from Customers 2,220,585 2,281,790 1,922,435
Other borrowed funds 249 43,031 97,576
Current tax liabilities 688 3,299 222
Other liabilities 62,122 31,344 24,465
Total liabilities 2,283,644 2,359,464 2,044,698

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Assigned capital 200,000 200,000 200,000
Statutory reserve 69,796 69,099 65,596
Retained earnings 128,669 137,528 127,961
Actuarial loss (13,973) (14,426) (5,990)
General banking reserve 428 5,122 3,662
Total equity 384,920 397,323 391,229

Total equity and liabilities 2,668,564 2,756,787 2,435,927
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR END1 

DECEMBER 31,2017

2017 2016 2015
Rs’000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Interest income 99,277 106,805 97,515
Interest expense (39,035) (31,898) (31,180)
Net interest income 60,242 74,907 66,335

Fee and commission income 6,187 8,298 7,845

Net trading income 10,827 8,259 7,998
Other operating income 3,409 2,145 2,200

14,236 10,404 10,198

Operating income 80,665 93,609 84,378

Nel impairment loss on financial assets (704) 296 (1.717)
Personnel expenses (42,328) (39,115) (35,983)
Operating lease expenses (6,623) (6,235) (6,440)
Depreciation (3,815) (4,402) (4,598)
Other expenses (20,939) (20,528) (18,155)

(74,409) (69,984) (66,893)

Profit before income tax 6,256 23,625 17,485
Income tax expense (1,612) (270) (98)
Profit for the year 4,644 23,355 17,387

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 546 (10,164) (1,239)
Deferred tax on rcmeasurement of defined 
benefit obligations  (93) 1,728 186
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  453 (8,436) (1,053)

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,097 14,919 16,334

(Rec. No. 16/475249)



31 March 2018 1367

EXCHANGE British American Exchange Co. Ltd

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Harish Bhoyroo
Chief Executive Officer

ASSETS  2017 2016

Non-current assets Rs Rs

Property, plant and equipment 11,124,741 4.597,388

Intangible assets 856,778 1,277,878

Deferred tax 544,050 544,050

Total non-current assets 12,525,569 6,419,316

Current assets

Other receivables 22,270,737 8.182.054

Deposit with financial institutions 20,001,200 20212200

Cash and cash equivalents 64,774,499 60,432,452

Total current assets 107,046,436 88,826,706

TOTAL ASSETS 119,572,005 95,246,022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Stated capital 47,025,000 47,025,000

Retained earnings 24,065,015 21,043,530

Total equity 71,090,015 68,068,530

Non-current liabilities

Obligations under finance lease 2,676,682 -

Deferred tax 706,497 614,725

Retirement benefit obligations 3,539,471 3,832,676

Total non-current liabilities 63*22,650 4,447,401

Current liabilities

Obligations under finance lease 312,620

Trade and other payables 41,246,720 22,665,029

Current tax liability - 65,063

Total current liabilities 41,559,340 22.730,092

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 119,572,005 95,246,022

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23rd March 2018

Ashvinath Geerjanan 
Director

Ashvin Metturjeet 
Director
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EXCHANGE British American Exchange Co. Ltd

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017

Rs

2016

Rs

Revenue 64,905,302 57,524,055

Administrative expenses (61,792,045) (59,083.967)

Exceptional items - (9,255.046)

Profit / (loss) before tax 3,113,257 (10,814,958)

Taxation (91,772) (226,997)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 3,021,485 (11,041,955)

Earnings / (loss) per share 0.06 (0.23)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Retained
Stated capital earnings Total

Rs Rs Rs

At I January 2016 47,025.000 32,085,485 79,110.485

Total comprehensive loss for the year - (11,041,955) (11,041.955)

At 31 December 2016 47,025.000 21.043,530 68,068,530

Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,021,485 3,021,485

At 31 December 2017 47,025,000 24,065,015 71,090,015
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EXCHANGE British American Exchange Co. Ltd

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016

Rs Rs

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit / (loss) before tax 3,113,257 (10,814,958)

Adjustment for:-

Depreciation and amortisation 3,526,886 2,741,558

Overprovision of tax (65,063) -

Interest received (4,091,018) -

Retirement benefits obligations (293,205) 205,676

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 2,190,857 (7,867,725)

(Increase) / decrease in other receivables (14,088,683) 580,950

Increase in other payables 18,581,691 5,303,832

Cash generated from / (absorbed into) operations 6,683,865 (1,982,943)

Interest received 4,091,018 -

Taxation - (188,538)

Net cash generated from 1 (used in) operating activities 10,774,883 (2,171,481)

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9,557,768) (2,271,979)

Purchase of intangible assets (75,370) -

Deposit with financial institutions 211,000 (812.200)

Net cash used in investing activities (9,422,138) (3,084,179)

Financing activities

Obligations under finance lease 2,989,302 -

Net cash from financing activities 2,989,302

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,342,047 (5,255,660)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 60,432,452 65,688,112

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 64,774,499 60,432,452
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BA
EXCHANGE British American Exchange Co. Ltd

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF BRITISH 
AMERICAN EXCHANGE CO. LTD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited (he financial statements of British American Exchange Co. Ltd (the ‘‘Company’*)  set out on pages 19 to 38. which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, these financial statements give a true and fair view of (he financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of its financial performance, its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year (hen ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability' to continue as a going concent. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with (he directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of (he audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide, a basis for our opinion.
Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report, Corporate Governance Report and Certificate from the Company Secretary, or any other information. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is (o read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude (hat (here is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report (hat fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements (hat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the Company’s member, in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s member (hose matters that we are required to state in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To (he fullest extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s member, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001• We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditors.
• We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.
• In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by (he Company as far as it appears from our examination of those records.
Hanking Act 2004

• In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the Banking Act 2004 and the regulations and guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius;
• Tlte explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the Company were satisfactory.

The Financial Reporting Act 2004

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance Report. Our responsibility is to report on the extent of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance as disclosed in the Annual Report and whether the disclosure is consistent with the requirements of the Code.
In our opinion, the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report are partially consistent with the requirements of the Code.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

MOORE STEPHENS
Chartered Accountants

Arvin Rogbeer FCA
Licensed by FRC

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs. we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures resjxinsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or (he override of internal control.

PORT LOUIS
REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS DATE: 23 March 2018

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order lo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
(Rec. No. 16/475247)
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Independent auditors' report
To the member of Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Warwyck Private Bank Ltd, the “Bank”, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements on pages 31 to 86 give a true and fair view 
of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 
2004 and the Banking Act 2004.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report 
Thereon ("Other Information")

Management is responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information comprises mainly 
of information included under the Corporate Information, Annual Report, Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Chairman’s Statement and Administrative Information sections, but does 
not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other 
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.
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Independent auditors' report (Contd)
To the member of Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Contd)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for 
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 
2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004 and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Independent auditors' report (Contd)
To the member of Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Contd)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Contd)

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

■«

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(a) Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

• we have no relationship with, or any interests in the Bank other than in our capacity as 
auditors;

• we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

• in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as it appears 
from our examination of those records.

(b) Banking Act 2004

(i) In our opinion, the financial statements:

• have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year;

• are complete, fair and properly drawn up; and

• comply with the Banking Act 2004 as well as the regulations and guidelines of the Bank of 
Mauritius.

(ii) The explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the 
Bank were satisfactory.
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Independent auditors' report (Contd)
To the member of Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Contd)

(c) Financial Reporting Act 2004

The directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance Report and making the 
disclosures required by Section 8.4 of the Code of Corporate Governance (the ‘Code’). Our 
responsibility is to report on these disclosures.

In our opinion, the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report are consistent with the 
requirements of the Code.

Other matter

Our report is made solely to the member of the Bank as a body in accordance with Section 205 of 
the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 
the Bank’s member those matters we are required to state to it in an auditors’ report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the Bank and the Bank’s member as a body, for our audit work, for this report, 
or for the opinion we have formed.

Grant Thornton 
Chartered Accountants

K RAMCHURUN, FCCA
Licensed by FRC

Date: 29th March 2018

Ebene 72201, Republic of Mauritius
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Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Statement of financial position as at 31 December
| The Bank |

2017

USD
2016

USD

2015

USD
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 106,178,697 67,649,894 35,794,040
Derivative financial assets - - C 14,511

Trading assets - 791,089 -

Property, plant and equipment 6,055,661 5,708,555 3,652,230

Intangible assets 244,033 484,698 637,106
Loans and advances 137,795,197 114,472,882 47,263,010
Placements with an overseas bank 2,318,647 - -

Deferred tax assets 55,807 554,511 219,308
Other assets 26,127/151 16,293,919 30,988,303

Total assets 278,775,493 205,955,548 118,568,508

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers 253,175,080 180,751,257 81,289,904

Derivative financial liabilities - 35,672 34,541
Current tax liabilities 51,984 4,580 39,238

Other liabilities 6,534,896 11,270,775 25,867,572

Borrowings 3,336,304 - -

Total liabilities 263,098,264 192,062,284 107,231,255

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stated capital 10,000,010 10,000,010 10,000,010

Statutory reserve 1,646,943 944,348 560,946

Retained earnings 4,030,276 2,948,906 776,297

Total equity 15,677,229 13,893,264 11,337,253

Total liabilities and equity 278,775,493 205,955,548 118,568,508

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees 147,000 - 293,000

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29th March 2018 and signed on its behalf by.

Saleem Rashid Beebeejaun 
Chairman

Virrsing Ramdeny 
Director

Pascal Dulau
Chief Executive Officer
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Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Statement of comprehensive income for the year 
ended 31 December

Interest income

Interest expense

The Bank
The Group |

2017

USD

2,989,111 

(1,873,992)

2016

USD

2,539,596 

(1,557,339)

2015 

USD 

2,795,837 

(2,604,365)

2015

USD

43,293,406

(2,604,365)

Net interest income 1,115,119 982,257 191,472 40,689,041

Fee and commission income 5,895,287 936,511 1,547,207 1,168,748

Other income 4,740,320 4,607,721 5,140,445 9,672,024

Dividend income - 500,000 945

Operating income 11,750,726 6,526,489 7,379,124 51,530,758

Personnel expenses (1,550,878) (1,217,457) (846,523) (923,865)
Operating lease expenses (60,335) (103,519) (70,572) (70,572)
Other expenses (4,254,118) (2,539,249) (2,504,732) (14,229,809)
Depreciation and amortisation 

Net impairment loss on financial
(631,846) (440,769) (356,749) (356,749)

assets (3,283) (107) (554) (554)
Net foreign exchange losses - - - (598,338)
Profit before tax 5,250,266 2,225,388 3,599,994 35,350,871
Tax (expense)/ credit (566,301) 330,623 139,648 (1,138,324)
Profit for the year 4,683,965 2,556,011 3,739,642 34,212,547
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Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Statement of comprehensive income for the year 
ended 31 December (Contd)

The Bank The Group

2017

USD

2016

USD

2015

USD

2015

USD
Other comprehensive 

income:

Items that will not be 

reclassified subsequently to 

profit or loss - - -

Items that will be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss: 

Exchange differences on 

translation of foreign 

operations (63,039,746)

Other comprehensive loss for 

the year, net of tax (63,039,746)

Total comprehensive 

income/(loss) for the year 4,683,965 2,556,011 3,739,642 (28,827,199)

Earnings per share 0.47 0.26 0.37 3.42

Statutory reserve transferred 

during the year 702,595 383,402 560,946 560,946

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29th March 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Saleem Rashid Beebeejaun 
Chairman

Pascal Dulau
Chief Executive Officer

Virrsing Ramdeny
Director
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Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the 
year ended 31 December

Stated Statutory Retained

The Bank

At 01 January 2017

capital

USD

10,000,010

reserve

USD

944,348

earnings

USD

2,948,906

Total

USD
13,893,264

Dividends paid - (2,900,000) (2,900,000)

Transaction with the shareholder - (2,900,000) (2,900,000)

Profit for the year - - 4,683,965 4,683,965

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - 4,683,965 4,683,965

Transfers to statutory reserve during the year 702,595 (702,595) -

At 31 December 2017 10,000,010 1,646,943 4,030,276 15,677,229

At 01 January 2016 10,000,010 560,946 776,297 11,337,253

Profit for the year ■ - 2,556,011 2,556,011

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,556,011 2,556,011

Transfers to statutory reserve during the year 383,402 (383,402) -

At 31 December 2016 10,000,010 944,348 2,948,906 13,893,264

At 01 January 2015 10,000,010 (2,402,399) 7,597,611

Profit for the year - - 3,739,642 3,739,642

Other comprehensive income - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,739,642 3,739,642

Transfers to statutory reserve during the year 560,946 (560,946) -

At 31 December 2015 10,000,010 560,946 776,297 11,337,253
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Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the 
year ended 31 December (Contd)

The Group

At 01 January 2015

Participating 

shares 
USD 

612,964,937

Translation
reserve

USD

Stated 
capital 

USD 

10,000,010

Statutory 
reserve 

USD

Retained 
earnings 

USD 
(2,069,288)

Total
USD

620,895,659

Issue of participating shares 101,811,286 - - - - 101,811,286

Redemption of shares (242,322) - - - - (242,322)

Transactions with the shareholders 101,568,964 101,568,964

Movement in equity on disposal of 
subsidiaries - - - - (682,300,171) (682,300,171)

Profit for the year - - - - 34,212,547 34,212,547

Other comprehensive income: 
Retranslation during the year (63,039,746) - (63,039,746)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (63,039,746) (648,087,624) (711,127,370)

Transfers to statutory reserve for the 
year 560,946 (560,946)

Disposal of subsidiaries (714,533,901) 63,039,746 - - 651,494,155 -

At 31 December 2015 10,000,010 560,946 776,297 11,337,253
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Warwyck Private Bank Ltd

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December

Operating activities
Profit before tax

| The Bank |

2017 2016 2015
USD USD USD

5,250,266 2,225,388 3,599,994

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation
Loss/(gain) on sale of bonds
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Fair value (gain)/loss
Interest expense
Interest income________________________
Total adjustments

Changes in working capital
Changes in placements
Changes in loans and advances
Changes in other assets
Changes in deposits from customers
Changes in other liabilities
Tax paid_____________________ _______
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Investing activities
Acquisition of intangible assets
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Derivative financial instruments
Investment in bonds
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Interest received
Dividend received
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries______________
Net cash from investing activities

Financing activities
Dividend paid
Interest paid_______________________________
Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

387,434 211,955 151,677
244,412 228,814 205,072
186,634 - (155,018)

(3,185,649) (3,996,376) (4,965,900)
(322,788) 250,462 20,030

1,873,992 1,557,339 2,604,365
(2,989,111) (2,539,596) (2,795,837)
(3,805,076) (4,287,402) (4,935,611)

(2,318,647) 
(23,029,821) 
(10,147,883) 
72,231,311 
(4,735,879) 

(20,193)

(66,686,198)
13,257,427
95,813,138
(9,163,464)

(39,238)

(13,795,338)
(29,293,993) 

(3,697,683) 
25,017,819

33,424,078 31,119,651 (23,104,812)

(3,747) (76,406) (237,717)
(734,540) (2,268,280) (105,372)

- - (34,000)
(35,672) 15,642 -

- (1,041,551) (3,087,014)
927,243 - 3,254,055

2,696,617 2,015,922 2,728,913
- 500,000

3,500,000 3,235,001 1,730,899
6,349,901 1,880,328 4,749,764

(2,900,000)
(1.681.480) _______ (1,144,125) (2,472,755)
(4.581.480) (1,144,125) (2,472,755)

35,192,499 31,855,854 (20,827,803)
67,649,894 35,794,040______ 56,621,843

102,842,393 67,649,894 35,794,040 ~

Cash and cash equivalents is made up of:
Cash in hand and at bank
Overdrawn bank balance

106,178,697 67,649,894 35,794,040
(3,336,304)

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 102,842,393 67,649,894 35,794,040

(Rec. No. 16/475273)
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Banque Des Mascareignes ttee

consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
for the year ended 31 Oecember 2017

Note
2017 

Rs 000

Group
2016 

Rs 000
2015 

Rs 000 2017
Rs 000

Bank
2016Rs 000

2015 
Rs 000

interest Income 
interest expense
Net Interest income 8 —

679,943 
(239,900)
440,043

757,510 
(275,500)
482,010

790,022
445,240

653,026
... (231,791)

421,235

735,208
___ !265^1LL465,941

761,486 
(337,450)
424,036

Fee and commission income 
Fee and commission expense 138,054 

(30,298)
139,295 
(40,600)

146,170 
(28j088)

102,944 
(28,327)

116,753 
(38,978)
77,775

120,788 
(26,167)
94,621Net fee and commission income 9 107,756 98,695 118,082 74,617

Net trading income 10 77,814 70,597 88,817 66,910 63,148 76,430
Net Income from other financial 
instruments at (air value through 
profit or loss
Other revenue

11
12 _ 4,533

(27,941)
56,976

(49)
1,708

(49,924)
14,493

(27,941)
45,166

(49) 
11,510

... 190,103 198,327 208,558 106,096 158,148 182,512
Revenue 630,146 680,337 653,798 527,331 624,089 606,548
Personnel expenses 13 (266,607) (277,180) (271,983) (259,363) (270,636) (265,200)
Operating lease expenses 14 (49,830) (48,243) (50,402) (44,537) (43,500) (45,599)
Depredation and amortization 
Other expenses 15

(65,380} 
(203,246)

(55,744) 
(199,357)

(26,490) 
(175,949)

{63,732) 
(181,719)

(51,124)
(160,7.85)

(2t,012) 
(152,044)

(585,063) (580,524) (524,824) (549,371) (525,545) (484,655)
Operating profit
Net impairment loss bn financial 45,083 99,813 128,974 {22,040) 98,544 121,893
assets
Profit before tax

19(c)_ 86,325 
131,408

(48,565)
51,248

(81,901)
47,073

92,224
70,184

(40,551)
57,993

.  (77,426)
44,467

Income tax credit / (expense) 16(1) 26,348 (1,040) (91) 27,442 CM 1,009
Profit 157,756 SO,208 46,982 97,626 57,923 45,4/6
Other comprehensive Income

Items that are or may be reclassified 
to profit Or loss ,
Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operations 5,280 (17,599) (5,09?) (600) 204 (1,670)
Net change in fair value of available 
for sate financial assets (6,391) 12,391 (21,015) (6,391) 12,391 (21,015)
Valuation of Goodwill (73,707) - - - -
Other comprehensive income 132,432 (4,341) (8,095) - (4,341)
Total Other comprehensive income 53,634 (5,208) (30,453) (15,086) 12,595
Total comprehensive income 213,390 45,000 (16,529) 82,540 ...... 70,518 . 18,450

Profit attributable to :
Equity holders
Non-controlling intercuts 
Profit

167,336 54,764 49,653
(9,580)_________(4,556)______ (2,871)

157,756 50,208 ........ 46,982.
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders
Non-controlling Interest
Total comprehensive income

297,570 49,556 19,400
(9,580) (4,556). ..... (2,871)

287,990 45,000  16,529

1
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Banque Des Mascareignes Ltee
Consolidated and separate statements of financial position
For the year ended 31 December 2017

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Note

17

2017 
Rs 000

Group
2017 

Rs 000

Bank
2016 

Rs 000
2015 

Rs 000
2016

Rs 000
2015

Rs 000
1,772,246 6,855,475 3,466,895 1,598,593 6,790,496 3,345,550

Loans and advances to banks 18 240,030 645,760 715,800 240,030 645,760 715,800
Loans and advances to customers 19 11,747,721 11,584,758 15,582,847 11,618,639 11,496,362 15,453,646Investment securities 20 2,503,659 1,835,894 1,491,030 2,426,590 1,746,350 1,438,119Investment in subsidiary 21 - - - 189,706’ 190,201Property, plant and equipment 22 59,050 69,882 46,132 50,340 63,579 f 44,546
Goodwill and Intangible assets 23 117,098 210,063 151,136 115,351 132,900 73,902Deferred tax assets 16(ii) 204,294 175,807 179,916 204,294 175,080 178,264
Other assets 24 901,201 920,561 959,985 860,902 900,549 918,656
Total assets 17,545,299 22,299,200 22,593,741 17,114,739 22,140,782 22,358,684
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 25 16 1,209 1,209 -
Deposits from customers 26 11,577,272 15,589,446 16,658,055 11,231,868 15,399,339 16,353,446Borrowed funds 27 3,151,846 4,117,034 3,339,829 3,151,778 4,117,034 3,339,829Derivative financial instruments 28 - 2,284 170 - 2,284 170Subordinated liabilities 29 202,470 274,283 528,737 202,470 274,283 528,737Current tax liabilities 16(iii) 1,002 1,273 274 688 1,049 -
Other liabilities 30 407,859 322,227 348,B18 400,673 300,862 357,299
Total liabilities 15,340,465 20,307,756 20,875,883 14,987,477 20,096,060 20,579,481
Equity
Share capita) 31 1,944,015 1,944,015 1,749,016 1,944,015 1,944,015 1,749,016Retained earnings 77,903 (145,250) (223,399) 35,916 (63,374) (121,299)Reserves 161,499 172,369 177,577 147,331 164,081 151,486

Total equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 2,183,417 1,971,134 1,703,194 2,127,262 2,044,722 1,779,203Non-controlling interests 21,417 20,310 14,664 - -
Total equity 2,204,834 1,991,444 1,717,858 2,127,262 2,044,722 1,779,203
Total liabilities and equity 17,545,299 22,299,200 22,593,741 17,114,739 22,140,782 22,358,684

i nese financial statements were approved *or issue by the Soard of Directors on the 5th March 2018.

Sylvain FAURE
C.haA'pe/son. Aud't (Ton)n>;tte<-

Pint ppe WATTELAMPS 
Chiaf E'lecuthfC Otftrer

The notes on pages 63 to 134 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
58
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Banque Des Mascareignes Ltee

Consolidated and separate statements of change in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Bank

Share capital
As 000

Statutory 
reserve 
Rs 000

General 
banking 
reserve
Rs 000

Fair value 
reserve
Rs 000

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 
Rs 000

Retained 
earnings

Rs 000
Total

RS 000

Balance at 01 January 2015 1,749,016 83,372 28,709 31,929 30,161 (162,434) 1,760,753
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - 45,476 45,476
Other comprehensive toss for the year - - • (21.015) (1,670) (4,341) (27,026)
Total comprehensive income for the year • - - (21.015) (t,670) 41.135 18,450

Transactions with owners of the Bank - - ► - - -

Issue of shares — - -

Total contributions and distributions - - - - - -

At 31 December 2015 1,749,016 83,372 28,709 10,914 28,491 (121,299) 1,779,203

Balance at 01 January 2016 1,749,016 83,372 28,709 10,914 28,491 (121.299) 1,779,203
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year 57,925 57,925
Other comprehensive income for the year 12,391 204 12,595
Total comprehensive income for the year • - - 12,391 204 57,925 70,520

Transactions with owners of the Bank - - -

Issue of shares 194,999 - - - w - 194.999
Total contributions and distributions 194,999 - - - - - 194,999
At 31 December 2016 1,944,015 83.372 28,709 23,305 28,695 (63,374) 2,044,722

Balance at 01 January 2017 1,944,015 83,372 28,709 23,305 28,695 (63,374) 2,044,722
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year 97,626 97,626
Transfer 18,950 (28,709) 9,759 *
Other comprehensive income for the year - (6,391) (600) (8,095) (15,086)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 18,950 (28,709) (6,391) (600) 99,290 82,540

Transactions with owners of the Bank - - - - - - -
Issue of shares - - • - • -
Total contributions and distributions - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 1.944,015 102,322 - 16,914 28,095 35,916 _ 2,127,262

5
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Banque Des Mascareignes Lt4e

Consolidated and scoaratc statements of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 201 7----------------------------- ---- --------------------—..........---..........—

Croup Bank
2017Notos R*  OOP

20t6 
RS 000

2015 
RS 000

2017 
Ms QQO

2016 
Rs 000

2015 
.... . Rs 000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 132 408 51248 47 073 70 184 57 993 44 46?
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 65 380 55 744 26 490 63 732 SI 124 21 812

Net Impairment loss on financial assets (86 326) 48 565 81 901 (92 224) 40 551 77 426
Net income from financial instruments at fair 
value through profit and loss (49) - (49)
Profit on safe of equipment * . (615) (6lS)

210 462 155 557 154 800 41 692 149 668 1*13  041
Changes mi 
Loans and advances to banks 405 730 70 040 (193 616) 405 730 70 041 (193 616)

Loans and advances to customers (27 36«) 3 90S 090 29 502 20 856 3 864 593 82 047
Other assets 19 360 39 424 (116 878) 39 647 18 108 (88 631)
Deposits from banks (1 193) (1 512 051) 1 038 735 (1 209) (I Sl2 051) 1 038 ?3S
Deposits from customers (4 012 175) (1068 608) 2 819 208 (4 167 471) (954 107) 2 773 498
Other liabilities and provisions (12 6631 (24 477). . (101 773) 97 527 64 536 (112 419)

(3 518 O4S) 1 657 975 3 629 978 (3 563 228) 1 700 788 3 642 6SS
Income takes paw (5091 .(999) (19 715) (226) (19 $31)
wet cash (used in}/ generated from operating 
activities -13 518 554) . 1 656 976 3 610 263 (3 $63 454) 1 700 788 3 623 124
Cash Hows from investing activities 
Acquisition of investment securities (2 672 774) {2 324 322) (1 272 743) (2 236 900) (1 765 900) (1002 165)

Proceeds from sale of Investment securities 2 094 163 2 001 734 1 744 619 1 638 400 1 477 000 1 510 LOOAcquisition of shares in subsidiary 
Acquisition of property and equipment

(18 020) (52 634) (23 319) (15 565) (44 541) (23 018)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 1 571 615 • I 572 615
Acquisition of intangible assets 
Net cash (used in)/generated from ■—... (9 1851 .--..(86 016). (71 898) (7 863) (84 S67) (70 S69)

-u&amzi.—W-W.).. 377 274 (621 928)  (417 436) 414 965

Case flow* from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of subordinated liabilities 
Repayment of subordinated liabilities 
Repayment of borrowed funds
Proceeds from issue of shares 
Dividends paid
Het cash (used li>)/gener»ted from 
financing activities

Net (decrease)/incre»se in eash and eash 
equivalents
cash and cash equivalents at 01 January
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and 
cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

(57 555) 
(955 IBS)

(247 663)
Z 290 465

194 599

(19 853) 
(2 189 161)

(57 555) 
(96S 256)

(247 663) (19 853)
2 290 465 (2 189 161)

t94 999

-&A33Zflai —Z22iML-(2209.014) .(1 022 81X1 2 237 801 (2 209014)

17246 6 856 475 3 466 895 1 598 593 Z_6 ?90 496~

(S 147 114)
6 856 475

3 435 110
3 466 895

1 778 523
1 578 664

(5 208 193)
6 790 496

3 521 153
3 345 550

1 829 075
1 440 115

62 685 (45 530} 109 508 16 290 (76 20?) 76 360

6
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BANK ONE
Financial Highlights
Bank One experienced a strong growth of 25% in its asset base in 2017 with growth of 28% and 38% in deposits and gross advances during the year contributed by both 
Segment A and Segment B operations.
Bank One achieved a net Profit after Tax to Rs374m representing an increase of 20% over the previous year. The gross NPL ratio was brought down from 7.61 % last year 
to 6.06% as at December 2017 and is expected to improve further in 2018.
The Bank has been able to deliver an average return on equity and assets of 16.33% and 1.36% respectively to its shareholders.

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Dec 2017

Rs 000

Dec 2016 Dec 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 4,221,988 4384,789 3.670,672

Derivative assets held for risk management 4324 1337 207

Loans and advances to banks 3,707345 1,650343 534289

Loans and advances to customers 17,746327 13,750,096 12335,145

Investment Securities - Available-for-sale 2,249,806 1,494,704 843338

Investment Securities - Held-to-inaturity 1,968379 2296326 1,683,082

Property and equipment 403,161 372,417 322,653

Intangible assets 41,580 40,693 37,424

Deferred tax assets 71,766 71,918 95399

Other assets 1,296,936 1,024319 774326

Total assets 31,712,012 25287,142 20296335

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers 28,299,442 22,187299 17321,879

Derivative liabilities held for risk management 822 11,423 5,622

Other borrowed funds 123,441 188,431 474379

Subordinated liabilities 512,205 524390 410,635

Current lax liabilities 11,609 6,959 1,880

Other liabilities 304,228 240301 266,486

Total liabilities 29,251,747 23,158303 18,480,881

EQUITY

Stated capital 856,456 856.456 856,456

Retained earnings 1,239,958 967011 707284

Other reserves 363,851 304,872 251.914

Total Equity 2,460,265 2.128339 1315,654

Total Equity and Liabilities 31,712,012 25287,142 20296335

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018

Ravneei Chowdhury 
Chief Executive Officer

Leonard C. Mususa 
Director and Chairman of Audit 

Committee
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BANK ONE
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Dec 2017

Rs 000

Dec 2016 Dec 2015
Rs 000 Rs 000

interest income 1,080,674 1,022,557 902.756
Interest expense (367,117) (323,403) (294,463)
Net interest income 713,557 699,154 608,293 .

Fee and commission income <> 271,295 411,836 318,988
Fee and commission expense (123,196) (200,132) (151546)
Net fee and commission income 148,099 211,704 167,042

Net gain on dealing in foreign currencies and derivatives 82,917 84,015 72,258
Other operating income 14,987 397 9,401

97,904 84.412 81,659

Operating income 959,560 995,270 856,994
Personnel expenses (367,600) (313,654) (311,032)
Depreciation and amortisation (43,691) (34,392) (35,189)
Other expenses (136,203) (144,785) (134,476)

(547,494) (492,831) (480,697)

Profit before impairment 412,066 502,439 376,297
Net impairment loss on financial assets (11,299) (153,626) (165,158)
Total impairment loss (11,299) (153,626) (165,158)

Profit before income tax 400,767 348,813 211,139
Income tax (expense)Zcrcdit (26,568) (37,229) 15,790
Profit for the year 374,199 311584 226,929

Basic earnings per share (Rs) 43.69 36.38 30.37

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Dec 2017 Dec 2016 Dec 2015
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Profit for the year 374,199 311,584 226,929
Other Comprehensive income :

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation net of tax (25,539) (4,924) (2.063)
Revaluation on building net of tax (14,934) (1561) -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Unrealised losses on available-for-sale investment recycled to profit or loss 1,584

Net fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale investment securities net of tax (7,252) 7586 (6,893)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (16,273) 1,101 (8,956)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 357,926 312,685 217,973
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B4A/KONE
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

General 
Banking 
reserve

Fair value 
reserve

Retirement 
benefit plan 

reserve
Retained 
earnings

Total 
equity

Stated 
capital

Revaluation 
surplus

Statutory
reserve

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 0(30 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1 January 2015 731,456 78,895 111.044 92,093 13,512 (25.829) 471,510 1.472,681
Profit for the year - - - - - - 226,929 226,929
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (6.893) (2,063) - (8,956)
Transfer to general banking reserve - - - (42.884) * - 42,884 -
Transfer to statutory reserve - 34,039 - - - (34,039) -
Total comprehensive income - 34,039 (42,884) (6.893) (2,063) 235,774 217,973
Transaction with owners

Issue of shares 125.000 - - - - - - 125.000
Total transaction with owners 125,000 - - - - - - 125.000
Balance as at 31 December 2015 856,456 78,895 145,083 49,209 6,619 (27,892) 707,284 1,815.654

Balance as at 1 January 2016 856,456 78,895 145,083 49.209 6.619 (27,892) 707,284 1,815,654
Profit for the year - - - - - 311584 311,584
Other comprehensive income for the year (1,561) - - 7.586 (4.924) - 1,101
Transfer to general banking reserve - 5,119 (5,119)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - 46,738 - - (46.738) -
Total comprehensive income - (1.561) 46.738 5,119 7,586 (4.924) 259,727 312,685
Balance as at 31 December 2016 856,456 77334 191,821 54,328 14,205 (32,816) 967.011 2,128,339

Balance as at I January 2017 856,456 77334 191.821 54,328 14205 (32,816) 967,011 2,128,339
Profit for the year - - - - - 374,199 374,199
Other comprehensive income for the year - 14,934 - - (5.668) (25.539) - (16,273)
Transfer to general banking reserve - - - 19.123 - - (19,123) -
Transfer to statutory reserve - 56,129 - - - (56,129) -
Total comprehensive income - 14,934 56,129 19,123 (5,668) (25,539) 298.947 357,926
Transaction with owners

Dividend - - - (26.000) (26.000)
Total transaction with owners - - - (26.000) (26.000)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 856,456 92,268 247.950 73.451 84537 (58.355) 1.239,958 2,460,265
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BANK ONE
’» \ ‘ SUMMARY STATEMENT OF C ASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017' A'--?. f

Dec-17

Rs 000

Dec-16
Rs 000

Dec-15
Rs 000

Cash Dows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 400,767 348,813 211,139
Net change on provision for credit impairment 11,299 153.626 165,158
Depreciation 30,110 21,045 22.124
Amortisation 13,581 ■ 13347 13.065
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 643 6,091 4.222
Change in provisions and pensions obligations 14,817 2,226 (2,910)
Gain on sale of securities (14,3791 (2,360) (7.656)
Others 42,805 (4.164) 15,422
Net interest income (713,557) (699,154) (608 293)

(213,914) (160.530) (187,729)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Movement in Derivatives (14,088) 4,671 (7,080)
Increase in loans and advances 

to banks (2,076,646) (1,127321) (222,680)
to customers (3,934,211) (1,536,400) (1,938.808)

(IncreaseJ/dccrcasc in other assets (249,863) (247,858) 596
Increase in deposits from customers 6,073,781 4,824.760 1,855,421
Incrcasc/(dccreasc) in other liabilities 33,070 (43385) (14,453)
Interest received 1,027,098 1.001,647 887,070
Interest paid (328,754) (282,743) (298,045)
Income tax paid (14,589) (9.264) (33,820)
Net cash from operating activities 301,884 2,423,377 40,472

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment securities (9,245,028) (7,765.000) (2509,174)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 8,296,875 6,967,049 1,769,312
Purchase of property and equipment (50,515) (79.752) (21,239)
Proceeds from sale of other assets - 9,809 -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 197 3,287 295
Purchase of intangible assets (14,468) (16,623) : (12,761)
Net cash used tn investing activities (1,012,939) (881.230) (773567)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued 125,000
Repayment of other borrowed funds (41,273) (34408) (187,412)
Proceeds from subordinated liabilities - 119,884 -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities (50,000) - (37,209)
Dividend paid (26,000) - -
Net cash (used in)/froni financing activities (117,273) 85.676 (99,621)

Cush and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,519,687 3.891.S64 4,724380

Net cash from operating activities 301,884 2,423.377 40,472
Net cash used in investing activities (1,012,939) (881,230) (773567)
Net cash (used in)/from (muncing activities (117,273) 85.676 (99,621)
Net (decreasej/increase in cash and cash equivalents' (828,328) 1.627,823 (832,716)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,691,359 5319.687 3.891,864
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BANK ONE
Independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders of Bank One Limited

Report on the Summary Financial Statements

Our OpinionIn our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of Bank One Limited (the “Bank”) arc consistent, in all material respects,with (fac audited financial statements, on the basis described in note 1.
The summary financial statements
The Bank’s summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprise:• the summary statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;• the summary statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;• the summary statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;• the summary statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;• the summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and• the related notes to (he summary financial statements.
The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting Standards. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s repoq thereon
The Audited Financial Statements and our Audit Report thereonWe expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 28 March 2018.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Summary Financial StatementsThe directors arc responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements on the basis described in note 1.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Summary Financial StatementsOur responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements arc consistent in all material respects with the audited financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing 810 (Revised), ‘EngagCnicnts l0 Report on Summary Financial Statements’.
Other Matter
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Bank’s shareholders in accordance with Section 34(6)(b)(ii) of thc Mauritian Banking Act 2004 and for no other purpose. We do not. in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. ”

PricewaterhouseCoopers
28 March 2018 Gilles Bcesoo, licensed by FRC

Note 1. The accompanying summary financial statements are derived from the audited financial statements of Bank One Limited (the "Bartle *•)  jor t]ie year eiuie({ g] 
December 2017. These audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Startef^rds, are available from 
the regulatory authorities. The summary financial statements comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the of profit or loss
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 as presented in the audited financial statements for that period without 
reference to the detailed notes.

(Rec. No. 16/475247)
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Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited
Condensed audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

ComtentedaudRed statement of financial pgsjttoti aa ot31 December 2017 Condewed audited statement ofott^r cdmfrrehensfoe ter the year ended 31 December ftjl 7

2017 2016 2015

ASSETS

Jiatftioo

* 
fl 331,803

USD’OOO USD’OOO

Cash and cash equivalents 350,748 968,599

Placement with banks 569 2,000

Trading assets
:j^soo

15,503 279,478

Derivative financial instruments 6,790 26,146

Loans and advances to banks '■•",182,7*1 268,067 242,473

Loans and advances to customers 1,015,186 992,765

Investment securities * 247.074 786,614 647,251

investment in subsidiary 59,000 161.320

Other assets 55.229 76,095

Plant and equipment 430 675 483

Goodwill and other intangible assets j \22,fl81 28,031 30,701

Deferred tax assets 611 37

Total assets 

LIABILITIES

2,787,023 3,447,348

Derivative financial instruments wm 15,687 47,973

Deposits by banks /Ji 1t2«' 30,672 50,738

Deposits by customers 1 234,593 1,055,371 1,166,958

Other borrowed funds 820,779 1,193,212 1,694,154

Subordinated liabilities fc,?6l 75,572 75,000

Other liabilities 42,415 139.102 36,913

Current tax liabilities 6^4 266 742

Deferred tax liability ____ __  1- -

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity holders

_2 203,77 3_ 2,510,082 3,072,478

Share capital 272.652 272,652 272,652

(Accumulated lossesj/retained 
earnings

(19,014) (46,922) 53,513

Other reserves ... «.2M 51,211 48,705

Total equity attributable to equity 
holders ol the Bank

299,873 276,941 374,870

Total liabilities and equity 2.787.023 3,447,348

Profit for the year

USD’OOO

23,978

2016

USD’OOO

6.267

2015

USD’OOO

11.236

Other comprehensive income that will be reclassi-
tied to the income statement

Net change in fair value of available-tor-sale financial
, < — • *4

' (5.933) 7,282 (54)
assets

Income tax relating to components of other compra- 58 (78)
hensive income

Cash flow hedges: 1K4’
Effective portion of changes in fair value 1.4,854 (9.216) 992

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ' 0,046). (1.876) 860

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax r 23,932 4,391 12.096

The financial statements have been approved by the Board an 26 March 2018 and signed on 

its behalf by:

Richard Etemesi Mathieu Mandeng Danny Bailuck
Chairman CEO/Director CFO/Director

Soard of Directors

Cdnolensed audited idtoom© statement for (heyexen<^^tDecefnft<ygbf7

201? 2016 2015
USD’OOO J USD’OOO USD’OOO

Interest and similar income 112,123 102,793 118,474

Interest and similar expense ' (54,185) (54,716) (70,845)

Net interest income 57,938. 48,077 47.629

Fee and commission income '10*149 9.046 11.937

Fee and commission expense (3,327) (3,616) (5.626)

Net fee and commission income - 6,822 5,430 6.311

Net trading loss .. (18.BS7) (3,08?) (22,619)

Net gain from other financial instru­
ments at fair value through profit or 
loss . 13,204 39,419 47,022

Other operating income >■- 38 52

Total operating income . 59,077 89,877 78,195

Credit loss expense (6,301) (11,565) (18.234)

Reversal/(lmpairment losses) on 
financial assets *.-■ - 158 (45,740) (18.627)

Net operating income 52,934 32.572 41.334

Impairment ol intangible assets . (2.380) -

Personnel expenses (6,654) (6.761) (6,563)

Operating lease expenses (499 (437) (526)

Depreciation and amortisation (2,785) (2.842) (2.915)

Other operating expenses (15,048) (16,320) (20,191)

Total operating expenses (27,362) * (26.360)
(30,195)

Profit before tax 25,572 6.212 11.139

income tax (expense)/credit (1,594) 55 97

Profit for the year 23,978 6,267 11.236

• ’ 2017 « 2016 2015
1 . uso'ooo i USD’OOO USD’OOO

Cash flows from operating activities ?

Profit for the year -41 23378’ 6,267 11,236

Adjustments for.

Depreciation and amortisation uy /2,785 2,842 2,915
Net impairment loss on financial assets A\v’6,143 57,305 68,762
Impairment of intangible assets 2.380 r- -

Net trading income J 18387 8,303 28,954
Net gain from other financial instruments carried at fair
value r. 033041 (39,419) (85,954)
Profit on disposal of motor vehicles 

Foreign exchange on translation of investments
A'W'
c--(36,320)

(38)

8,866

(52)

58,078
Net interest income (57,938) (48.077) (47,629)
Tax expense /(credit) s 1»5M (55) (97)
Net fee and commission income (6.822) (5.430) (6,311)

L (58’5,7)
(9.436) 29,902

Changes in: /I >

- Placements with banks
I? sea

fl-.- (46,997)
1.431 (2,000)

- Trading assets 263,975 76,195
- Derivative financial instruments 1.673, (33,167) 53,101
- Loans and advances to banks 78,270 (23,879) 58.592
- Loans and advances to customers 215,13s1

(29.194) 310.304
- Other assets 9,133’ 4,343 (2.929)
- Deposits by banks (29,668) (19,881) 47.715
- Deposits from customers 178,905

; f (359,953)

(111,719) 195,478
- Other borrowed funds (435,085) (272.663)
- Other liabilities l±~ (96.677) _ 103,621 (27,989)

(108,125) (288,991) 465,706
Interest received 103,087' 110,917 151,990
Interest paid . ’ (56,318) (64.034) (87,844)
Income tax paid 0.225) (93?) (1,347)
Fee and commission income received 10.152 10,591 11.261
Fee and commission expense paid (3,326) (3.616) (5.626)

Net cash (used inj/from operating activities (55,756) (236,070) 534.140

Investing activities

Acquisition of investment securities ? (409.310) (423,218) (558,968)
Acquisition of investment in subsidiary

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment 
securities 303,744 223,924 732.773
Acquisition of equipment (77) (377) (36)
Proceeds from sale of equipment and other fixed assets 50 71

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities 005.643) (199.621) 173,840

Financing activities

Issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Proceeds from issuing shares
(30,311) - (20,000)

Dividend paid -

Net cash used in financing activities (30,311) (20,000)

Net (decreasej/increase in cash and cash equivalents . (191,710) (435,691) 687,980
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 550,748 908,599 318,354
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations an cash and 
cash equivalents held 2,765 (2,160) (17,735)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 361,803 550,748 988,599
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Standard
Condensed audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 Chartered ’**»
Condensed audHed gtotemerttgf in equity tor the ypar ^hSniSimMii

Other reserves

Share 
capital

Statutory 
reserve

Capital 
reserve

Available-for- 
sale reserve

Cash flow 
hedge 
reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings Total

USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD’000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000

At 01 January 2016 272,652 34,661 4,850 32 21 9,141 53,513 374,870

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year 6.267 6,267

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Fair value adjustment, net of tax 7,340 7,340

Cash Flow Hedges;

Effective portion of changes in fair value (9,216) (9.216)

Total other comprehensive income - 7,340 (9,216) (1.876)

Total comprehensive income tor the year - 7,340 (9,216) 6.267 4,391

Write down of investment in subsidiary - (102.320) (102.320)

Transfer from retained earnings to general reserve 4,382 (4.382)

At 31 December 2016 272,662 34,661 4,850 7.372 (9.195) 13,523 (46,922) 276,941

Qfhc»r recen/AC

C»>bh How
Statutory Capitol 1 Available tor- hedge „ Genera' Retained

Share crpit <1 reserve reserve sale reserve reserve . .-reserve-)-^ earnings Total

USD'000
USD'odo USD ODD USD'000*' ' USD 000 » USD 000 USD'000

At 01 January 2017 272,652 34 661 4,850 (-Maa 13,523 flJOZ, ...

Total comprehensive income 8gs A V

Profit for the year
23,970 > 23,979

Other comprehensive income, net of tax - p

Fair value adjustment, net of tax ;/ (5,900) BaL ’ •> 7 , A • (5 900)

Cash Flow Hedges;

Effective portion of changes in fair value 4 654 4,854
" ' ....... y ■ 11 ■y-

Total other comprehensive income * (5,90$) 4,854 „ (1.046;
.........  'i"i ■> . » "!*  .............................. — A IJM 1 " ■ -

Total comprehensive income for the year (5.900) 4854 IRS 23,978 <2 2 2

Transfer from retained earnings to general reserve P 931) 3 831
— — —--------- —■“----- * * — -

At 31 December 2017 2/z652 34,662 4.850 1,47? (4341) 9r592 (19013) ?99F/4

Opinion

In our opinion, the summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements of 
Standard Chartered Sank (Mauritius) Limited for the year ended 31 December 2017 are consistent, in all 
material respects, with those financial statements, in accordance with international Financial Reporting 
Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking 
Act 2004.

Summary Financial Statements

The accompanying summary financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial position as 
at 31 December 2017, the income statement and statement of other comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, are derived from the audited 
financial statements of Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited for the year ended 31 December 
201 7. We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements in our report dated 26 
March 2018. Those financial statements, and the summary financiai statements, do not reflect the effects 
of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our report on those financial statements.

The summary financial statements do not contain ail the disclosures required by international Financial 
Reporting Standards. Reading the summary financial statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading 
the audited financial statements of Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited.

Management's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited financial statements in 
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the summary financial statements based on our procedures, 
which were conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 (Revised), 
“Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements.0

Other matter

This report has been prepared solely for the Bank's member in accordance with Section 205 of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's member those matters we 
are, required to state to the latter in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank's member 
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Bank other than in our capacities as auditors, and in 
dealings in the ordinary course of business.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we nave required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as ft appears from our 

examination of those records.

Banking Act 2004

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a consistent basis and are complete, fair 
and properly drawn up and comply with the Banking Act 2004 and the regulations and guidelines of the 
Bank of Mauritius. The explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of 

the Bank were satisfactory-.

Financial Reporting Act 2004

The directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance report. Our responsibility is to 
report on the extent of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance (the 'Code') as disclosed 
in the annual report and whether the disclosure is consistent with the requirements of the Code. In our 
opinion, the disclosures in the Corporate Governance report are consistent with the requirements of the 

Code.

ERNST & YOUNG ANDRE LAI WAN LOONG, A.C.A
Ebene, Licensed by FRC
Mauritius

26 March 2018

(Rec. No. 16/475266)
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STANDARD BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
A member of Standard Bank Group

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Summary Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2017

2017 2016 2015

USD USD USD

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 570,823,648 955,449,350 858,078,800

Trading assets 749,636 12,214,772 39.163,539

Derivative assets held for risk management 9,674,017 11,829.615 9,016,819

Loans and advances to banks 424,145,193 463,307,807 393,710,692

Loans and advances to customers 122,169,578 78.741,065 100,752,826

Investment securities 24,949,390 833.184 474,659

Held-to-maturity investments 98,663,423 - -

Property, plant and equipment 2,037,435 2.250,989 2,871.608

Intangible assets 19,517,579 29,204 26,645

Deferred tax asset - 300,000 1,177,000

Other assets 8,046,618 9,589,289 13,629,313

Total Assets 1,280,776,517 1,534.545,275 1,418,901,901

Liabilities
Deposits from banks 60,895,260 94.374,626 79,148,172

Deposits from customers 1,103,515,134 1,283,183,276 1,164,809,245

Derivative liabilities held for risk management 9,353,440 11,599,090 8,618,009

Other borrowed funds 4,097,627 4,018,856 10,996,984

Subordinated liabilities - 25,000,000 25,000.000

Current tax payable 630,313 202,000 539,000

Deferred tax liability 38,000 - -

Other liabilities 11,285,967 34,474,266 40,974,564

Total Liabilities 1,189,815,741 1,452.852,114 1,330,085,974

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000

Statutory and other reserves 15,414,664 12,192.287 10,561,693

Retained earnings 40,546,112 34,500,874 43,254,234

Total equity attributable to equity holders 90,960,776 81,693,161 88,815,927

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,280,776,5U 1,534,545,275 1,418,901,901

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 21 March 2018.

Louis Rivalland
Chairman

Duncan Westcott
Director

Lakshman Bheenick
Chief Executive

Standard Bank Moving Forward™
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STANDARD BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
A member of Standard Bank Group

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Summary Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
USD

2016
USD

2015
USD

Interest income 28,481,564 18,757.136 21,146,140
Interest expense (7,018,359) (4,550,508) (6,969,130)
Net interest income 21,463,205 14,206.628 14.177,010

Fee and commission income 7,188,411 6.695.892 7,384,020
Fee and commission expense (373,345) (242.698) (230,643)
Net fee and commission income 6,815,066 6,453,194 7,153,377

Net trading income 10,121,660 7,923.642 10,897,175
Net income/(loss) from other financial instruments carried at fair value 7,438 4,308 (245,678)
Other operating income 273,897 249.249 219,336

10,402,995 8,177,199 10,870,833

Operating income 38,681,266 28,837,021 32,201,220

Net impairment gain/(charge) on financial assets 183,343 (364,686) 4,949,466
Personnel expenses (7,325,926) (7,345,842) (6,529,347)
Operating lease (651,227) (637,473) (649,625)
Depreciation and amortisation (1,223,735) (852,349) (794.909)
Other expenses (6,646,935) (5,594.614) (5,974,611)

(15,664,480) (14,794,964) (8,999,026)

Profit before income tax 23,016,786 14.042,057 23,202,194
Income tax expense (1,730,447) (1,172,524) (1,596,711)
Profit for the year 21,286,339 12,869,533 21.605,483

Profit attributable to equity holders 21,286,339 12,869,533 21,605,483

Other comprehensive income
items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Net (loss)/gain on available for sale financial assets (15,008) 1,630 868

Other comprehensive income for the year (15,008) 1,630 868

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity 
holders 21,271,331 12,871,163 21,606,351

Standard Bank Moving Forward™
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STANDARD BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
A member of Standard Bank Group

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Summary Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
USD

2016
USD

2015
USD

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 23,016,786 14,042,057 23.202,194
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,223.735 852,349 794.909
Loss/(Gain) on sale of assets 1,301 (34,227) (5.735)
Net foreign exchange difference 199,355 1,384,387
Net impairment (gain)/charge on financial assets (183,343) 364,686 (4,949,466)
Interest Income (28,481,564) (18,757,136) (21,146.140)
Interest expense 7,018,359 4,550,508 6.969,130
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in trading assets 11,465,136 26,948.767 144,871,942
(lncrease)/Decrease tn derivative financial instruments 
held for risk management (90,052) 168,285 308.830
(lncrease)/Decrease in loans and advances to banks 39,582,278 (69,231,015) (123.593,076)
(lncrease)/Decrease in loans and advances to customers (43,689,776) 19,326.532 154,033,510
Decrease in other assets 1,398,471 3,870.728 708,846
Decrease in trading liabilities - - (23.342,017)
(Decrease)/lncrease in deposits from banks (33,489,941) 15,211,027 56,263.084
IncreasedDecrease) in other borrowed funds 78,772 (6.978,128) (32,458,961)
(Decrease)/lncrease in deposits from customers (179,742,064) 118,225,641 (1,860,850,012)
(Decreasej/lncrease in other liabilities (22,706,982) (6,580,089) 31,842,239
(Increasej/Decrease in investment securities (24,091,010) (357,801) 2,188,168
Interest received 27,832,010 20,712,485 23,132,058
Interest paid (6,933,862) (4,386,691) (7,530,760)
Income tax paid (819,978) (377,367) -
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (228,412,369) 118,954,998 (1,629,561,257)

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (600,200) (260,269) (360,891)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 75,133 8,980
Capital expenditure intangible assets (19,899,655) (14,925) -
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments (98,514,123) - -
Net cash used in investing activities (119,013,978) (200,061) (351,911)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of subordinated debt (25,000,000)
Dividends paid (12,000,000) (20,000,000) (10,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (37,000,000) (20.000,000) (10,000.000)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (384.426,347) 98,754,937 (1,639,913,168)
Net foreign exchange difference (199,355) (1,384.387) -
Cash at the beginning of the year 955,449,350 858,078,800 2,497,991,968
Total cash at end of the year 570,823,648 955,449.350 858,078,800

Standard Bank Moving Forward™ ’
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STANDARD BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
A member of Standard Bank Group

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Summary Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Share
Capital 

USD

Statutory 
Reserve 

USD

Other 
Reserves 

USD

Retained
Earnings 

USD
Total 
USD

Balance at 01 January 2015 35,000,000 7,126,544 296,518 34,764.327 77,187,389
Profit for the year
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale

- - 21605,483 21,605,483

financial assets 868 - 868
Total comprehensive income for the year 868 21,605,483 21,606,351
Transfer to statutory reserve 3,034,667 - (3,034,667) -
Transfer to general banking reserve 
Transactions with owner of the Bank

311.927 (311.927) -

Dividend to equity holders - (10,000,000) (10,000,000)
Share based payments (208,831) 231018 22,187
Balance at 31 December 2015 35,000,000 10,161,211 400,482 43,254,234 88.815,927
Profit for the year
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale

- 12.869,533 12,869,533

financialassets 1,630 - 1,630
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,630 12,869,533 12,871,163
Transfer to statutory reserve 1,930,430 - (1,930,430) -
Transfer to general banking reserve 
Transactions with owner of the Bank

(244,368) 244,368 -

Dividend to equity holders - (20,000,000) (20,000,000)
Share based payments (57.098) 63,169 6.071
Balance at 31 December 2016 35,000,000 12,091641 100,646 34,500,874 81,693,161
Profit for the year
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale

- 21286,339 21286,339

financial assets (15,008) - (15,008)
Total comprehensive income for the year (15j008) 21286339 21271331
Transfer to statutory reserve 3492,951 - (3492,951) -
Transfer to general banking reserve 
Transactions with owner of the Bank

- 48,107 (48407) -

Dividend to equity holders - - (12,000,000) (12,000,000)
Share based payments - (3,673) (43) (3,716)
Balance at 31 December 2017 35,000,000 15284,592 130,072 40346,112 90,960,776

Standard Bank Moving Forward™ J
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STANDARD BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
A member of Standard Bank Group

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Independent auditor’s report to the Shareholder of Standard Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Report on the Summary Financial Statements

Our Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of Standard Bank (Mauritius) Limited (the "Bank") 
derived from the audited financial statements are consistent, in all material respects, with those financial statements, 
on the basis described in note 1.

The summary financial statements
The Bank’s summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2017 comprise:

• the summary statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;
• the summary statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended:
• the summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and
■ the related notes to the summary financial statements.

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting 
Standards. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, therefore, is not a substitute 
for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor's report thereon.

The Audited Financial Statements and our Audit Report thereon
We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 21 March 2018.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Summary Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited financial statements on the basis 
described in note 1.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are consistent in all material 
respects with the audited financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with 
International Standard on Auditing 810 (Revised), ‘Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements’.

Other Matter
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Bank's shareholders in accordance with 
Section 34(6)(b)(ii) of the Mauritian Banking Act 2004 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, 
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into 
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
21 March 2018

Gilles Beesoo, licensed by FRC

Note 1. The accompanying summary financial statements are derived from the audited financial statements of Standard Bank 
(Mauritius) Limited (the "Bank”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. These audited financial statements, which have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, are available from the regulatory authorities. The 
summary financial statements comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the statements of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 as 
presented in the audited financial statements for that period, without reference to the detailed notes.

Standard Bank Moving Forward™
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